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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

On behalf of the board (the "“Board”) of directors (the “Directors’) of SH Group
(Holdings) Limited (the “Company"), | am pleased to present the annual report
of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively as the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 March 2020 (the “Year" or “FY2020").

The Group is principally engaged in providing electrical and mechanical
engineering (“E&M engineering”) services in Hong Kong. We focus our efforts on
the supply, installation and maintenance of mechanical ventilation and air-
conditioning system (“MVAC system”) and also provide services in relation to
low voltage electrical system and other E&M systems, including fire services
system, plumbing and drainage system, in both private and public sectors.

RESULTS

During the Year, the Group recorded an increase in revenue by approximately
HK$172.1 million, or 43.4%, from approximately HK$396.3 million for the year
ended 31 March 2019 (“Last Year” or “FY2019") to approximately HK$568.4
million for the Year. The revenue generated by projects of MVAC system
contributed 79.3% of total revenue of the Group whilst revenue generated by
projects of low voltage electrical system contributed 20.7% of total revenue of
the Group.

The Group recorded a profit for the Year of approximately HK$26.0 million,
representing an increase of [4.5% or HK$3.3 million from approximately
HK$22.7 million in FY2019.

DIVIDEND

The Board has recommended a payment of final dividend of HKI.7 cents per
ordinary share for the Year (2019: HK1.4 cents per ordinary share).

BUSINESS OVERVIEW
MVAC system

During the Year, the Group was awarded 7 projects in relation to MVAC system
installation with an aggregate contract sum of approximately HK$682.8 million.
The awarded projects are not limited to residential projects but also a public
schools project. The various types of awarded new projects, together with the
continual progress of projects awarded in previous years, would provide the
Group stable revenue and eamings in the coming years.
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Low voltage electrical system

The revenue contributed from projects of low voltage electrical system to the
total Group's revenue have been maintaining at similar level from FY2019 to
FY2020, around 20%, while the total revenue of the Group increased by 43.4%.
This is consistent with the business plan of the Group to steadily increase the
revenue and profit generated from projects of the low voltage electrical system.

Other E&M engineering services

During the Year, the Group was awarded a public schools project from the Hong
Kong Government. Part of this project includes the installation of plumbing and
drainage system. The portion of the installation of plumbing and drainage is
estimated to be approximately HK$ 4.2 million out of the total contract sum of
this project. This is considered as a good job reference to the Group’s plumbing
and drainage system work and a milestone for the Group business development.

OUTLOOK

The Hong Kong Government will continue to tackle the issues around the
housing and land supply in Hong Kong by launching various policy initiatives on
infrastructure. These initiatives such as the “Land Sharing Pilot Scheme”, rezoning
sites for housing development and development of brownfield sites etc., are
beneficial to the construction industry and E&M engineering services industry in
Hong Kong. The above initiatives, together with additional railway property
development projects and redevelopment projects, will provide steady and
continuous land supply for public and private residential development and
commercial buildings, and hence will increase the demand on the construction
and E&M engineering services in the future.

Despite various opportunities in the market, macro-environment factors like the
spread of the Coronavirus Disease 2019 and the social uncertainties together
with some industry-wide challenges cause threat and impact on our operation. In
particular, stalling of building and construction schedule due to the impact of
material supply chain and logistics, and elevated competition in the economic
slowdown will exert pressure on the Group's business. In order to maintain
stable revenue and eamings and achieve further growth in the future, the Group
has diversified its businesses and adopted a more competitive pricing strategy to
bid for sizable projects. Having said that, the Group will continue to bid for
targeted projects with reasonable profit margin.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

The Group continues to keep our endeavour to diversify our projects in different
E&M engineering services. After registering as a Fire Service Installation
Contractor in Classes | and 2 of the Fire Service Department in FY2019, the
Group intends to further tap into different opportunities in the market including
plumbing and drainage system as well as other E&M engineering services. With
our long-established reputation, experience and proven track record in the
industry, the Group takes a positive attitude in achieving a steady growth in our
business in the years to come.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to thank the
management team and my fellow staff members for their contribution during the
Year. | would also like to express my sincere appreciation to our customers,
suppliers, subcontractors, other business partners and our shareholders for their
continuous support.

Yu Cheung Choy

Chairman
Hong Kong, 29 June 2020
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Group is principally engaged in providing E&M engineering services in Hong
Kong. We provide services in relation to the supply, installation and maintenance
of MVAC system, and also provide services in relation to low voltage electrical
system and other E&M system, including fire services system, plumbing and
drainage system, in both private and public sectors.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Our revenue increased by approximately HK$172.1 million, or 43.4%, from
approximately HK$396.3 million for FY2019 to approximately HK$568.4 million
for FY2020. Major projects awarded and major projects undertaken in FY2020
are outlined below.

Projects awarded in FY2020

During FY2020, we were awarded 7 projects with an aggregate contract sum of
approximately HK$682.8 million, which were related to MVAC system
installation.

The following table sets forth the particulars of the five largest projects awarded
in FY2020 in terms of contract sum:

BEERWR DT

AEEETR2EFTENFRUEBETER
% o AR EL S R RS REME -
LR REEHBCBRZE R R8G50 ERH
RT5 - MR BREEERRZG LA
WER G (BB RS - HkMEE5 &
75) B IRTS ©

XK EE

Bk ER —ZT— A F 43189630
EBA TN IE72108 75 T 51 43.4%
E_T _TUFELSE6S0B BT =
TOTUFERMNETEERE MAEAENE
ZIF BN I o

R-BE-_ZHEERNER

R F - HAPER 7 (& B
BREARRETEBENIER 5442
B4 A61882808 BT ©

TERFINREHNSHEAEN T T
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Type (Residential/
Non-residential) ““<

Key scope of work R (2 Date of award Contract sum
TETRERE FiEE) ERAEH CEEA
HK$'million
BEET
MVAC system installation for a proposed residential development at Kai Tak, Kowloon ~ Residential 27 September 2019 2356
NEREORZEEERRROEHBRERARRLE (E “E-NFAAZTLR
MVAC system installation for a proposed residential development at Kai Tak, Kowloon ~ Residential 27 September 2019 1638
NERENREETERERNBHBAZAZSLE FE “EAFAA=TER
MVAC system installation for a residential development at Wong Chuk Hang Residential 9 May 2019 97.8
EMANEEERAROBHBREHARLE Fa “E-AFRANA
MVAC system installation for a proposed composite development at Kai Tak, Kowloon  Residential 3 June 2019 85.3
NERRORRE S ERER ORI BRZHE AR LR FE —F-NFA~A=R
MVAC system and plumbing installations for the construction of schools at Fanling Non-residential 10 June 2019 599
HENERERNERBRZBAZRRKERELE FEE “E-NFAATH

Note:  “Residential” refer to projects that involve residential flats while “Non-residential” refer to projects

that do not involve residential flats.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEER R DT

Major projects undertaken in FY2020

RE-ZBE-EMFAENETEERE

During FY2020, the Group continued to focus our efforts on the supply, NR-ZE T ZIKEE%ZE#EEAT

installation and maintenance of MVAC system and low voltage electrical system. fE - **‘*&Z&W%HLH EEES
Revenue contributed by projects relating to MVAC system and low voltage [ Z &5 o H 8 E 22 38 R 45 KR K R

electrical system accounted for approximately 79.3% and 20.7% respectively

ERERAMNEAEB BB KD R

(2019: 79.5% and 20.5%). R793% K 207%( ZF — LF - 795% K
205%) °
The following table sets forth the particulars of the five largest projects TREYIZWEERTE S T &
undertaken in FY2020 in terms of revenue contribution: FEN T AEB S
Revenue
recognised
Type (Residential/ during FY2020
Non-residential) i
Key scope of work R (k2 Date of award Contract sum —EZZHF
IETREER FiE) ERAS AREHE  BRMWE
HK$'million HK$'million
BBER BRER
MVAC system installation for a proposed development at Kwun Tong  Residential 5 December 2017 199.8 1374
BENRZERRANERBRATHARLEK e “F—tH+-AAA
MVAC system installation for a residential development at Tuen Mun  Residential [4 November 2018 60.4 573
LAMEEHREROBRBREEARLE EE —\Ft+—A+HA
Electrical system installation for a proposed residential development at  Residential 31 January 2019 2143 46.3
Ap Lei Chau
WM REEEERARNERZRLE FE —NWE—A=t+-H
MVAC system installation for a hospital at Tuen Mun Non-residential 29 January 2019 59.1 419
LRE AR ERRRZARRLE FEE —hE—A=TNH
MVAC system installation for a residential development at Tuen Mun  Residential 2| June 2018 580 413
TANEERRERVEMBREHEARLE £ “E-N\FRAZT—H
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Recent Development and Future Prospects

Subsequent to FY2020 and up to the date of this annual report, we were
awarded 2 projects with an aggregate contract sum of approximately HK$299.6
million, which were related to MVAC system installation.

The outlook of the Group is discussed under the paragraph “Outlook” of the
Chairman’s Statement on pages 4 to 6 of this annual report.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

Our revenue increased by approximately HK$172.1 million, or 43.4%, from
approximately HK$396.3 million for FY2019 to approximately HK$568.4 million
for FY2020. The increase in revenue was primarily attributable to (i) the increase
in average contract size of the Group's projects in progress; and (ii) the increase
in amount of work done of the Group's projects in accordance with work
progress. Revenue contributed by projects relating to the supply, installation and
maintenance of MVAC system and low voltage electrical system was
approximately 79.3% and 20.7% respectively (2019: 79.5% and 20.5%
respectively).

Gross profit and gross profit margin

Our gross profit increased by approximately HK$7.2 million, or 15.19% from
approximately HK$47.6 million for FY2019 to approximately HK$54.8 million for
FY2020. Our gross profit margin decreased by approximately 2.4 percentage
points, from approximately 12.0% for FY2019 to approximately 9.6% for FY2020.
The increase in gross profit was attributable to the combined net effect of
increase in revenue and decrease in gross profit margin, which was mainly due to
intensified competition in the industry faced by the Group and hence the Group
adopted a more competitive pricing strategy in securing new projects.

Other income

Other income for FY2020 increased by approximately HK$0.7 million, from
approximately HK$ 1.3 million for FY2019 to approximately HK$2.0 million for
FY2020. The change was mainly attributable to the increase in interest income
and dividend income.

Other gain and loss

We recorded an other loss of approximately HK$3.1 million for FY2020, which
was attributable to the fair value loss of financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss (“FVTPL"), comparing to the other gain of approximately HK$ 1.0 million
for FY2019 due to the fair value gain on financial assets at FVTPL.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEER R DT

Administrative expenses

Our administrative expenses mainly represented administrative staff costs,
professional fees and depreciation. The amount increased by approximately
HK$ 1.5 million, from approximately HK$19.5 million for FY2019 to
approximately HK$2 1.0 million for FY2020.

Finance costs

Our finance costs increased by approximately HK$0.3 million, from
approximately HK$0.4 million for FY2019 to approximately HK$0.7 million for
FY2020. The amount represented interest expenses on bank borrowings and
lease liabilities.

Income tax expenses

Our income tax expenses increased by approximately HK$ 1.l million, from
approximately HK$4.6 million for FY2019 to approximately HK$5.7 million for
FY2020 due to the combined effect of the above factors. The effective tax rate
for FY2020 was approximately 18.1% (2019: 16.8%).

Profit attributable to owners of the Company

Based on the above factors, profit attributable to owners of the Company
increased by approximately HK$3.3 million, or approximately [4.5%, from
approximately HK$22.7 million for FY2019 to approximately HK$26.0 million for
FY2020.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL STRUCTURE
Capital Structure

As at 31 March 2020, the capital structure of the Group consisted of equity of
approximately HK$257.4 million (2019: HK$236.9 million) and bank borrowings
of approximately HK$6.8 million (2019: HK$9.2 million).

Cash position and fund available

During the Year, the Group maintained a healthy liquidity position, with working
capital being financed by our operating cash flows, bank borrowings and the
retained profits.

As at 31 March 2020, the Group held cash and cash equivalents of approximately

HK$139.4 million (2019: HK$71.3 million). The Group did not hold any short
term bank deposits as at 31 March 2020 (2019: HK$28.0 million).

As at 31 March 2020, the current ratio of the Group was approximately 2.8
times (2019: 2.9 times).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Bank borrowings

As at 31 March 2020, the Group had total bank borrowings of approximately
HK$6.8 million (2019: HK$9.2 million). As at 31 March 2020, the Group had a
facility agreement entered into with a bank with a facility limit of HK$80.0 million
(2019: HK$30.0 million). The Company had made undertakings relating to certain
performance obligation of the controlling shareholders, namely Mr. Yu Cheung
Choy (“Mr. Yu"), who is the chairman of the Board (the “Chairman”) and
executive Director, and Mr. Lau Man Ching (“Mr. Lau"), who is the chief
executive officer of the Company (the “Chief Executive Officer”) and executive
Director, pursuant to the facility agreement including the following: (i) Mr. Yu and
Mr. Lau undertake to maintain as the largest shareholders of the Company
directly or indirectly; and (i) Mr. Yu and Mr. Lau shall remain as the chairman or
director of the Company. The facility agreement remains effective as at the date
of this annual report.

As at 31 March 2020, the Group had another facility agreement entered into
with a bank with a facility limit of approximately HK$6 1.4 million (2019: HK$54.0
million) with the following obligation undertaken by the Group: (i) In case of Mr.
Yu and Mr. Lau are not the major shareholders of the Company, the Group
should notify the bank 14 days in advance; and (ii) In case of Mr. Yu is not
entitled to be chairman of the Company, the Group should notify the bank 14
days in advance.

As at 31 March 2020, the Group had another facility agreement newly entered
into with a bank during FY2020 with a facility limit of HK$60.0 million with the
following obligation undertaken by the Group: (i) In case of Mr. Yu and Mr. Lau
are not the major shareholders of the Company, the Group should notify the
bank |4 days in advance; and (ii) In case of Mr. Yu and Mr. Lau are not entitled
to be chairman or director of the Company, the Group should notify the bank
|4 days in advance.

GEARING RATIO

As at 31 March 2020, the Group's gearing ratio was approximately 2.6% (2019:
3.9%), calculated as the bank borrowings divided by the total equity as at the end
of the respective years and multiplied by 100%.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEER R DT

NET CURRENT ASSETS

As at 31 March 2020, the Group had net current assets of approximately
HK$217.9 million (2019: HK$200.2 million). The increase in net current asset
position was mainly attributable to the net profit generated from the Group’s
operations during FY2020, offset by declaration and payment of final dividend in
respect of FY2019 to the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders’)
during the Year.

The Group's policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity requirements and its
compliance with covenants in relation to banking facility agreements, to ensure
that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of
funding from the banks to meet its liquidity requirements. The Board is not aware
of any liquidity issue that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

The Group's capital expenditures for FY2020 amounted to approximately
HK$ 1.4 million (2019: HK$0.9 million), which was incurred for the purchase of
property and equipment.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group's revenue-generating activities and bank borrowings were transacted
in Hong Kong Dollar, which is the functional currency of the Group. The Board
considers that the Group was not exposed to significant foreign exchange risk,
and had not entered into any financial instrument for hedging. The Board will
review the Group’s foreign exchange risk and exposure from time to time and
will apply hedging where necessary.

USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM LISTING

The shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong (the “Stock Exchange™) on 3 January 2017 through
global offering (the “Global Offering”) as described in the section “Structure and
Condition of the Global Offering” in the prospectus of the Company dated |19
December 2016 (the “Prospectus”).

Based on the offer price of HK$1.20 per share, the net proceeds of the
80,000,000 issued shares received by the Company was approximately HK$69.0
million, after deducting the listing expenses borne by the Company. The
proposed application of net proceeds as stated in the Prospectus has been
adjusted according to the principles and proposed percentage of utilisation as
specified in the section headed “Future Plans and Use of Proceeds” of the
Prospectus.

12 SH GROUP (HOLDINGS) LIMITED / Annual Report 2019-20

RBEEFE
R-ZE-_EF=A=+—8 K£EH
RBEEFELHA2EI708ET(Z
T—NF 282088 n) - iBHEEF
BENMFEXAR S _SHELAEEH
EEENGR  ERAFERAAF
BRERTREDERAENZZE—NEF
B R HARS B PR 8Y o

AEBNBRSEMEEERDEST
KEREBTHRBTHEHEARZRDN
B BREEFZTHRASHERRE
RITRAHEEERE - AENER
BB K EFSNTLETMRBE
TR EH A RBE R AL L HIEE
NHERERERE °

BEAREX

AEBR - ZE-_TUHENEARIO A
408 B TT(—ZZE—NFE 08B T)
TELBREMERREMES -

S [ B

6% B B A W e Y U B S ERTT B R A
AEENDRERELRS - EFER
A AEEYERHEKRINERR - I
BEIVERNEMTAETEH -EFE
TG AT~ By 2R A% 2N £% [ B S B LB Ko A HE
WA R = 2R AL+ -

LHARAEREFERAR
KRARROHR_ZE—+tFE—R=BEFEB
2HREE(2REE]) (WARRBEHG
—E-RET-ATHBEHEERER
((HRRER]) T I 2REENRE KK
] —EnFrit) & BB X B ([ B3P )
TREM e

ERNBEEERAG 1208 7T - &M
RATFEENETRY - AA R 2 UER
80,000,000 f% B Z1T A% 10 B FT 15 sk IRH 58
H B 69008 BT - MIREFRFTMLFTB K
IHFENETEARERERREREAIR
RETE RIS RIER® | — & pTii /Y R
AIRZEZEAE D LEL AR -



Up to 31 March 2020, the net proceeds were fully utilised as follows:

Management Discussion and Analysis
BEERWR DT

BE_T_TF=-_HA=+—H"  FIEX

HFHELEHBANT
Unutilised
Utilisation amount
up to asat
Net proceeds 3| March 2020 3| March 2020
from Global BE iy
Offering “ECEF e 33
2R¥E =ZA=t—-H =HA=t+-H
FENERE EBR WABALHE
HK$'million HK$'million HK$'million
BEBTT ABERET BEBTT
Intended use "o RERZBWL
Development and expansion of E&M engineering 2 & MIFE M E TR2IRISES
services business 304 304 =
Provision of performance guarantees for FEEBHIREBARE
projects on hand 29.7 29.7 =
Installation of Enterprise Resource Planning system — ZH 2B RIFEI R4
(“ERP system”) ([ERP Z A% ]) 20 20 =
General working capital —REBEES 69 69 -
69.0 69.0 b

Note:

Plans and Use of Proceeds” of the Prospectus.

PERFORMANCE GUARANTEES AND CONTINGENT LIABILITY

Details of the intended use and the implementation plan are set out in the section headed “Future
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As at 31 March 2020, performance guarantees of approximately HK$121.8 RZEZE

million (2019: HK$61.7 million) were given by banks in favour of the Group's

SEEFPAXBEARBREBORENSI

customers as security for the due performance and observance of the Group’s B2I80BEBIT(ZE—NF : 61708
obligations under the contracts entered into between the Group and its  JT) " fEAASEZERITRETHEY
customers. If the Group fails to provide satisfactory performance to its customers FPREIZEHBETEENER - A%

to whom performance guarantees have been given, such customers may demand
the banks to pay to them the sum or sum stipulated in such demand. The Group
will become liable to compensate such banks accordingly. The performance
guarantees will be released upon completion of the contracts work.

The Group had no contingent liability as at 31 March 2020 and 2019.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEER R DT

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 March 2020, the Group'’s leasehold land and buildings amounted to
approximately HK$19.2 million (31 March 2019: HK$19.9 million) were pledged
with a bank to secure the bank borrowings and banking facilities including
performance guarantees issued by the bank.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 March 2020, the Group had capital commitments of approximately
HK$0.2 million in relation to acquisition of property and equipment contracted
but not provided for (2019: HK$0.7 million).

EMPLOYEES, TRAINING AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 March 2020, the Group had a total of 146 employees (2019: 120). The
remuneration offered to employees generally includes salaries, medical benefits
and bonus. In general, the Group determines salaries of its employees based on
each employee's qualification, position and seniority. The Group provides training
to its employees according to the work requirements.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

The Group did not have any material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures during FY2020.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD
The Group did not have any significant investments held as at 31 March 2020.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR CAPITAL ASSETS

The Group did not have other plans for material investments or capital assets as
at 31 March 2020.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

INTRODUCTION

The Group is principally engaged in providing E&M engineering services in Hong
Kong. We engage in projects related to the supply, installation and maintenance
of MVAC system, low voltage electrical system and other E&M systems, including
fire services, plumbing and drainage, in both private and public sectors in Hong
Kong.

This Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG") Report is established in
accordance with the Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”). Our policies in connection with
material ESG issues arising from our principal business for the Year, along with
our performances around the issues are disclosed in this report.

ESG GOVERNANCE

The vision of the Group is to carry out our businesses sustainably and create
values to our environment, communities, people and stakeholders. With this
belief, the Group is dedicated to fulfilling expectations from stakeholders on our
ESG practices. To achieve this, we have established a governance framework to
align ESG governance with our strategic development and to embed ESG
matters into our operations. Our corporate social responsibility structure is
divided into two main components, the Board and an ESG working group, which
is comprised of the chief executive officer, executive Director and senior
management of different departments.

The Board is responsible for overseeing the governance and development of the
Group's ESG management approach, strategies, priorities and objectives. The
ESG working group is delegated by the Board to design the implementation plan
in consistence with the overall ESG direction set forth by the Board and is
responsible for coordinating with different departments for the execution of ESG
measures and policies. The ESG working group is also accountable for the
collection and analysis of internal ESG data, feedback review of external
stakeholders, communication to the Board for key ESG matters, as well
preparation of the ESG report.

The Board has delegated its responsibilities (with relevant authorities) of risk
management and internal control to the audit committee of the Company, who
oversees the management in the design, implementation and monitoring of the
risk management and internal control systems, and ensures that ESG risks are
being covered. Annual review on the effectiveness of risk management and
internal control systems has been conducted and the results are reported to the
Board regularly.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RIR - HEREQWE

COMPLIANCE

To ensure compliance with laws and regulations, the ESG working group is
responsible for monitoring legal updates and statutory requirements relevant to
our Group's business. In response to new regulatory obligations, the ESG working
group has conducted prompt communication to affected departments and levels
of the Group for their immediate actions to eradicate potential non-compliance
matters.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

We value stakeholders’ feedback to understand the ESG issues that they
prioritise and concern. Our stakeholders range from Shareholders, employees,
customers, suppliers and subcontractors, and to the community as a whole. We
seek to proactively engage them, maintain ongoing relationships as well as
understand their views through multiple communication channels. The following
list summarises the communication channels between stakeholders and us:

aR

BIERESTEREES ESGLIEHEABER
EEREAANEEEREEN AR LA
EERK BEUFTNEEETR  ESGT
EEE R REREEZZERIHIER
Bl NEMAEBITEERBENT
BHEE -

FhE2H

BHERENHENRE  WTHERESE
FERBNBIINESGERE - BFIFHE
BREER B8 TP HER &KX
EREANEETR - RASKEEZE
BBEREBBIBEEM  RIFHE
MBI RIA LK TREM PSR - TRE
FrinEERMZEHEERE

Stakeholder Group Communication Methods EhEER BEEE
Shareholders —  Annual general meetings R& R — BERAFA=E

— Annual and interim reports — EERFRHSRE

—  Company's website — AT

—  Press releases, if necessary — FEB(mERE)
Employees —  Staff meetings == — BIgx

—  Company activities — REEH

—  Staff training — BT
Customers —  Feedback =] — k£

—  Satisfaction surveys — mEERAT
Suppliers and subcontractors —  Quotation and tendering processes HrERE & — FRERBEERRE

—  Quotation and installation processes KGR — WERLERRE

—  Supplier and subcontractor evaluation — HEREREER

mechanism A H |

Community —  Community services TE — HERE

—  Company’s website — QR

—  Press releases, if necessary — FERE (AN E)
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

Based on stakeholder engagement through the aforementioned channels, we
have performed a materiality assessment to identify relevant ESG issues and
assess their materiality to our businesses as well as to our stakeholders. The
materiality assessment process is set out as follows:

S Identification of potential issues: Initial screening of related issues with
reference to the Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide
as set out in the Listing Rules (“ESG Guide") and benchmarking suitable
peers’ material ESG issues;

0 Stakeholder engagement: Internal and external stakeholders have been
invited to provide rating and comments to each ESG issue through
questionnaires and established engagement channels;

. Prioritisation: The results from issues identification and stakeholder
engagement have been consolidated and considered to assess and
prioritise ESG risks; and

. Validation: The ESG working group has validated and confirmed the key

material ESG issues, and how they link to the respective aspects and key
performance indicators (“KPIs") of the ESG Guide.

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ESG ISSUES FOR THE GROUP

ESG aspects set out in the
Listing Rules Material ESG issues to the Group
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Environmental
Al Emissions . Air and Greenhouse Gases Emissions

o Waste Management

A2 Use of Resources' . Energy Consumption and Efficiency
A3 The Environment and . Noise Control
Natural Resources . Environmental Management System

Due to our business nature as an E&M engineering service provider, our operation does not involve
any significant consumption of water and packaging materials and therefore, the relevant disclosures

are not applicable.
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RIR - HEREQWE

ESG aspects set out in the EHRAFE HEAKEREED
Listing Rules Material ESG issues to the Group ESGHIBASE ESGHEE
Social HEFE
Bl Employment 0 Equal Opportunities Bl M - RFHE
s Recruitment and Termination . HER&IEER
. Promotion, Remuneration and Working 0 BH - HMRIE
Conditions (EEs
B2 Health and Safety «  Occupational Health and Safety REREREZE « BEREEZE
B3 Development and Training Employee Training and Career B3ZEKIEI - (EEEIIKEE
Development TR
B4 Labor Standards . Prohibition of Child Labor and Forced B4 45 T %8 s BT RSRA
Labor CeL )
B5 Supply Chain Management = Supply Chain Monitoring BotfEfEEIE . {LEGEESA
B6 Product Responsibility +  Quality Management B6EmAIT - mEER
. Protection of Customer Information and . REZPERK
Intellectual Property Rights MBERE
B7 Anti-corruption . Preventing Bribery and Corruption B/ REE o B IEBRRE R B TE
B8 Community Investment +  Charity Support B8t [RIRE . REREERD
ENVIRONMENTAL RBEAH

The Group is committed to manage long-term environmental risks and impacts
to maintain a sustainable business. The “Environmental and Occupational Health
and Safety Manual” (the “Manual”) has been set up to offer guidance for the
minimisation of environmental footprint. The Manual has been formulated in
accordance with the International Organisation for Standardisation (“ISO")
14001:2015 environmental management system and Occupational Health and
Safety Assessment Series (“OHSAS”) 18001:2007. We have delegated adequate
resources to implement and adhere to the Manual, in order to achieve high
environmental performances at both our offices and sites. We have cooperated
with employees and contractors to enhance their awareness towards
environmental protection, in key areas including greenhouse gases (“GHG")
emissions, energy consumption and efficiency, waste disposal, air quality and
noise. In addition, we have ensured employees of all levels understand the
environmental aspects of their duties and are capable to carry out such
obligations.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

The Group closely monitors the compliance of legal and regulatory requirements
from both local and international authorities. The Air Pollution Control
Ordinance, Waste Disposal Ordinance, Water Pollution Control Ordinance,
Noise Control Ordinance, Building Energy Efficiency Ordinance, and relevant
regulations as set out by the Environmental Protection Department and Electrical
and Mechanical Service Department of the HKSAR, are identified to have
significant impact on the Group in the environmental aspect.

During the Year, the Group has not identified any material non-compliance with
environment-related laws and regulations in Hong Kong.

Air and Greenhouse Gases Emissions

The major source of our emissions is the indirect GHG emissions generated
from our electricity and paper consumption in offices. The total indirect GHG
emissions and intensity for FY2020 were 72.4 tonnes CO,e (2019: 67.3 tonnes)
and 0.0038 tonnes COse per square foot area (2019: 0.0043 tonnes per square
foot area) respectively. The increase in the absolute value of GHG emissions was
mainly attributable to (i) the increase in electricity consumption, which was
primarily due to the additional office area rented in FY2020, and (i) the increase
in paper consumption, which was in line with the growth of the business size of
our Group in FY2020. The intensity of GHG emission remained at a similar level
comparing to that of FY2019 with slight improvement, owing to our continuous
effort in implementing various energy saving initiatives such as using energy
efficient appliances in our offices during FY2020.

Due to our business nature of providing project management services, the actual
engineering works are performed by our subcontractors, therefore no significant
air emissions were generated directly by the Group during the Year. Even though,
we are committed to comply with the Air Pollution Control Ordinance by
managing our subcontractors’ environmental practices through contractual
obligations and site monitoring. The Air Pollution Control Ordinance requires the
development of working methods to minimise dust impacts on the surrounding
environment at a construction site. Emission limits for vehicles in terms of
pollutants including Sulphur Dioxide have also been specified in the ordinance.
To this end, the Group requires the covering of all construction materials in
transit by our subcontractors to avoid the spreading of dusts and particles to the
surrounding during transportation. Additionally, to ensure the emission levels
stipulated by law to be met, the Group encourages our subcontractors to use
low-sulphur diesel for vehicles and to conduct regular inspection and
maintenance.
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RIR - HEREQWE

To be in line with the Environmental Protection Department’s effort in phasing
out ozone depleting substances, the Group advocates the avoidance of ozone
depleting refrigerants such as Hydrochlorofluorocarbons in our projects, and
promote the use of more environmentally friendly replacements such as
Chlorofluorocarbon. Also, the purchase of refrigerants is made only when
necessary to prevent leakage and pollution at construction sites due to the
excessive chemical storage.

Moreover, for projects involving asbestos, we require our specialist
subcontractors to assign only workers with relevant qualifications and experience
to perform the contracted works, and they should be supervised by a consultant
registered with Environment Protection Department.

We have also undertaken a series of measures to control the indirect GHG
emissions. For details, please refer to section “Energy Consumption and
Efficiency” below.

Waste Management

Paper is identified to be the major source of non-hazardous waste produced by
our Group. No hazardous waste was produced directly by the Group due to our
business nature. During FY2020, 6.4 tonnes of paper (2019: 4.9 tonnes) were
consumed by the Group. The increment was in line with the growth of the
business size of our Group. The Group continued to recycle used paper during
FY2020 and 1.8 tonnes of paper (2019: 0.5 tonnes) were recycled. For waste
reduction and operation efficiency purposes, the Group has launched various
paperless initiatives as follows:

. Deployment of electronic communications instead of circulation of printed
notices, as well as electronic file storage and sharing to reduce waste at
source;

. Initiating the “Collection of Recycle Paper Program” to advocate the
sorting of paper, so that paper containing non-confidential data is recycled
for better use in South East Asia;

. Used paper collection for recycled use was implemented;

0 Supporting government environment protection scheme on the Waste
Electrical & Electronic Equipment (“WEEE") removal services for recycled
use; and

. Encouraging employees to carry out paper-saving office practices such as

duplex printing and to use recycling paper for printing internal documents
to minimise the use of paper.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Despite that the Group does not produce hazardous waste directly, we have
imposed stringent controls on any potential hazardous waste generated by our
subcontractors. The Group has established guidelines to require our
subcontractors to implement sound waste management mechanism and
measures, and to adopt practices in compliance with legislations including the
Waste Disposal Ordinance. All wastes generated on site are required to be
packed, labelled and stored securely in a proper manner, especially for chemical
wastes. Further, subcontractors shall be registered as a chemical waste producer
to produce chemical waste. A licensed collector should be appointed by the
responsible subcontractors to handle and dispose of both construction and
chemical wastes in a systematical manner to designated sites. Records of disposal
should also be maintained for inspections internally as well as by the
Environmental Protection Department.

In support with the Government's environment protection scheme on WEEE,
the Group has a disposal campaign for obsolete or damaged office electrical
equipment to ensure proper handling of electrical waste and for recycling
purpose.

Energy Consumption and Efficiency

During FY2020, the amount and intensity of electricity consumed directly by the
Group were 100,444 kWh (2019: 85,676 kWh) and 5.3 kWh per square foot of
office area respectively (2019: 5.4 KWh per square foot of office area). Although
the absolute amount of electricity consumption has increased comparing to that
of FY2019, which was mainly attributable to the additional office area rented in
FY2020, the electricity consumed per square foot of office area had been
reduced during FY2020.

The Group is dedicated to control electricity consumption as well as the
corresponding GHG emissions, and hence the following energy-saving principles
and initiatives have been developed and implemented to align sustainability
concept into our business operation during the Year:

. Eliminating unnecessary energy consumption by switching off idle office
equipment, lighting and air-conditioning, especially when leaving conference
rooms after meetings and interviews;

. Using energy efficient appliances in our offices, such as LED lightings and
bottled water machine with Grade | Energy Label;

. Selecting office equipment with energy label issued by Electrical and
Mechanical Services Department for purchase, apart from price
considerations;
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. Raising awareness among employees by regular training and
communications on best energy saving practices;

e Encouraging employees to commute by public transport/mass transit to
reduce roadside emissions; and

. Incorporating energy saving behaviors into daily business practices.

Besides, we endeavor to mitigate climate change not only through proper control
of the electricity consumption within the Group, but also through introduction of
energy and water-efficient E&M systems to our clients. Products such as variable
speed motors and variable speed fans for ventilation systems, water-cooled heat
rejection systems, and condensate water collection system are offered to our
clients to strive hand-in-hand towards a more sustainable global community.

Noise Control

The Group is aware of the noise generated from production facilities of our
subcontractors at construction sites, as a result of E&M works involving heavy
mechanical machines and equipment. At such, we require our subcontractors to
adhere strictly to all relevant local laws and regulations, including the Noise
Control Ordinance.

For instance, only equipment with government-approved noise emission labels
are allowed to be used and such equipment can only be operated within
restricted hours to minimise nuisance to the surrounding environment and
residents. Regular noise test and controls have been conducted before
commencement and during the ongoing process of construction works to ensure
noise generated within acceptable levels stipulated in laws and regulations.
Soundproof enclosures have been installed for equipment and facilities generating
loud noise, while shock absorbing measures have been in place to reduce noise
pollution. Close monitoring of our subcontractors, such as onsite inspection is
performed to prevent and detect any potential legal violation.

Environmental Management System

The Group is obliged to proactively strengthen and optimise acts in mitigating
environmental impacts of our operations. Not only do we achieve environmental
compliance, but also endeavor to attain more sustainable work environment and
production process. We regularly perform environmental assessments to identify
potential environmental risks in workplace, production sites of subcontractors, as
well as the surrounding areas to ensure alignment with our environmental
commitment.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

In addition, the Group has established an ISO 14001:2015 accredited
environmental management system with a purpose to emphasise our
environmental stewardship throughout our business operation. The key features
are summarised as below:

5 Identify, evaluate and assess environmental risks as well as relevant
statutory requirements on an ongoing basis;

0 Engage major stakeholders such as employees and subcontractors during
the risk assessment process, and jointly develop appropriate mitigation
plans;

. Establish measurable and practicable environmental performance objectives

and targets, and to conduct regular status evaluations;

o Design project plans with consideration of environmental risks and impacts,
and ensure routine monitoring of plan achievement progress;

0 Launch environmental protection measures and conduct timely reviews
over operating effectiveness of the controls;

. Ensure the availability of resources, and define roles and responsibilities to
facilitate effective environmental performance management;

0 Investigate, handle and document environmental incidents properly in
accordance with relevant legislations and standards, and identify preventive
and corrective measures; and

. Perform management review of the environmental management system,
through for instance analysis of monitoring results of environmental
measures, to assess its adequacy and effectiveness, and identify
opportunities for improvement.
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SOCIAL
Equal Opportunities

The Group recognises employees as an important asset to drive our business’
future success, and therefore we invest in and optimise our human capital by
driving towards a more desirable workplace. We believe that upholding the open
and faimess values is key in attracting and retaining talents.

We embrace the principle of equal employment opportunities and value diversity
within our workforce. Employees are treated with dignity and respect, free from
any kinds of discrimination and harassment.

All decisions regarding recruitment, termination, training, remuneration,
promotion of employees are based on personal capabilities, experience and
qualifications without any sort of discrimination on race, skin color, religion,
nationality, gender, age, disability or other characteristics.

Our human resources management adheres strictly to the Sex Discrimination
Ordinance, Disability Discrimination Ordinance and the Family Status
Discrimination Ordinance in Hong Kong. During the Year, we are not aware of
any case of material non-compliance with employment and labor-related laws
and regulations in Hong Kong.

Recruitment and Termination

Moreover, the Group has established a structured recruitment and termination
process, which is laid out in our human resources policy. All applicants must
undergo formal and objective assessments to determine whether they have the
aptitude and competence to meet the requirements of the Group's business
development. Examination and approval procedures are properly in place to
ensure fairmess in the recruitment process. Concerning employee termination,
the Group observes strictly to the guidelines in Employment Ordinance,
especially in case of forced termination. Any disciplinary action and violations to
company policy may entail suspension or termination of employees, and such
circumstances and procedures for handling have been clearly stated in the
internally-circulated Employee Handbook of the Group (the “Employee
Handbook).
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Promotion, Remuneration and Working Conditions

The Group has formulated remuneration policy and evaluation mechanism with
stringent adherence to objectivity and faimess principles. We offer competitive
remuneration package to our employees to continue to retain and attract talents.
Staff remuneration is determined on the basis of market levels, profitability of the
Group, regulatory requirements, and individual performances assessed through
our performance appraisal mechanism. Supervisors are responsible for carrying
out systematic performance analysis of their subordinates based on criteria such
as their goal achievements, strengths, attitudes and development opportunities.
Such evaluation results will be transformed into basis for promotion, wage
adjustment and bonus. The Minimum Wage Ordinance, Employment Ordinance
and Employees’ Compensation Ordinance are closely monitored to ensure
compliance with legal requirements in employee compensation. We respect staff
privacy and hence have adopted measures in keeping staff remuneration data
confidential.

Staff are entitled to adequate annual leave, sickness allowance, maternity and
patemity leave, as well as rest days with reference to the Employment Ordinance
and General Holidays Ordinance. We have stipulated reasonable and fair working
hours, work allocation and arrangements to accommodate for work-life balance
of our employees. In order to raise employee morale and cohesion, the Group
has organised staff gatherings such as luncheons and internal workshops to
enhance staff well-being.

Occupational Health and Safety

The Group is committed to control and eliminate any cause of occupational
issues, and we put health and safety of our employees, subcontractors and other
relevant parties as one of our foremost responsibilities. Therefore, we have made
active efforts to attain the highest standard of work safety practices. With a set of
occupational health and safety management system policy accredited with
OHSAS 18001:2007 certification developed, the following principles and
approaches are implemented among employees and subcontractors:

e To comply with statutory and contractual requirements on occupational
health and safety and relevant codes of practice;

0 To take occupational health and safety into account when planning
engineering activities;

e To continuously improve health and safety measures, performance and

management skills through a system of monitoring, analysis and feedback;

. To provide adequate resources, training and instructions to implement
effective safety measures;
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. To ensure an effective and efficient communication system on safety
management and incident reporting; and

e To maintain continual improvement of occupational health and safety
performance by identifying safety risks and minimising the impacts.

Safety risk assessment is conducted to review and identify all health and safety
related risks before commencement of projects. A safety team consists of
members possessing relevant safety qualifications has been assigned for
performing the safety risk assessment, and to incorporate the appropriate
safeguards practices in the project plans. Operational safety protocols have been
formulated and regularly reviewed, for all production personnel’s strict adherence.
Site workers are also briefed for potential safety hazards by the safety team prior
to commencement of work to minimise chances of accidents. Site inspections
and regular monitoring are in place to ensure safety protocols are not violated
and are operating effectively.

To enhance employee’s safety awareness and response to emergency events, the
Group organises safety trainings for staff on regular basis, for instance in relation
to fire hazards and construction safety. Such training aims at enhancing
employee’s familiarisation with means of escape, skills of evacuation in accidents,
and appropriate response in times of unprecedented accidents.

Relevant statutory requirements, including Occupational Safety and Health
Ordinance is strictly observed. In particular, according to the Employee’s
Compensation Ordinance, the employer is liable to pay compensation in respect
of injuries or fatalities sustained by its employees as a result of accidents arising
out of and in the course of employment. During the Year, we were not aware of
any case of material non-compliance with occupational health and safety-related
laws and regulations in Hong Kong.

Employee Training and Career Development

The Group has attached great importance to the cultivation of talents, for the
purpose of more satisfying job performance and continuous development of
employees. Therefore, the Group has devised and implemented a wide spectrum
of training activities, which consist of induction programs and external training.

Induction programs aim to introduce new employees to our Group, with sharing
of our Group’s corporate structure, culture, and other important business
information such as policies relating to workplace safety. Through proper
induction programs, employees can better acclimatise to our Group, so as to be
prepared to thrive in their new positions.
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Through external trainings, we equip our staff with relevant knowledge, technical
skills, and updated regulatory awareness, so that employees can continue create
value to our Group under an ever-changing business environment. During the
Year, our employees attended a series of training courses on diverse topics
ranging from technical to general aspects such as Building Information Modeling
training, building energy efficiency training and professional workshop such as
certificate in plumbing services. The Group will continue to provide training
support to our employees of all levels to enable their professional growth and
development within the Group.

In terms of career development, we support our employees to obtain
professional qualifications for their sharpening of professional job knowledge and
strengthening of managerial skills. Moreover, under our performance feedback
mechanism, supervisors are responsible for providing their subordinates with
feedback on their job accomplishments and areas of improvements. We also
encourage employees to maintain an open discussion with their department
management personnel in relation to their aspired career path and support
required.

Prohibition of Child Labor and Forced Labor

The Group believes that labour relations characterised by mutual respect and
equality will enhance employee morale and unity. Therefore, we adopted a range
of policies to protect the interest of employees, for instance, we forbid any
unlawful employment including child and forced labor. All of our employees must
have reached the statutory age and possess identification documents before the
commencement of work. The employment contracts should be signed voluntarily
and without any coercion. We also require our subcontractors to register their
employees with identification document and license number to prevent the
employment of workers who are not legally eligible to take up any job duties in
Hong Kong.

During the Year, the Group was not aware of any case of material non-
compliance with child labor and forced labor-related laws and regulations in
Hong Kong, including Immigration Ordinance, in relation to unauthorised entrants
to Hong Kong and employment of illegal workers.

Supply Chain Monitoring

The Group emphasises the quality of subcontractors, suppliers and service
providers in maintaining high standards of services offered to our clients. Hence,
we engage supply chain partners after close scrutiny of their practices and
business background under our supplier evaluation mechanism. In particular we
opt for partners who are environmentally and socially responsible.
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In order to ensure the service quality and continuous adoption of environmental
and social practices of our supply chain partners, we maintain close
communication and monitoring with our counterparts. Regular evaluations such
as onsite inspections and assessments are conducted and any exception or non-
compliance are reported to the management immediately. Timely remediation of
the risks identified is required. Supply chain partners whose accreditation or
production method fall short of our required environmental and social standards
will be suspended.

Quality Management

We have adopted a customer-centric principle with a primary focus on
customers’ experience of our quality services. To achieve this aim, the Group has
established a quality management system (“QMS”) policy manual, which has
been accredited with ISO 9001:2015 certification. It provides guidelines to our
employees for meeting our objectives as follows:

o To provide effective, reliable and consistent services to satisfy the demands
and expectations of our clients;

. To comply with all relevant standards, statutory and regulatory
requirements;

o To provide appropriate training for employees to enhance skills and
knowledge to match with quality requirements of works and services;

. To monitor and improve the effectiveness of QMS by conducting periodic
internal reviews, inspections, data analysis and enhancement;

. To understand client expectation and devise proper planning before
commencement of projects to ensure accommodation of client needs; and

o To obtain feedback throughout and after the engagement from clients to
identify the improvement areas of QMS.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Protection of Customer Information and Intellectual Property Rights

The Group advocates the protection of privacy and confidential information of
our employees, customers as well as intellectual property rights. With this in
mind, we handle and store sensitive information with prudence and care, and act
in strict accordance with the six data protection principles, including data
collection, accuracy, use, security, openness and access and correction.
Information including Group strategies, past, current or potential customers,
services providers, suppliers and subcontractors shall be used for performing job
duties and such information shall not be taken away from our premises physically
or through company network unless otherwise approved.

Furthermore, employees are required to acknowledge and comply with the
confidentiality clause as stated in the Employee Handbook. Any unauthorised
access, disclosure or use of information will be subject to disciplinary actions
including termination and legal action.

During the Year, we are not aware of any case of material non-compliance
regarding service quality and data privacy-related laws and regulations in Hong
Kong, including the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance.

Preventing Bribery and Corruption

All members of our staff, including the management, are required to strictly
comply with the Employee Handbook which includes prohibition of all forms of
corruption and fraud such as bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.
Therefore, an internal control system has been established to control any
potential fraud risk. We have also regularly engaged independent internal control
adviser to evaluate our internal control system to ensure effective corporate
governance.

In addition, a whistle-blowing mechanism has also been formulated providing a
confidential channel to file complaint regarding fraudulent and unethical acts.
Awareness towards prevention of bribery has been boosted among employees
and management levels through provision of training from relevant organisations
such as Independent Commission Against Corruption and legal professionals.
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Furthermore, our policy forbids employees to possess any financial or other
personal interest in transactions between the Group and our business partners.
Potential conflicts of interest that may increase the risk of bribery and bid-rigging
will be monitored. If there is any perceived, potential or actual conflict of interest,
employees are required to report to the management immediately.

During the Year, the Group was not aware of any case of material non-
compliance with corruption-related laws and regulations in Hong Kong, including
the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance.

Community Investment

The Group is committed to the undertaking of corporate social responsibility and
the promotion of social harmony. Harnessing our corporate resources, we persist
in contributing to the society by means of donations, sponsorships, and voluntary
commitments. In addition, we encourage and support our employees to take
part in voluntary services and help the underprivileged.

During the Year, our Group has been actively involved in community events. For
example, the Group had been invited to send employees as guest speakers for a
human resources management program of a university. In addition, our Group
has also supported a non-profit organisation “Suicide Prevention Services”
through monetary donations for their charity work in providing aids to the
communities.
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Corporate Governance Report

The Company is committed to maintain good corporate governance standard
and procedures to ensure the integrity, transparency and quality of disclosure in
order to enhance its shareholders’ value.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company aims to achieve high standard of corporate governance which is
crucial to the development of the Group and safeguard the interests of the
Shareholders.

The Company has adopted the code provisions set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix |4 to the Listing
Rules as its own code of corporate governance.

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company was in compliance with the code
provisions set out in the CG Code during the Year.

NON-COMPLIANCE WITH RULES 3.10(1), 3.10(2) AND 3.21 OF THE
LISTING RULES

Following the pass away of Mr. To Yan Ming Edmond (“Mr. To”) as independent
non-executive Director on 28 August 2019, the Company only had two
independent non-executive Directors, thus the number of the independent non-
executive Directors fell below the minimum number required under Rule 3.10(1)
of the Listing Rules. The Company also failed to comply with Rule 3.10(2) of the
Listing Rules with regard to at least one of the independent non-executive
directors must have appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise. As a result of the insufficient number of
independent non-executive Directors, the Company had also failed to comply
with the requirements set out in Rule 3.2| of the Listing Rules with regard to the
minimum number of members and the composition of the audit committee of
the Company (the “Audit Committee”). Dr. Law Man Wah (“Dr. Law") was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director on | November 2019,
which was within three months from the date of pass away of Mr. To as required
by Rules 3.1 and 3.23 of the Listing Rules.

Upon the appointment of Dr. Law, who has appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise, as
independent non-executive Director on | November 2019, the number of
independent non-executive Directors satisfied the minimum number required
under Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules. The Company also met the requirement
set out in Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules with regard to at least one of the
independent non-executive Directors must have appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise. In addition,
the Company had complied with the requirements set out under Rule 3.21 of
the Listing Rules with regard to the composition of the Audit Committee.
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code") as set out in Appendix |0 to the
Listing Rules as the code of conduct regarding securities transactions by the
Directors. Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, all the Directors have
confirmed that they have complied with the required standards set out in the
Model Code throughout the Year.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the Company, and is
responsible for setting up the overall strategy as well as reviewing the operation
and financial performance of the Group. The Board reserved for its decision or
consideration matters covering overall Group strategy, major acquisitions and
disposals, annual budgets, annual and interim results, recommendations on
Directors’ appointment or re-appointment, approval of major capital transactions
and other significant operational and financial matters. The management was
delegated the authority and responsibility by the Board for the daily management
of the Group. In addition, the Board has also delegated various responsibilities to
the Board committees. Further details of these committees are set out in this
report.

The Board currently consists of six Directors including three executive Directors,
and three independent non-executive Directors:

Executive Directors

Mr. Yu Cheung Choy (Chairman)
Mr. Lau Man Ching (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Yu Ho Chi

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lam Yim Nam
Mr. Lee Wing Kee
Dr. Law Man Wah
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Corporate Governance Report

Save for (i) Mr. Yu Cheung Choy is the father of Mr. Yu Ho Chi, and (ii) Mr. Yu
Cheung Choy and Mr. Lau Man Ching entered into the acting-in-concert
confirmation on 7 July 2016, whereby they confirmed that, among other things,
since 2| July 2004, they have been actively cooperating with one another and
acting in concert, with an aim to achieving consensus and concerted action on all
operating and financing decisions and major affairs relating to each member
company within the Group; the Board members have no financial, business,
family or other material/relevant relationships with each other. Such balanced
Board composition is formed to ensure strong independence exists across the
Board. The composition of the Board reflects the balanced skills and experience
for effective leadership. The biographical information of the Directors are set out
on pages 51 to 55 under the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors
and Senior Management"” of this annual report.

Directors’ Training

According to the code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all directors should
participate in continuous professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution to the board remains
informed and relevant.

All Directors have participated in continuous professional development and
provided to the Company a record of training they received for the Year.
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The individual training record of each Director received for the Year is U AFEZERTEEIHE AL
summarised below: FECEE :
Training Received
(Notes)
EEZ I
Name of Directors EEpR (Bft5E)
Mr. Yu Cheung Choy (Chairman) MR EE(FE) 2
Mr. Lau Man Ching (Chief Executive Officer) BN E K& (TTHAEE) l,2
Mr. Yu Ho Chi F]IJ/|:| EI;EE |,2
Mr. Lam Yim Nam MK E A |
Mr. Lee Wing Kee POKESLE |
Dr. Law Man Wah BNEB L 12
Notes: B &E
Reading articles, training materials and updates as regards legal and regulatory changes and matters of MEEREAENEEEDARBITESEEMR
relevance to the Directors in the discharge of their duties. BEF2XE  BIMHREHEN -
2. Attending training courses/seminars/conferences/workshops on topics relating to the directors’ duties 2. 2MEEESHE R LR IIZRE

and the Listing Rules.

MRS THEY -
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Code provision A2.1 of the CG Code requires that the responsibilities between
the chairman and the chief executive officer should be segregated.

The two positions are held separately by two individuals to ensure their
respective independence, accountability and responsibility. Mr. Yu Cheung Choy
is the Chairman and Mr. Lau Man Ching is the Chief Executive Officer. Mr. Yu is
in charge of the management of the Board and strategic planning of the Group.
Mr. Lau is responsible for the day-to-day management of the Group's business.
The Company considered that the division of responsibilities between the
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer is clearly established.

Code provision A.2.7 of the CG Code requires that the chairman should at least
annually holds meetings with the independent non-executive directors without
the presence of others directors. During the Year, the Chairman had a meeting
with the independent non-executive Directors without the presence of others
Director.

Independent non-executive Directors

The independent non-executive Directors are appointed for a specific term and
they are also subject to the retirement by rotation at least once every three years
in accordance with the articles of association of the Company (the “Articles of
Association”).

The three independent non-executive Directors are persons of high caliber, with
academic and professional qualifications in the fields of construction, accounting
and finance. With their experience gained from various sectors, they provide
strong support towards the effective discharge of the duties and responsibilities
of the Board. Each independent non-executive Director gave a confirmation of
his independence to the Company, and the Company considered each of them
is independent under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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Functions of the Board and Management

The Board is primarily responsible for establishing the overall strategies of the
Group, setting objectives and business development plans, assuming responsibility
of corporate governance and monitoring the performance of senior management.

The management, under the leadership of the executive Directors, is responsible
for implementing the strategies and plans established by the Board and reporting
on the Group’s operations to the Board on a regular basis to ensure effective
performance of the Board's responsibilities.

All the Directors have separate and independent access to the Group’s senior
management to fulfill their duties. Independent professional advice can be sought
to assist the relevant Directors to discharge their duties at the Group's expense
upon their request. All the Directors have been provided with monthly updates
on the Group’s performance and financial position to enable the Board as a
whole and each Director to discharge their duties.

Board Diversity Policy

The Board adopted a board diversity policy on 6 December 2016 (the "“Board
Diversity Policy”) which sets out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board.
The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of diversity in the Board and
is committed to enhancing quality of opportunity in all aspects of its business. The
Company seeks to achieve Board diversity through the consideration against a
range of objective criteria, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills and knowledge.
The Company will also take into consideration its own business model and
specific needs from time to time in determining the optimal composition of the
Board.

The Board delegated certain duties under the Board Diversity Policy to the
nomination committee of the Company (the “Nomination Committee™). The
Nomination Committee will discuss and review the necessity to set measurable
objectives for implementing the Board Diversity Policy from time to time.

The Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity Policy, as
appropriate, to ensure its continued effectiveness from time to time.
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Board Meetings

The Board intends to hold board meetings regularly at least four times a year at
approximately quarterly intervals. Notices of not less than fourteen days will be
given for all regular board meetings to provide all Directors with an opportunity
to attend and propose matters to be discussed in the meeting agenda. Agendas
and accompanying papers shall be sent not less than 3 days before the date of
Board meeting to ensure that the Directors are given sufficient time to review
the documents.

During the Year, the Board held 6 meetings. All Directors are given an
opportunity to include any matter in the agenda for regular Board meetings and
are given sufficient time to review the documents and information to be
discussed in Board meetings in advance. The attendance record of each Director
is set out below:
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Number of

attendance
Name of Directors EEHE H R E
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Yu Cheung Choy (Chairman) MR AL (FE) 6/6
Mr. Lau Man Ching (Chief Executive Officer) BIXFERE (TR AEZ) 6/6
Mr. Yu Ho Chi (Note 1) AER A (MHEE ) 6/6
Independent Non-executive Directors BUHHITESE
Mr. Lam Yim Nam MK m TS 6/6
Mr. Lee Wing Kee oORELLE 6/6
Dr. Law Man Wah (Note 2) B CEE T (MEE2) 3/3
Mr. To Yan Ming Edmond (Note 3) MBS A (FEE3) /1
Notes: Bt 3E

Mr. Yu Ho Chi has been re-designated from a non-executive director to an executive Director with
effect from |3 January 2020.

2 Dr. Law has been appointed as an independent non-executive Director with effect from | November
2019. His attendance above was stated by reference to the number of Board meetings held during his

tenure.

3. Mr. To passed away on 28 August 2019. His attendance above was stated by reference to the

number of Board meeting held during his tenure.

36 SH GROUP (HOLDINGS) LIMITED / Annual Report 2019-20

AR A ERENTERBEANTES - &

—E-FF-ATZRRENR-

2 BEEIR-F-AFt+—A-AEEEABU
FRTEE o LB HREREEE IR
MBI OEEEERAUIIR -

3. HAEER=F-NFNAZ+/\ BB - b
Bz HERED2EAERBRMBTHNESS
BHERBIIR o



Corporate Governance Report

Board minutes are kept by the company secretary of the Company (the
“Company Secretary”) and are open for inspection by the Directors. Every Board
member is entitled to have access to Board papers and related materials and has
unrestricted access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary, and has
the liberty to seek external professional advice if so required.

Appropriate insurance cover has been arranged by the Company in respect of
relevant actions against its Directors.

General Meetings

During the Year, | general meeting of the Company, being the 2019 annual
general meeting of the Company, was held on 28 August 2019.
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Number of
attendance
Name of Directors EENE H IR
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Yu Cheung Choy (Chairman) MRMEE(EE) I/
Mr. Lau Man Ching (Chief Executive Officer) BN E K& (TTEAEE) I/
Mr. Yu Ho Chi (Note 1) G EE (M) I/
Independent Non-executive Directors BYHHITESE
Mr. Lam Yim Nam MR E & I/
Mr. Lee Wing Kee POKESLE /1
Dr. Law Man Wah (Note 2) B EE L (M) N/A T8 A
Mr. To Yan Ming Edmond HER S E 071
Notes: Bk
Mr. Yu Ho Chi has been re-designated from a non-executive director to an executive Director with AESRENIENTEFTRAETANTES 8
effect from |3 January 2020. ZECEF-RAt=HBEM-
2. Dr. Law has been appointed as an independent non-executive Director with effect from | November 2. EREITR_T-—NEF+-—A—BERZERBIL

2019. No general meeting was held since then.

The Board is responsible for maintaining an on-going dialogue with Shareholders
and in particular, uses annual general meeting(s) or other general meetings to

communicate with them and encourage their participation.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Nomination Committee with written terms of
reference on 6 December 2016 and currently consists of three independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Lee Wing Kee (as chairman), Mr. Lam Yim
Nam and Dr. Law Man Wah. The terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee is currently made available on the websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company.

Terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are aligned with the code
provisions set out in the CG Code.

The primary duties and roles of the Nomination Committee include, but are not
limited to, (a) reviewing the structure, size and composition and diversity
(including the skills, knowledge, educational background, experience and diversity)
of the Board at least annually and making recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy; (b)
identifying individuals suitably qualified to become members of the Board and
selecting or making recommendations to the Board in the selection of individuals
nominated for directorships; and (c) assessing the independence of independent
non-executive Directors.

To ensure changes to the Board composition can be managed without undue
disruption, there should be a formal, considered and transparent procedure for
selection, appointment and re-appointment of Directors, as well as plans in place
for orderly succession (if considered necessary), including periodical review of
such plans. The appointment of a new Director (to be an additional Director or
fill a casual vacancy as and when it arises) or any re-appointment of Directors is a
matter for decision by the Board upon the recommendation of the proposed
candidate by the Nomination Committee.

The criteria to be applied in considering whether a candidate is qualified shall be
his or her ability to devote sufficient time and attention to the affairs of the
Company and contribute to the diversity of the Board as well as the effective
carrying out by the Board of the responsibilities which, in particular, are set out as
follows:

(@) participating in Board meetings to bring an independent judgment on issues
of strategy, policy, performance, accountability, resources, key appointments

and standards of conducts;

(b) taking the lead where potential conflicts of interests arise;
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Corporate Governance Report

serving on the Audit Committee, the remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee™) and the Nomination Committee (in the case
of candidate for non-executive Director) and other relevant Board
committees, if invited;

bringing a range of business and financial experience to the Board, giving
the Board and any committee on which he or she serves the benefit of his
or her skills, expertise, and varied backgrounds and qualifications and
diversity through attendance and participation in the Board/committee
meetings;

scrutinising the Company’s performance in achieving agreed corporate
goals and objectives, and monitoring the reporting of performance;

ensuring the committees on which he or she serves to perform their
powers and functions conferred on them by the Board; and

conforming to any requirement, direction and regulation that may from
time to time be prescribed by the Board or contained in the constitutional
documents of the Company or imposed by legislation or the Listing Rules,
where appropriate.

If the candidate is proposed to be appointed as an independent non-executive

Director, his or her independence shall be assessed in accordance with, among
other things, the factors as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, subject to any
amendments as may be made by the Stock Exchange from time to time. Where

applicable, the totality of the candidate’s education, qualifications and experience

shall also be evaluated to consider whether he or she has the appropriate

professional qualifications or accounting or related financial management

expertise for filling the office of an independent non-executive Director with
such qualifications or expertise as required under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing

Rules.
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During the Year, the Nomination Committee held 3 meetings.
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Number of
attendance
Name of Members REHE H IR
Mr. Lee Wing Kee (Chairman) PKELE(FE) 3/3
Mr. Lam Yim Nam MK EEE 313
Dr. Law Man Wah (Note 1) BCER L (M) I/
Mr. To Yan Ming Edmond (Note 2) MRS LA (FEE2) I/
Notes: Bk
Dr. Law has been appointed as an independent non-executive Director with effect from | November BEITR-_T-—NEFE+—A—BABZERBL
2019. His attendance above was stated by reference to the number of Nomination Committee EMITEE - L2 HERET2E HER
meeting held during his tenure. HRBTNREZE SR REBIIR -
2 2. HAEER=ZZ—AFNAZ+ Bt - Lt

Mr. To passed away on 28 August 2019. His attendance above was stated by reference to the

number of Nomination Committee meeting held during his tenure.

A summary of the work performed by the Nomination Committee during the

Year is listed below:

40

assessing the independence of the independent non-executive Directors;
considering the re-election of Directors;

reviewing the structure, size and diversity of the Board;

making recommendation of new Director candidate for the Board's
approval; and

considering the re-designation of a non-executive Director to an executive
Director.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Remuneration Committee with written terms of
reference on 6 December 2016 and currently consists of three independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Lam Yim Nam (as chairman), Mr. Lee Wing
Kee and Dr. Law Man Wah. The terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee is currently made available on the Stock Exchange'’s website and the
Company's website.

Terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are aligned with the code
provisions set out in the CG Code.

The primary duties and roles of the Remuneration Committee include, but not
limited to, (a) making recommendations to the Board on the policy and structure
for the remuneration of all Directors and senior management personnel and on
the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for developing the
policy on such remuneration; (b) making recommendations to the Board on the
specific remuneration packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management; (c) reviewing and approving management's remuneration proposals
with reference to the Board's corporate goals and objectives; and (d) making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of non-executive Directors.
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During the Year, the Remuneration Committee held 2 meetings. RAFE  FMEESERITMAE:E ©
Number of
attendance

Name of Members MEHA H R

Mr. Lam Yim Nam (Chairman) MR mEE(EE) 272

Mr. Lee Wing Kee ok E L L 22

Dr. Law Man Wah (Note 1) BECEE L (M) /1

Mr. To Yan Ming Edmond (Note 2) MRS %A (FHEE2) N/A 38 F

Notes: B &E -

Dr. Law has been appointed as an independent non-executive Director with effect from | November BRELTR _ZE—NF+— R —HEZERBY
2019. His attendance above was stated by reference to the number of Remuneration Committee EMITESE - L2 HEREBT2E LR
meeting held during his tenure. HREBTHHFMEE S SHRETT -

2. Mr. To passed away on 28 August 2019. No Remuneration Committee meeting was held during his 2. HEER=ZZT—AFNAZ+/\ BBkttt - RE

tenure.

In addition to the Remuneration Committee meetings, the Remuneration
Committee also dealt with matters by way of circulation during the Year.
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A summary of the work performed by the Remuneration Committee during the NEEEHNE B @7 TERmmT :

Year is listed below:

e reviewing the bonus proposal for the executive Directors and senior
management for the Year;

. considering the salary review proposal for Directors and senior
management for the financial year ending 31 March 2021;

0 considering the renewal of the terms of appointment of each of executive
Directors and independent non-executive Directors;

. considering and making recommendation to the Board the remuneration
package for the proposed Director; and

0 considering and making recommendation to the Board the remuneration
package in relation to the re-designation of a non-executive Director as an
executive Director.

BERAFEAEHENTEERSRE
BEMIEALER

EERE-_T-—FZ A=+~
BT 8 B B R
Rl 23

EREBATEERBUIIFNTE
ENRER

EREZESFNHFHEE  ARE
EeREAER

ZRARBFANTESAIANTE
ENFMEE YRESFSRLE

=3
R ©

The emoluments payable to Directors and senior management depend on their BN EE ke HK B EENMNES ER T
respective contractual terms under the employment agreements, if any, and is EXEBREBEEBMENASOGE(NE)
fixed by the Board with reference to the recommendation of the Remuneration LHEETSLL2EFWEESNES
Committee, the performance of the Group and the prevailing market conditions. KREBHRIBRIBITMREEE - EF

Details of the remuneration of the Directors and senior management are set out

BREEENFIFISENGEEMB

in note 6 to the consolidated financial statements. AL ©
Senior Management’s Remuneration = E R B B A
Senior Management's remuneration of the Group for the Year falls within the AEBRAFENSRERENZHNN
following bands: FLATEE :
Number of
individuals
A
Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 =2 1,000,000 BT 3
HK$1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001 7& 7T 1,500,000 7T 2
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established the Audit Committee with written terms of reference
on 6 December 2016 and currently consists of three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Dr. Law Man Wah (as chairman), Mr. Lam Yim Nam and Mr.
Lee Wing Kee. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee is currently made
available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

Terms of reference of the Audit Committee are aligned with the code provisions
set out in the CG Code.

The primary duties and roles of the Audit Committee include, but not limited to,
(a) making recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment
and removal of the external auditor, approving the remuneration and terms of
engagement of the external auditor, and any questions of its resignation or
dismissal; (b) monitoring integrity of financial statements and annual report and
accounts, half-year report and, if prepared for publication, quarterly reports, and
reviewing significant financial reporting judgments contained in them; and (c)
reviewing the financial controls, risk management and internal control systems of
the Group.

The Audit Committee meets the external auditor regularly to discuss any area of
concern during the audit. The Audit Committee shall review the interim and
annual reports before submission to the Board. The Audit Committee focuses
not only on the impact of the changes in accounting policies and practices but
also on the compliance with accounting standards, the Listing Rules and the legal
requirements in the review of the Company's interim and annual reports.

During the Year, the Audit Committee held 2 meetings.
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Number of

attendance
Name of Members REHE H R
Dr. Law Man Wah (Chairman) (Note ) EXEEL(FE) (M) I/
Mr. Lam Yim Nam MK m T 22
Mr. Lee Wing Kee POKESLE 2/2
Mr. Yu Ho Chi (Note 2) AER 4 (MEE2) 212
Mr. To Yan Ming Edmond (Note 3) MRS A (FEE3) I/
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Notes:

Dr. Law has been appointed as an independent non-executive Director with effect from | November
2019. His attendance above was stated by reference to the number of Audit Committee meeting

held during his tenure.

Mr. Yu Ho Chi has been re-designated as an executive Director and stepped down as a member of
Audit Committee, both with effect from |3 January 2020. His attendance above was stated by

reference to the number of Audit Committee meetings held up to his cessation date.

Mr. To passed away on 28 August 2019. His attendance above was stated by reference to the

number of Audit Committee meeting held during his tenure.

In addition to the Audit Committee meetings, the Audit Committee also dealt

with matters by way of circulation during the Year.

A summary of the work performed by the Audit Committee during the Year is

listed below:

reviewed the Group's annual financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2019 and interim financial statements for the six months ended 30
September 2019 and the related results announcements, documents and
other matters or issues raised by the external auditor;

reviewed the terms of engagement of the external auditor;

recommended to the Board, for the approval by the Shareholders, of the
re-appointment of the auditor of the Company; and

discussed and confirmed with the management the effectiveness of the
Group's financial reporting process, risk management and internal control
systems.

The Audit Committee noted the existing risk management and internal control
systems of the Group and also noted that review of the same will be carried out
annually.

The accounts for the Year were audited by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu whose

term of office will expire upon the conclusion of the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company (the “2020 AGM”). The Audit Committee has
recommended to the Board the re-appointment of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
as auditor of the Company at the 2020 AGM.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The corporate governance functions are performed by the Board.

The corporate governance functions are to develop and review the Company'’s
policies and practices on corporate governance to comply with the CG Code
and other legal or regulatory requirements, to oversee the Company’s orientation
program for new Director, to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors, to develop, review and monitor the code
of conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors, and to review the Company’s disclosure in the Corporate Governance
Report.

During the Year, the Board had reviewed the training and continuous professional
development of Directors, the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
the Company's disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the Year, the remuneration paid/payable to the Company's auditor is set
out below:
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Fee paid/payable

Services rendered 2R AR Bt BB

HK$’000

THERT

Audit services EIZRT 1,450

Non-audit services* FETAZ IR * 474

Total: SERE 1,924
& The non-audit services mainly include tax compliance services and other advisory services. @ HERRBEZRERBGA ARG RAMENR

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company engaged an external professional company secretarial services
provider, Uni-1 Corporate Services Limited (“Uni-1"), to provide compliance and
full range of company secretarial services to the Group in order to assist the
Group to cope with the changing regulatory environment and to suit different
commercial needs.

Mr. Tse Kam Fai (“Mr. Tse"), the representative of Uni-1, was appointed as the
named Company Secretary.
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Mr. Lau Man Ching, an executive Director and the Chief Executive Officer, is the
primary point of contact at the Company for the Company Secretary.

According to the requirements of Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, Mr. Tse has
taken no less than |5 hours of relevant professional training during the Year.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for
communication between the Shareholders and the Board. An annual general
meeting of the Company shall be held in each year and at the place as may be
determined by the Board. Each general meeting, other than an annual general
meeting, shall be called an extraordinary general meeting.

Shareholders to convene an extraordinary general meeting

Pursuant to article 58 of the Articles of Association, any one or more
Shareholder(s) holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-
tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition
to the Board or the Company Secretary, to require an extraordinary general
meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in
such requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two months after the
deposit of such requisition. The aforesaid written requisition should be deposited
to the Board or the Company Secretary at the Company’s principal place of
business in Hong Kong at Units 603-606, 6/F, Tower |, Cheung Sha Wan Plaza,
833 Cheung Sha Wan Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

If within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene
such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same
manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result
of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.

Putting enquiries by Shareholders to the Board

Shareholder(s) may at any time send their enquiries and concems to the Board
in writing through the Company Secretary by post to Units 603—-606, 6/F, Tower
|, Cheung Sha Wan Plaza, 833 Cheung Sha Wan Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong, or
via emalil at the contact information as provided on the website of the Company.
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Procedures for putting forward proposals by Shareholders at Shareholders’
meeting

Save for the procedures for the Shareholders to convene an extraordinary
general meeting, there are no provisions allowing Shareholders to propose new
resolutions at the general meetings under the Articles of Association or the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, as amended, modified and supplemented.
Shareholders may follow the procedures set out above to convene an
extraordinary general meeting for any business specified in such written
requisition. The written requisition must state the objects of the meeting, and
must be signed by the relevant Shareholder(s) and deposited to the Board or the
Company Secretary at the Company's principal place of business in Hong Kong
at Units 603-606, 6/F, Tower |, Cheung Sha Wan Plaza, 833 Cheung Sha Wan
Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

VOTING BY POLL

Pursuant to Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, any vote of shareholders at a
general meeting must be taken by poll except where the chairman, in good faith,
decides to allow a resolution which relates purely to a procedural or
administrative matter to be voted on by a show of hands. As such, all the
resolutions to be set out in the notice of the 2020 AGM will be voted by poll.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company is committed to a policy of open and regular communication and
reasonable disclosure of information to the Shareholders.

Information of the Company is disseminated to the Shareholders in the following

manner:
. delivery of annual and interim reports to all Shareholders;
e publication of announcements on the annual and interim results on the

Stock Exchange’s website, and issue of other announcements and
shareholders’ circulars in accordance with the continuing disclosure
obligations under the Listing Rules; and

. general meeting of the Company is also an effective communication
channel between the Board and Shareholders.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to prepare the Group’s consolidated
financial statements for each financial year which give a true and fair view of the
financial position of the Group and of the financial performance and cash flows of
the Group for that year. In preparing the consolidated financial statements for the
Year, the Board has selected suitable accounting policies and applied them
consistently; made judgments and estimates that are prudent, fair and reasonable
and prepared the accounts on a going concern basis.

The Directors are responsible for taking all reasonable and necessary steps to
safeguard the assets of the Group and to prevent and detect fraud and other
irregularities.

The Directors, having made appropriate enquiries, consider that the Group has
adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable
future and that, for this reason, it is appropriate to adopt the going concern basis
in preparing the consolidated financial statements.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for the risk management and
internal control systems and reviewing their effectiveness. Such systems are
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss.

The Board has delegated its responsibilities (with relevant authorities) of risk
management and internal control to the Audit Committee, who oversees
management in the design, implementation and monitoring of the risk
management and internal control systems, and management has provided a
confirmation to the Audit Committee and the Board on the effectiveness of
these systems for the Year.

Risk management

The Company has already reviewed its risk management framework and
processes and has implemented relevant measures resulting from this exercise
that aim to enhance its framework and processes. In particular, The Company
has developed, approved and implemented a risk management system, which is
defined and supported by its endorsed risk management policy. The terms of
reference of the Audit Committee has included its responsibility for an effective
system of internal control and risk management.
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The Company’s methodology for its risk assessment comprises risk identification,
risk assessment, risk response, and risk monitoring and reporting. These processes
are performed at least once a year to address changes in the Group's business
environment.

Internal control measures

The internal control system of the Group covers its major business aspects such
as revenue management, expenditure management, human resources and payroll,
cash and treasury management, financial reporting, compliance and information
technology. The internal control measures are supervised by management team
including executive Directors of the Company. The management team is
responsible to identify risks and internal control deficiencies, evaluate the interal
control system of the Group from time to time and implementing additional
control measures, if necessary, to improve the internal control system. Results of
the internal assessments would be reported to the Audit Committee, which is
responsible to review the financial information and supervise the financial
reporting system and internal controls system of the Group.

Internal audit function

The Board conducted an annual review on the effectiveness of risk management
and internal control systems, covering all material controls such as financial,
operational and compliance controls. In addition, the Board has appointed an
international accountancy firm to review the internal control systems of the
Group on an on-going basis. For the Year, the review covered key processes of
revenue management, expenditure management and cash and treasury
management of the Group. The Board considered that the risk management and
internal control systems of the Company for the Year were effective and
adequate.

Handling and dissemination of inside information

The Group regulates the handling and dissemination of inside information
according to the “Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information” published by
the Securities and Futures Commission in June 2012 to ensure inside information
remains confidential until the disclosure of such information is appropriately
approved, and the dissemination of such information is efficiently and consistently
made. The Company regularly reminds the Directors and employees about due
compliance with all policies regarding the inside information. Also, the Company
keeps Directors, senior management and employees appraised of the latest
regulatory updates. The Company shall prepare or update appropriate guidelines
or policies to ensure the compliance with regulatory requirements.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company seeks to maintain a balance between meeting Shareholders’
expectations and prudent capital management with a sustainable dividend policy.
The Company’s dividend policy aims to allow Shareholders to participate in the
Company's profit and for the Company to retain adequate reserves for the
Group's future growth. In proposing any dividend payout, the Company would
consider various factors including but not limited to the Group's overall results of
operation, financial condition, expected working capital requirements, capital
expenditure requirements, liquidity position, future expansions plans, the amount
of retained profits and distributable reserves of the Company, general economic
conditions, business cycle of the Group's business, other internal or external
factors that may have an impact on the business or financial performance and
position of the Group and any other factors that the Board deems relevant.

Any declaration and payment of the dividends by the Company will be subject to
any restrictions under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the Articles of
Association, the Listing Rules and any other applicable laws and regulations. The
Company does not have any pre-determined dividend distribution ratio. The
Company's dividend distribution record in the past may not be used as a
reference or basis to determine the level of dividends that may be declared or
paid by the Company in the future. The dividend policy shall in no way constitute
a legally binding commitment by the Group in respect of its future dividend and/
or in no way obligate the Group to declare a dividend at any time or from time
to time.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the Year, there was no change in the constitutional documents of the
Company.

The Articles of Association are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Executive Directors

Mr. Yu Cheung Choy (BT B1), aged 56, is the Chairman and an executive Director.
He is also the director of all subsidiaries of the Company. As the founder of the
Group, he became a controlling shareholder of Golden Light Engineering Limited,
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, in March 1987 and
established Shun Hing E & M Engineering Limited (“Shun Hing HK"), an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, in August |987. He is primarily
responsible for leading the overall development, business strategies and
expansion of the Group. Mr. Yu Cheung Choy is a director of Prosperously
Legend Limited (“Prosperously Legend”), which is a substantial shareholder of
the Company within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (Cap. 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (“SFO™) and the controlling
shareholder (as defined under the Listing Rules) of the Company.

Mr. Yu Cheung Choy obtained a bachelor degree of engineering (building service
management) with honours from Washington InterContinental University in the
United States through distance learning in March 2004.

Mr. Yu Cheung Choy has over 30 years of experience in E&M engineering
services industry. His experience includes project management, supervision and
execution for various E&M engineering services projects.

Mr. Yu Cheung Choy is the father of Mr. Yu Ho Chi, an executive Director.

Mr. Lau Man Ching (“Mr. Lau”) (213X &), aged 54, is the Chief Executive Officer
and executive Director. He is also the director of all subsidiaries of the Company.
He joined the Group and became the sales and marketing manager of Shun Hing
HK, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, in October 1995. He
then became the director of Shun Hing HK in February 2000. He is primarily
responsible for directing the overall management and business operations of the
Group. Mr. Lau is a director of Simply Grace Limited, which is a substantial
shareholder of the Company within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO and the
controlling shareholder (as defined under the Listing Rules) of the Company.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EENSAREEEREE

Mr. Lau obtained a master degree of business administration in management
from the Southeastern University in the United States through distance learning
in February 1996. He was awarded a diploma in management studies jointly from
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University (formerly known as The Hong Kong
Polytechnic) and Hong Kong Management Association in Hong Kong in
September [994. He was also awarded a higher diploma in building services
engineering from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University (formerly known as The
Hong Kong Polytechnic) in Hong Kong in November [987. He is also the
authorised signatory and technical director in the category of registered specialist
contractor (sub-register of ventilation works), and the category of minor works
contractor type E (Classes Il and Ill) with the Buildings Department for Shun Hing
HK.

Mr. Lau has over 30 years in E&M engineering services industry. His experience
include business management, project management, supervision and execution
for various E&M engineering services projects.

Mr. Yu Ho Chi (BI&%8), aged 31, was appointed as non-executive Director on
27 June 2016 and a member of the Audit Committee on 6 December 2016. He
was re-designated from a non-executive Director to an executive Director with
effect from 13 January 2020 and ceased to be a member of the Audit Committee
then. Mr. Yu Ho Chi is also the director of a subsidiary of the Company.

Mr. Yu Ho Chi graduated from the University of Melbourne in Australia with a
bachelor degree of commerce in 2009. He has been a certified public accountant
under Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants since March 2016. He
has been also a member of CPA Australia since July 201 3.

Mr. Yu Ho Chi worked for a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange from January 2016 to September 2019 and his last position was
Deputy Head of Investment Department. He was employed by an international
accounting firm, in the assurance practice and advisory practice between 2010
and 2016.

Mr. Yu Ho Chi is the son of Mr. Yu Cheung Choy, the Chairman, an executive
Director and a controlling shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the
Company.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Lam Yim Nam (“Mr. Lam”) (P E5 ), aged 68, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 6 December 2016. He is also the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee and a member of each of the Audit Committee and the
Nomination Committee.

Mr. Lam obtained a master degree in business administration from The Chinese
University of Hong Kong in Hong Kong in December [995. He also obtained a
bachelor degree of business administration with honours from The Chinese
University of Hong Kong in Hong Kong in July 1980.

Mr. Lam has held several positions in various banks. He has been appointed as an
independent non-executive director of Bank of Communications (Hong Kong)
Limited since December 2019. He was an independent director of Shenzhen
Rural Commercial Bank from May 2012 to May 2018. He was the deputy chief
executive of Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited from October 2001 to April
2011, and was responsible for overseeing retail banking business. He also held
various positions in the group companies of Bank of China Group and Bank of
China (Hong Kong) Limited, from August 1980 to April 2011, and was
responsible for managing the business operations of the group companies.

Mr. Lam has been an honorary adviser of The Hong Kong Institute of Bankers
since 201 |. He was a visiting professor of the Vocational Training Council from
September 201 | to August 2015. He was an adjunct professor in the department
of finance of The Chinese University of Hong Kong from March 2011 to 28
February 2014. He was a member of Hong Kong Banking Industry Training
Advisory Committee from August 2010 to July 2012. He was a director of
Community Chest of Hong Kong from June 2006 to March 201 |. He was a
member of Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Advisory Committee from April
2009 to March 201 1. He was a member of the Chongging Committee of
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference (R BI ARBUR S E
ETMZEE) from January 2008 to December 2012.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EENSAREEEREE

Mr. Lee Wing Kee (“Mr. Lee”) (ZEKE), aged 67, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 6 December 2016. He is also the chairman of the
Nomination Committee and member of each of the Audit Committee and the
Remuneration Committee.

Mr. Lee obtained a bachelor degree of science (engineering) (civil engineering)
from the Queen Mary College, University of London in the United Kingdom in
August 1976. He has been a member of the Hong Kong Institution of Engineers
in Hong Kong since August 1983.

Mr. Lee joined Shui On Building Contractors Limited in April 1985 and held
various positions in the company. Among the various positions he held, he was
the deputy managing director of SOCAM Asset Management (HK) Limited from
July 2013 to June 2016. He was the deputy managing director of Shui On
Construction Company Limited from July 2013 to July 2014 and the executive
director of Shui On Construction Company Limited from October 2000 to June
2013. All of the above companies are subsidiaries of SOCAM Development
Limited, a company whose shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 983).

Mr. Lee was a member of the disciplinary board panel of the Commissioner for
Labour from March 2009 to February 2015. He was a member of the
Committee on Employees’ Compensation from January 2009 to December
2014. He was the chairman of Construction Workers Quialification Committee
of Construction Workers Registration Authority from May 2006 to October
2010. He was a council member of Hong Kong Construction Association from
April 2003 to June 2016, the vice president of Hong Kong Construction
Association from 2005 to 2013 and the chairman of the building committee of
Hong Kong Construction Association from 2005 to 2013 respectively. He was a
member of Construction Workers Registration Authority of Environment,
Transport and Works Bureau from October 2004 to October 2010. He was a
member of Building Subcommittee of Land and Building Advisory Committee
from April 2003 to March 2007 and a member of Construction Industry Training
Authority from September 2003 to May 2007. He was the deputy honorary
treasurer of The Hong Kong Construction Association, Ltd,, the chairman of the
Training Sub-committee and the vice chairman of the Training, Health and Safety
Committee of The Hong Kong Construction Association Ltd. from 2003 to 2005
respectively.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Dr. Law Man Wah (“Dr. Law”) (28 3LZ), aged 68, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on | November 2019. He is also the chairman of the Audit
Committee and member of each of the Nomination Committee and the
Remuneration Committee.

Dr. Law graduated from The Chinese University of Hong Kong with a bachelor
degree of business administration in October 1975 and obtained a master degree
in business administration from Brunel University (currently known as Brunel
University London), United Kingdom through distance learning in May 1992, a
master of science degree in finance from City University of Hong Kong in
November 1995 and a master of business (accounting) from Monash University,
Australia through distance learning in November 2000. In October 201 |, he was
conferred Doctor of Business Administration by the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University, major in finance and accounting. Dr. Law also holds various
professional qualifications, including Certified Management Accountant in United
States of America, Certified Banker and Certified Financial Management Planner
of the Hong Kong Institute of Bankers. He is also a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Directors. Moreover, Dr. Law holds the International Certificate in
Banking Risk and Regulation from the Global Association of Risk Professionals.

Dr. Law has over 30 years’ experience in the finance industry. He worked for
Nanyang Commercial Bank Ltd. (“NCB") from February 1983 to September
2001 and held various positions in NCB. He was the deputy general manager of
NCB from March 1992 to September 2001 and was responsible for accounting,
financial management, information technology, organisation and method, etc. He
was the director of NCB from August 1994 to April 2007. Dr. Law worked for
Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited from October 2001 to October 2010 where
his last position held was head of financial management and general manager of
financial management department. He was involved in the restructuring and
listing of BOC Hong Kong (Holdings) Limited in 2001 and 2002. During his terms
of appointment in Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited, he was responsible for
accounting, financial compliance, budgeting preparation and control, etc. He also
served as director of BOCI-Prudential Trustee Limited from October 1999 to
March 2009. Currently, Dr. Law is a member of examination moderation
committee of Hong Kong Institute of Bankers and a specialist of Hong Kong
Council for Accreditation of Academic & Vocational Quialifications.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EENSAREEEREE

Senior management

Mr. Wong Hoi Fung Mars (E &l #), aged 49, is the general manager of Shun
Hing HK. He worked as project manager of our Group from 2003 to 2006 and
re-joined our Group as general manager of Shun Hing HK in March 2020. He has
over 25 years of experience in E&M engineering services industry. He is primarily
responsible for overseeing and managing project administration and business
marketing.

Mr. Wong obtained a master degree of science in building services engineering
from The University of Hong Kong in December 2003. He obtained a bachelor
of engineering in mechanical engineering from The University of Hong Kong in
November [995.

Mr. Wong has been a chartered engineer of the Engineering Council since June
2004. He also has been a member of The Hong Kong Institution of Engineers
and the Institution of Mechanical Engineers since June 2004 and April 2004
respectively.

Mr. Lee Yui (Z&), aged 48, is the project director of Shun Hing HK. He joined
our Group in October 2006 as project manager and was promoted to project
director in April 2016. He has over 24 years of experience in E&M engineering
services industry. He is primarily responsible for overseeing and managing project
administration and business marketing.

Mr. Lee obtained a master degree of science in engineering (mechanical
engineering) from The University of Hong Kong in November 2001. He obtained
a bachelor of engineering in mechanical engineering from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University (formerly known as The Hong Kong Polytechnic) in
November 1994. He obtained a higher diploma in mechanical engineering from
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University (formerly known as The Hong Kong
Polytechnic) in October 1992.

Mr. Lee has been a chartered engineer of the Engineering Council since August
2003. He has been a member of The Hong Kong Institution of Engineers since
January 2016. He has been a fellow of the Institute of Plant Engineers in the
United Kingdom since February 2003. He is the authorised signatory in the
category of minor works contractors Types A and E (Classes Il and Ill) with the
Buildings Department for Shun Hing HK. He is also a registered professional
engineer (mechanical) registered under the Engineers Registration Board since
June 2017. He has been a registered energy assessor of Electrical and Mechanical
Services Department since December 2018. He has also obtained Grade |
Plumber's Licence with the Water Supplies Department since January 2020.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Lee Chun Mo (Z#RE), aged 51, is the senior project manager of Shun Hing
HK. He joined our Group in March 2002 as project manager and was promoted
to senior project manager in April 2016. He has over 24 years of experience in
E&M engineering services industry. He is primarily responsible for overseeing and
managing project execution, operation and cost control matters.

Mr. Lee obtained a bachelor of engineering in building services engineering with
first class honours from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University in December
2005. He was awarded a higher certificate in mechanical engineering from The
Hong Kong Polytechnic University (formerly known as The Hong Kong
Polytechnic) in November 1991. He is also the authorised signatory in the
category of Ventilation Works, and the category of minor works contractors
Type E (Classes |, Il and Ill) with the Buildings Department for Shun Hing HK.

Mr. Lee Foo Kwan (ZEE #), aged 48, is the project manager of Shun Hing HK.
He joined our Group in July 2002 as a project engineer and was promoted to
project manager in April 2016. He has over 21 years of experience in E&M
engineering services industry. He is primarily responsible for overseeing tender
estimation and preparation, project execution, reviewing and controlling project
budgeting, coordinating with customers and other parties and carrying out design
and design verification works.

Mr. Lee obtained a master degree of science in project management from The
Hong Kong Polytechnic University in October 2008. He obtained a bachelor
degree of engineering in mechanical engineering from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University in November 1996. He is currently a registered
professional engineer (mechanical) registered under the Engineers Registration
Board. He has been a member of The Hong Kong Institution of Engineers since
June 201 |, a member of The Institution of Mechanical Engineers in the United
Kingdom since January 2011, a member of American Society of Heating,
Refrigerating and Air-conditioning Engineers, Inc. since January 201 | and a
member of the Chartered Institution of Building Services Engineers in Hong Kong
since October 201 1. He is also the authorised signatory in the category of minor
works contractors Types A and E (Classes Il and Ill) with the Buildings
Department for Shun Hing HK.

EENEREEERE

Z/REALE S px IBEFEESAAIAE
RIB o N BB _F= A IMAREEF
EIEELE  YR_Z— X "FHNAE
ARERIBELE - FRKETIERY
THEBEAM4FLE FEEZEEEE
LEBIBEHT  2EBERKNIEHER -

TEER_SEERF+_AESEER
TAEBEFEEBEIR —REEs4+2
e BR—AN—F+—AEFEET
AE(AIBEBIELSMHR) B TPHMIRE
SREE - BNAIEEFEERNEFTEN
BERSKIEER RN T2EAERE
AR (FEIRF - FIRBRENRT]) &
BEEESEEA o

TEMRE 485 IBRFBEEK
B FR-_ZETZ_FLAMAREEE
FREEIREM YR -_FT-A"FOASE
FHREBKE - RRBETRERBITE
HRB FER  FXI2RAEEERER
HENEEG  HANT  BEREGIR
BTEE - BEP M HEAE T 1 8 A M
TGt RRETRE TR -

ZFRER_ZTN\F+AEFSERETL
AREFEEBRESEBRLEM - BN
—NANRFT—AEGSEEEIREH
MIREEXTRET B - KR RE
TrREmEMEEREMOEMERXRTIE
Ab () - RE —TB——FNAREE
IREMEEE8 AT —F— AL
AREKMIEMSEE8 B _-F
——F-ARA/EXERE  RLHEER
T 72 Al 2 2 (American Society of Heating,
Refrigerating and Air-conditioning Engineers,
hc)BERE_ZE——FTARRKREE
FraFE 5 K B 12 A 2 & (Chartered
Institution of Building Services Engineers) &
B BNRIERESHEEFEN/NLT
RAEEARERERE (B IRRIREN
AR RERERE A ©

F3R 201920/ IEEEE @ (ER%) BIR AR 57



Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EENSAREEEREE

Mr. Chan Ho Kei (BRJ&E ), aged 33, is the financial controller of our Group. He
joined our Group in March 2016 as a financial controller. He is primarily
responsible for managing the financial operations and accounting functions of our
Group.

Mr. Chan obtained a bachelor degree in business administration (major in
professional accountancy) from The Chinese University of Hong Kong in July
2010.

Mr. Chan has over 9 years of experience in accounting and audit services. Prior
to joining our Group, he was employed by an international accounting firm as a
manager in the assurance department, and was responsible for providing audit
services. He has been a certified public accountant under Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants since January 2014. He has also been an associate
member of The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and The Chartered
Governance Institute since November 2019.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Tse Kam Fai (i $8¥) aged 56, was appointed as the Company Secretary
on 9 May 2016. Mr. Tse is a fellow member of The Chartered Governance
Institute (formerly known as The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators) and The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries (formerly
known as The Hong Kong Institute of Company Secretaries). He is also a
member of The Hong Kong Institute of Directors. Mr. Tse is currently the
company secretary of several companies listed on the Main Board and GEM of
the Stock Exchange. He is also an executive director of a local professional firm
providing regulatory compliance, corporate governance and corporate secretarial
services to listed and unlisted corporations. Mr. Tse has more than 25 years’
experience in handling listed company secretarial and compliance related matters.
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The Directors are pleased to present the annual report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company and its subsidiaries are
principally engaged in provision of E&M engineering services in Hong Kong.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group for the Year and a discussion on the
Group's future business development, and also the Group's performance during
the Year are provided in the section headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis” on pages 7 to 14 of this annual report. No important event affecting
the Group has occurred since the end of the Year.

The details of key performance indicators are shown in the section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis"” on pages 7 to |4 of this annual report.

The environmental policies and performance, compliance with relevant laws and
regulations and relationships with employees are also discussed in the
Environmental, Social and Governance Report (“ESG Report”) on pages 15 to
30 of this annual report.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

There are certain risks involved in the Group's operations, many of which are
beyond the Group's control, including but not limited to those relating to the
business and the industry. Some of the major risks the Group facing include the
following:

. the Group operates in a competitive E&M engineering services industry.
Elevated competition with market participants may lead to lower profit
margins and loss of market share;

. economic downturn, political dispute, or change in government's plan in
Hong Kong may hold up the construction plans and may adversely affect
the business, financial position and performance of the Group;

J the gross profit margin depends on the tender price of each project, which
in turn is based on the estimated costs and time to be involved;

. unfavorable change in project timeline may cause matters such as difficulty
in man-power planning and unexpected additional costs and time, which
may adversely affect the Group's operation and financial performance; and
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. difficulty in hiring new staff timely for the growth of our business scale,
particularly in the middle to senior level positions, due to keen competition
in the labor market.

Environmental Policy and Performance

The ESG Report of the Company for the Year contained the information
required under Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules is set out on pages |15 to 30 of
this annual report.

Compliance with the Relevant Laws and Regulations

During the Year, as far as the Board and management are aware, there was no
material breach of or non-compliance with the applicable laws and regulations by
the Group that has a significant impact on the businesses and operation of the
Group.

Further discussion on the compliance with the relevant laws and regulations are
also contained in ESG Report on pages |5 to 30 of this annual report.

Key Relationships with Employees, Customers and Suppliers

The Group recognises that employees are one of the significant assets of the
Group. The Group aims to continue establishing a caring environment to
employees and emphasis the personal development of its employees.

The Group maintains a good relationship with its customers and suppliers. The
Group aims to continue providing quality services and consumption experiences
to its customers and establishing cooperation strategy with its suppliers.

Further discussion on the key relationships with employees, customers and
suppliers are also contained in ESG Report on pages 15 to 30 of this annual
report.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on page 82.

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of HKI.7 cents per
ordinary share for the year ended 3| March 2020 to be payable to the
Shareholders on Friday, |18 September 2020 to those Shareholders whose names
appear on the register of members on Friday, 4 September 2020. The payment
of final dividend is subject to the approval of the Shareholders at the 2020 AGM
to be held on Friday, 28 August 2020.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For the purpose of determining the identity of the Shareholders entitled to
attend and vote at the 2020 AGM, the register of members of the Company will
be closed from Tuesday, 25 August 2020 to Friday, 28 August 2020, both days
inclusive, during the period no transfer of shares will be registered. In order to be
eligible to attend and vote at the 2020 AGM, all transfer of shares accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company's branch
share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited
at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for
registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 24 August 2020.

For the purpose of determining the entitlement of the Shareholders to the
proposed final dividend, the register of members of the Company will be closed
from Thursday, 3 September 2020 to Friday, 4 September 2020, both days
inclusive, during the period no transfer of shares will be registered. In order to
qualify for the proposed final dividend, all transfer of shares accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company's branch share
registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited at
Level 54, Hopewell Centre, |83 Queen’'s Road East, Hong Kong for registration
not later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 2 September 2020.

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements during the Year in the property and equipment of the
Group are set out in Note |3 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 3| March 2020, the Company's reserves available for distribution to the
Shareholders amounted to approximately HK$90,986,000.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital during the Year are set out in Note
27 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of Association
or the laws of the Cayman Islands, being the jurisdiction in which the Company
was incorporated, which would oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a
pro rata basis to existing Shareholders.

RELIEF OF TAXATION

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to the
Shareholders by reason of their holding of the shares of the Company.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED SECURITIES OF
THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed
any of the Company's listed securities during the Year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for Directors' and
officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against its Directors and senior
management arising out of corporate activities. The permitted indemnity
provision is in force for the benefit of the Directors as required by section 470 of
the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the
“Companies Ordinance”) when the Report of the Board of the Directors
prepared by the Directors is approved in accordance with section 391(l) (a) of
the Companies Ordinance.

GROUP FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group for the last
five financial years is set out on page |68 of this annual report.
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DIRECTORS

The list of Directors of the Company during the Year and up to the date of this
annual report is set out below:

Executive Directors

Mr. Yu Cheung Choy (Chairman)

Mr. Lau Man Ching (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Yu Ho Chi (re-designated from a non-executive Director to
an executive Director with effect from |3 January 2020)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lam Yim Nam

Mr. Lee Wing Kee

Dr. Law Man Wah (appointed as independent non-executive Director
with effect from | November 2019)

Mr. To Yan Ming Edmond (passed away on 28 August 2019)

In accordance with article 84(1) of the Articles of Association, Mr. Lam Yim Nam
and Mr. Lee Wing Kee will retire by rotation at the 2020 AGM. In addition, by
virtue of article 83(3) of the Articles of Association, Dr. Law shall retire as
Director at the 2020 AGM. All the retiring Directors, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election at the 2020 AGM.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of Mr. Yu and Mr. Lau, being executive Directors, has renewed his service
agreement with the Company for a term of three years commencing on 3
January 2020. Either party has the right to terminate the service agreement by
giving not less than six months’ written notice to the other party.

Mr. Yu Ho Chi, being executive Director, has entered into a service agreement
with the Company for a term of three years commencing on |3 January 2020.
Either party has the right to terminate the service agreement by giving not less
than six months’ written notice to the other party.

Each of Mr. Lam Yim Nam and Mr. Lee Wing Kee, being independent non-
executive Directors, has renewed his letter of appointment with the Company
for a term of three years commencing on 3 January 2020. Either party has the
right to terminate the letter of appointment by giving not less than three months’
written notice to the other party.
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Dr. Law, being independent non-executive Director, has entered into a letter of
appointment with the Company for a term of three years commencing on |
November 2019. Either party has the right to terminate the letter of appointment
by giving not less than three months’ written notice to the other party.

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the 2020 AGM has a
service contract with the Company which is not determinable within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions undertaken by the Group are set out in
Note 29 to the consolidated financial statements. The Directors consider that
those related party transactions did not fall under the definition of “connected
transaction” or “‘continuing connected transaction” in Chapter [4A of the Listing
Rules which are required to comply with any of the reporting, announcement or
independent shareholders’ approval requirements under the Listing Rules. The
Group has complied with the disclosure requirements in accordance with
Chapter [4A of the Listing Rules.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
Directors, a confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Company considers that all of the independent non-executive
Directors are independent.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the Year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to
any arrangements to enable the Directors or their associates to acquire benefits
by means of acquisition of shares in or debentures of, the Company or in any
other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

No significant transaction, arrangements and contracts of significance in relation
to the Group's business to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a
party, and in which a Director had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly subsisted at 3| March 2020 or at any time during the Year.

CONTRACTS WITH CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

No contract of significance was entered into between the Group, or any of its
subsidiaries, and any of the controlling shareholders or any of their subsidiaries
during the Year.
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DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES
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Approximate
percentage of
Number of the issued share

shares/ capital of
underlying the Company
Long position/ shares held iRl NN

Name of Directors Capacity Short position PR/ BRITRAE Notes

EEnsg 54 HR/ KR HERGHE BRBEI B E

Yu Cheung Choy Interests held jointly with another Long position 246,000,000 61.50 I3

aI R person/Interest of controlled He

corporations
BE—AALTHRAREN
B/ LR RS
Lau Man Ching Interests held jointly with another Long position 54,000,000 13.50 2,3
25 person/Interest of controlled 1A
corporations
BE—ZALTHRAKEN
B/ LR

Notes: 5T -

Theses 246,000,000 Shares are held through Prosperously Legend, which is wholly-owned by Mr. Yu. . % 55246,000,0000% B% {2 T i& i8Prosperously
Legend#F & - ifi Prosperously Legend F8 @i 5€ 4 &
BER °

2. Theses 54,000,000 Shares are held through Simply Grace Limited (“Simply Grace”), which is wholly- 2. % %5 54,0000008% A% 19 Jb # #Simply Grace

owned by Mr. Lau. Limited ([ Simply Gracel) #§7 * M Simply Grace B
BEEREHER -

3. On 7 July 2016, Mr. Yu and Mr. Lau entered into the acting-in-concert confirmation, whereby they 3. RZZE—RNF+A+H " aikERBEETL
confirmed that, among other things, since 2| July 2004, they have been actively cooperating with one —BITHERE Bt BERR(HFBE)
another and acting in concert, with an aim to achieving consensus and concerted action on all BE-ETNELA-+—H#E  KE—HEHH
operating and financing decisions and major affairs relating to each member company within the BHRAER—B1TH BEZRERMELER

Group.
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Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, or chief executives of the
Company or their associates had any interests or short positions in any shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations as defined in Part XV of the SFO as recorded in the register to be
kept under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code as at 3| March 2020.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2020, the register of substantial shareholders maintained by the
Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO shows that, other than the
interests of the Directors and the chief executives of the Company, the following
Shareholders had notified the Company of relevant interests or short position in
shares and underlying shares of Company as follows:

BREXHEEEIN R_T_FF=A
=t—B BEEFRIARANRSIT
BABHBEFNHBEARARBIHET
aRBEE(EE LB S LB KIS
XVER) BBt - HEREER ) M B RE
%ﬁ%ﬁHE%?EAHEH§uug?ZQHﬂi%ﬂK1J§ﬁ352
RN ECMIRBEFEETIANS
NN MBS EOA R -

IE&%%&@&HE&@¢WE
589

Ff§f§¢:H:+—E AR AR
BEFLHERIIEBMFENTR
BRELMINE  REZERARRRS
TTHABMERSN - THBREMER
AR REFRA R A SAE B B EY
HEEDESORR T :

Approximate
percentage of

Number of ~ the issued share
shares/ capital of
underlying the Company
Long position/ shares held FrE A2 R
Name Capacity Short position FisRe,/ BRITRA Notes
L 5 B/%R  HEROHE BREDL Mt
Prosperously Legend Beneficial owner Long position 246,000,000 61.50
EmfEBA 3y
Simply Grace Beneficial owner Long position 54,000,000 13.50 2
ESHEA )
Notes: B &L

Prosperously Legend is wholly-owned by Mr. Yu.

2. Simply Grace is wholly-owned by Mr. Lau.

Save as disclosed above, no other parties were recorded in the register of the
Company required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO as having interests
or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as at 3|
March 2020.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as the code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by the Directors. Having made specific enquiry of all
Directors, the Company confirmed that all Directors have complied with the
required standard set out in the Model Code during the Year.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”)
pursuant to the written resolutions of the then shareholders passed on 6
December 2016. The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the
Group to grant options to full time or part time employee, Directors (including
executive, non-executive or independent non-executive Directors), any supplier,
any customer, any service provider, any Shareholder, any adviser or consultant of
the Group as incentives or rewards for their contribution to the Group.

The principal terms of the Share Option Scheme are summarised as follows:

(I)  The total number of Shares which may be allotted and issued upon
exercise of all options (excluding, for this purpose, options which have
lapsed in accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option scheme of the Group) to be granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option scheme of the Group must
not in aggregate exceed 10% of the Shares in issue at the time dealings in
the Shares first commence on the Stock Exchange, i.e. 40,000,000 Shares,
unless separate shareholders’ approval has been obtained, and which must
not exceed 30% of the share capital of the Company in issue from time to
time.

As at the date of this report, the total number of shares available for issue
under the Share Option Scheme is 40,000,000 Shares, which represents
| 0% of the issued Shares as at the date of this report.

(2) The total number of Shares issued and which may fall to be issued upon
exercise of the options and the options granted under any other share
option scheme of the Group (including both exercised or outstanding
options) to each grantee in any |2-month period shall not exceed 1% of
the issued share capital of the Company for the time being.
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The subscription price in respect of any option shall be at the discretion of
the Directors, provided that it shall not be less than the highest of:

(@) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily
quotations sheet for trade in one or more board lots of the Shares
on the offer date;

(b) the average closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the offer date; and

(c) the nominal value of the Share.

an option may (and may only) be exercised by the grantee at any time or
times during the option period (which shall not be more than |0 years
from the offer date of that option) to be determined and notified by the
Directors to the grantee.

HK$1.00 shall be paid by the grantee to the Company be way of
consideration for the grant.

the Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective until the close of
business on the date falling on the last day of the period of ten (10) years
after the adoption date, i.e. 6 December 201 6.

Other details of the Share Option Scheme are set out in the Prospectus.

No share option has been granted by the Company under the Share Option

Scheme since its adoption and up to the date of this annual report.
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NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKINGS

Mr. Yu, Mr. Lau, Prosperously Legend and Simply Grace (together, the
“Covenantors”) have entered into the deed of non-competition on 6 December
2016 (the “Deed of Non-Competition Undertaking”) in favour of the Company
(for itself and as trustee for each of its subsidiaries from time to time), under
which each of the Covenantors has jointly and severally undertaken to the
Company that he/it shall not, and shall procure that none of their respective
close associates (other than members of the Group) shall, during the period that
(a) the Shares remain listed on the Stock Exchange; and (b) either the
Covenantors and their respective close associates (other than members of the
Group), individually or jointly, are entitled to exercise, or control the exercise of,
not less than 30% of the voting power at general meetings of the Company; or
(c) any of the Covenantors or their respective close associates remains as a
director of any member of the Group, directly or indirectly, either on their own
account, in conjunction with, on behalf of, or through any person, firm or
company, among other things, carry on, participate or be interested, engaged or
otherwise involved in or acquire or hold (in each case whether as a shareholder,
partner, agent or otherwise and whether for profit, reward or otherwise) any
business that directly or indirectly be involved in or any business that directly or
indirectly competes, or may compete, with the business of the Group or
undertaking and any other new business which the Group may undertake from
time to time after the listing of the Shares on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange.

The Covenantors have confirmed to the Company the compliance with the
terms of Deed of Non-Competition Undertaking during the Year. The
independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the annual declarations and
made reasonable enquiry and confirmed the compliance with the terms of Deed
of Non-Competition Undertaking by the Covenantors during the Year.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as those disclosed in the section headed “Share Option Scheme" in this
Directors’ Report and also Note 36 to the consolidated financial statements, no
other equity-linked agreement was entered into by the Group, or existed during
the Year.
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SUBSIDIARIES

Details of subsidiaries of the Company as at 3| March 2020 are set out in Note
38 to the consolidated financial statements.

BORROWINGS

Particulars of the borrowings of the Group as at 3| March 2020 are set out in
Note 24 to the consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 March 2020, the Group had total bank borrowings of approximately
HK$6.8 million (2019: HK$9.2 million). As at 31 March 2020, the Group had a
facility agreement entered into with a bank with a facility limit of HK$80.0 million
(2019: HK$30.0 million). The Company had made undertakings relating to certain
performance obligation of the controlling shareholders, namely Mr. Yu and Mr.
Lau, pursuant to the facility agreement including the following: (i) Mr. Yu and Mr.
Lau undertake to maintain as the largest shareholders of the Company directly or
indirectly; and (i) Mr. Yu and Mr. Lau shall remain as the chairman or director of
the Company. The facility agreement remains effective as at the date of this
annual report.

As at 31 March 2020, the Group had another facility agreement entered into
with a bank with a facility limit of approximately HK$6 1.4 million (2019: HK$54.0
million) with the following obligation undertaken by the Group: (i) In case of Mr.
Yu and Mr. Lau are not the major shareholders of the Company, the Group
should notify the bank |4 days in advance; and (ii) In case of Mr. Yu is not
entitled to be chairman of the Company, the Group should notify the bank 14
days in advance.

As at 31 March 2020, the Group had another facility agreement newly entered
into with a bank during FY2020 with a facility limit of HK$60.0 million with the
following obligation undertaken by the Group: (i) In case of Mr. Yu and Mr. Lau
are not the major shareholders of the Company, the Group should notify the
bank [4 days in advance; and (ii) In case of Mr. Yu and Mr. Lau are not entitled
to be chairman or director of the Company, the Group should notify the bank
[4 days in advance.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, the percentage of revenue attributable to the largest customer
and the five largest customers of the Group accounted for approximately 24.2%
and 70.4% of the Group's total revenue respectively.

During the Year, the largest supplier and the five largest suppliers of the Group
accounted for approximately 6.6% and |7.7% of the total direct costs of the
Group respectively.

None of the Directors, their associates or any other Shareholder (which to the
knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company'’s share capital)
had an interest in the major suppliers or customers noted above.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The remuneration offered to the employees of the Group generally includes
salaries, medical benefits and bonus. In general, the Group determines salaries of
its employees based on each employee’s qualifications, position and seniority.
The Group will review its remuneration package annually. The Group provides a
defined contribution to the Mandatory Provident Fund as required under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (Chapter 485 of the Laws of
Hong Kong) for the eligible employees in Hong Kong.

On 6 December 2016, the Company had adopted the Share Option Scheme
under which full time or part time employees, including Directors, of the
Company and its subsidiaries, might be granted options to subscribe for the
Company's ordinary shares.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Details of the remuneration of the Directors for the Year are set out in Note 6
to the consolidated financial statements.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained a sufficient public float
as required under the Listing Rules during the Year and up to the date of this
annual report.
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DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULE 13.51(B)I OF THE LISTING RULES

Changes in Director’s information since the date of the 2019-20 interim report
of the Company is set out below:

. Mr. Lam Yim Lam, an independent non-executive Director, has been
appointed as an independent non-executive director of Bank of
Communications (Hong Kong) Limited since December 2019.

Save as disclosed above, as at the date hereof, there were no substantial changes
to the Directors’ information required to be disclosed pursuant to Rules
[3.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an Audit Committee on 6 December 2016 with
written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. The primary duties
and roles of the Audit Committee include, but are not limited to, (a) making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment, reappointment and removal
of the external auditor, approving the remuneration and terms of engagement of
the external auditor, and any questions of its resignation or dismissal; (b)
monitoring integrity of financial statements and annual report and accounts, half-
year report and, if prepared for publication, quarterly reports, and reviewing
significant financial reporting judgments contained in them; and (c) reviewing the
financial controls, risk management and internal control systems.

The Audit Committee currently consists of three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Dr. Law Man Wah (as chairman), Mr. Lam Yim Nam and Mr.
Lee Wing Kee. The Audit Committee has reviewed the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 3| March 2020.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020 were
audited by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu whose term of office will expire upon the
conclusion of the 2020 AGM. A resolution for the re-appointment of Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the Company for the subsequent year is to be
proposed at the 2020 AGM.

By order of the Board
SH Group (Holdings) Limited
Yu Cheung Choy
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 June 2020
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Deloitte.

To the Members of SH Group (Holdings) Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of SH Group (Holdings)
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “the
Group') set out on pages 82 to |67, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 March 2020, and the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 March 2020, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs™) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(the "HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
("HKSASs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
18 M B

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

BARELEE

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of MR ET BB 2B E P A 2= X A E
most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the REN ARG ESMBRRNETRAEE
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the THEIE - L EHSAR IR EE
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, SEMERRELEEESRBHETERE

and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters

HREXSE

e BT EHELEREREBNE
ﬁl o

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

AERBEATRECTEEBRELSR AN

Revenue recognition for engineering service contracts

ITREBHENRSEER

We identified the recognition of revenue for engineering service
contracts as a key audit matter due to the use of judgement and
estimates by management in determining the stage of completion
and the budget costs of engineering service contracts in progress.
BAERF IRRBEOUERRARBAREZEE  RER
EEENEBE T IRRLETT IRERBEAONBEKAR
2 {E T R b5t

The contract revenue generated from engineering service contracts
amounting to HK$568,428,000 was recognised in the profit or loss
during the year ended 31 March 2020.
TRRRBEHNEENS N 568428000 B TRBE T
ZFEZA=T—HILFEBERER
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Our procedures in relation to the revenue recognition for
engineering service contracts included:

BETRERBAOREERNEF B

e understanding management's process in estimation of
the contract revenue, budget cost and determination
of completion status of the engineering service
contracts;

THREEEMRFTANEE BEXNAREET
BRBE K7 TRERRRE

. agreeing the total contract value to the contracts and
variation orders (if any), agreements or other
correspondence, on a sample basis;
HEHOMNTIREEEITE(WAE) - s H B
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Contd)

Key audit matters

RRELEE

Independent Auditor’s Report
B M XA

HRELEEE)

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

FREMITREZTEERARELSEHZARN

The Group recognised contract revenue by reference to the stage of
completion of the contract activity using the input method at the end
of each reporting period. As set out in note 4 to the consolidated
financial statements, the management exercises judgements in
estimating the total contract costs, which are prepared by the
management on the basis of quotations from time to time provided
by the major subcontractors, suppliers or vendors involved and the
experience of the management. Changes in estimates or the actual
outcome will affect the revenue to be recognised.
EEEZ2EZEZREHREARNEBENSNED T IHER
R A AW - MR A B HRRM T 4PE - BEEETERER
BETREHNRARERHE  BERHGETHEEBREEY
MEBRARRE  HERXENTRENBREUAREEENL
BMEE - BTSSR BEREERBTEE THEIRA M -

0 testing the contract costs recognised to date by
checking to supporting documents including the
certificates issued to the subcontractors, invoices
issued by suppliers/vendors and/or their
correspondences or other documents issued before
and subsequent to year end date to evaluate the
progress of the respective projects, on a sample basis;
and
RAALCSCEREOKRA  TA/KEFERAX
- BREAAZZHLANEE HED B
FHAMBERR SEBA SN LR AR
AR EAM M - UFRHE SR B REE (R

2E): Rk
. evaluating the reasonableness of percentage of

completion of engineering service contracts by
comparing the percentage calculated based on costs
incurred at the end of the reporting period against
that calculated based on external surveyors’
certifications, and investigating any significant
differences identified.
HEIRRBEANTIANLRERE IR
BUEBERBESHPREEEXRATENA DL
HEERNREIIBAEEREAENTIZRBES
METADL  WHERERNEMNERER
EITHRE -
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Contd)

Key audit matters

RRELEE

BRELEEE)

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

FREMITRELTEERRELSEHZARN

Impairment assessment of trade receivables and contract assets

EZRUREARSNEERETG

We identified impairment assessment of trade receivables and
contract assets as a key audit matter due to the significance of trade
receivables and contract assets to the Group'’s consolidated financial
position and the involvement of subjective judgement and
management estimates in evaluating the expected credit losses
("ECL") of the Group’s trade receivables and contract assets at the
end of the reporting period.
HMERAEZREFARSNEEREN G RBERERSE
B RRAREZREFARA ﬁﬁgﬁ BERBEFEFBMN
MOEEUARRTE EEERHRSHRE S EUHIEAER
é%ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁf%%Uﬁ%ﬁﬁ%%D%ﬁ&E%ﬂ%&
EEEAET

As at 31 March 2020, the Group's trade receivables and contract
assets amounting to HK$59,812,000 and HK$131,565,000
respectively. As disclosed in note 3| to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group recognised net impairment loss allowance of
trade receivables and contract assets of HK$200,000 and HK$66,000
respectively for the year and the Group’s lifetime ECL on trade
receivables and contract assets amounted to HK$567,000 and
HK$2,510,000 respectively as at 3| March 2020.
RZZE_TF=A=+—H BXEEZEZFRURFEREHE
5 51 /59,812,000 7T & 131 565 00078 TT ° BIAR & F1 7% %R
RUTFE3I FTHER - EEERFADFIERE ZEUGKIERE
#0788 22 Rl (B 5 18 488 85 7% %51 200,000 8 7T K% 66,0008 7T+ A =
TTF=A=+t—H EEENEZFEURENSHNEE
2 BT EE BB 9 5l /% 567,000 78 7T 5 2,510,000 7T °
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Our procedures in relation to impairment assessment of
trade receivables and contract assets included:

BHMERME ZEREKRANENEE ZRENERIE
FFo B

e Understanding key controls on how the management
estimates the impairment loss allowance for trade
receivables and contract assets;
THREEBEGHESZRURFTBRANEEL
RN LS 18 18R iy ) = AT I 0

e Testing the accuracy of trade receivables ageing
analysis as at 31 March 2020, on a sample basis, by
comparing individual items in the analysis with the
relevant sales invoices;
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Contd)

Key audit matters

RRELEE
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HRELEEE)

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

FREMITREZTEERARELSEHZARN

As disclosed in note 4 to the consolidated financial statements,
management of the Group estimates the amount of lifetime ECL of
trade receivables and contract assets individually. The assessment is
based on the internal credit ratings, ageing, repayment history and/or
past due status of the respective customers. Estimated loss rates are
based on historical observed default rates over the expected life of
the debtors and are adjusted for forward-looking information.

A E ISR T4 E - EEEEEEEMNGAE
ZEVFBARAHNEENEHANMEESRSRE - A NE
RIEEEFHABEETR Rk - EREL RSBk
B MEEREDEREBSARRFHRHENELBRED
o WIRBRTRIEE R TIARE -

0 Challenging management's basis and judgement in
determining impairment loss allowance on trade
receivables and contract assets as at 31 March 2020,
including their identification of credit impaired
balances, and the basis of estimated loss rates applied
to each customer (with reference to the historical
default rates and forward-looking information
including subsequent settlement pattern of each
customer); and
BEREEECETRN _TTF=A=+—H
EHRBFANENEENREBRBRERAN
RAMEERHE BREEFHEERESR
HBRIA R E AR BB PR AT B R REE (K
DERABONENAELEEHNERSTPHNH
BEEEN) K&

e Evaluating the disclosures regarding the impairment
assessment of trade receivables and contract assets in
note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.
SR A M HRERMTI P EBE 5 WA
e EERBETHRHE -
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the annual report, but
does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE CHARGED WITH
GOVERNANCE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible
for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concemn basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of
engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgment
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
18 M B

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concem. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concem.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,

including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our

audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to

communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related

safeguards.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent auditor’s
report is Hung Suk Fan.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

29 June 2020
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
mEEEREMAEERAR

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE-T-TE=A=T-HIEFE

For the year ended 3| March
BE=-A=t—-HLFE

2020 2019
—E-BHF —E-NF
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
k=3 FER FHET
Revenue W 5 568,428 396,348
Direct costs BHEKA (513,663) (348,704)
Gross profit EF 54,765 47 644
Other income H A YA 7 1,995 1,324
Other gain and loss Hb e k18 7 (3,057) 979
Impairment losses under expected EHEEBBRRNE THRE
credit loss model, net of reversal E518 (FNBR B E) (266) (2,811)
Administrative expenses THFAX (21,008) (19,463)
Finance costs BhE B 8 (653) (396)
Profit before taxation R 5 A S5 A 9 31,776 27277
Income tax expense PSR 10 (5,749) (4,580)
Profit and total comprehensive income FARMNEEEWRABRE
for the year 26,027 22,697
Earnings per share BREF
Basic (HK cents) EHARGBM) I 6.5 5.7
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
e BT ARR 3R

As at 31 March 2020
RZZE-ZTF=A=+—H

As at 3| March

MN=BA=+—H
2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5E F#ET FHET
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property and equipment L JEPN T 13 21,662 21,665
Right-of-use assets FREEE 14 6,340 -
Deposits Be 16 2,585 2,654
Debt instruments at amortised cost TR SE A AT BEREE T A |8 1,951 2,155
Financial assets at fair value through BAFERAEBZS
profit or loss TREE |9 11,693 10,434
Deferred tax assets EERIBEE 25 138 232
44,369 37,140
Current assets REEE
Trade receivables Z 5 el FhiE I5 59,812 56,155
Other receivables, deposits HMERIE - Ze Rk
and prepayments SEENE /] 16 7,656 3,685
Contract assets BREE 17 131,565 143,980
Tax recoverable A U B %+ 18 - 3,723
Debt instruments at amortised cost R AT BRAES TR 18 2,155 -
Short term bank deposits EHASRTTIERK 20 - 28,000
Bank balances and cash RITEREIR S 20 139,353 71,315
340,541 306,858
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade payables B 5 ENFIE 21 32,144 36,683
Other payables and accrued charges HifE R IE K ET 2 F 22 68,199 49764
Contract liabilities aHaE 17 11,328 11,071
Lease liabilities HERE 23 2,294 =
Tax payable 1518 1,888 -
Bank borrowings RITRER 24 6,816 9,164
122,669 106,682
Net current assets nEBEEEE 217,872 200,176
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBAEES 262,241 237316
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
e AR R

As at 31 March 2020
RZZ-ZTF=A=1+—H

As at 3| March

MN=A=+—H
2020 2019
—g-82% —T-NF
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
Bt aE THET TFHET
Non-current liabilities FREBEE
Provisions B 26 574 374
Lease liabilities HEAE 23 4,298 —
4,872 374
Net assets EEZFE 257,369 236,942
Capital and reserves BEXRK #E
Share capital A& 7K 27 4,000 4,000
Reserves G 253,369 232,942
Equity attributable to owners KARHEEABIEER
of the Company 257,369 236,942

The consolidated financial statements on pages 82 to |67 were approved and ERZEI/TENEEUBHREN T
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 29 June 2020 and are signed TERNAZThBEEESHERERE

on its behalf by: - THTINEERREETGEEE
Yu Cheung Choy Lau Man Ching
Ry gAXE
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
o EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

S A 3L
REERRBHR
For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE T ZF-A=t-HLEE

Share Share Other Retained
capital premium  reserve(™ profits Total
Hth
BE ROEE BT REER et
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THEx THERT THET TR TiEx

At | April 2018 RZZ—-\FMA—H 4,000 83223 5,058 130,764 223,045
Profit and total comprehensive income % A3 Fl &%

for the year ZEBAER = = = 22,697 22,697
Dividends recognised as distribution ERAEDRARE

(Note 12) (F7E12) - - - (8,800) (8,800)
At 31 March 2019 R_F—NF

ZA=+—H 4,000 83223 5,058 144,661 236942

Profit and total comprehensive income % A3 Fl K%

for the year ZEBAER = = = 26,027 26,027
Dividends recognised as distribution ERAEDRARE

(Note 12) (MI7E12) - - - (5,600) (5,600)
At 31 March 2020 R-FZTF

=A=+—8 4,000 83223 5,058 165,088 257,369

Note: Other reserve represents the aggregate amount of (i) reserve arising from the group reorganisation, i : EtEREEO0EREAELENRE(ETERE

which mainly comprises issue of shares by Triumph Legend Ltd (‘“Triumph Legend"”) to acquire equity

interests in Shun Hing E & M Engineering Limited (“Shun Hing HK") and issue of shares by the

Company to acquire equity interests in Triumph Legend and Blissful Choice Limited (“Blissful
Choice”); and (ii) HK$4,800,000 upon the waiver of amounts due to directors and credited as

deemed contributions from shareholders.

Triumph Legend Ltd ([ Triumph Legend ) £ U & )IE
BB TREARAE ([NREEE ) REMET
i 5 & 28 2 &) /5 Y B Triumph Legend & Blissful
Choice Limited ([Blissful Choice]) % # T % 17 Ak

H & 1% #) 4,800,000 78 TLHI 4B 58 o

F3R 201920/ IEEIEE @ (3ER%) AR A7 85



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

MERTRER

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE-T-TE=A=T-HIEFE

For the year ended 3| March
BE=-A=t—-HLFE

2020 2019
—EC-EH —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FHET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REED
Profit before taxation e 7RIl v A 31,776 27277
Adjustments for: AT R IBFE -
Depreciation of property and equipment ME R ERETE 1,360 1,393
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 2,221 -
Impairment loss allowance of BHRWRIBERENEE
trade receivables and contract assets BEBERE 266 2811
Fair value loss (gain) on financial assets at fair value ~ ZAFEFTABTHNEHEE
through profit or loss NP EREE () 3,057 (979)
Bank interest income RITHEHA (758) (921)
Interest income on rental deposits HEZES A BUWA (24) -
Interest income from debt instruments at RE R HR AT SRR EF T A
amortised cost B B U A (354) (72)
Dividend income from insurance policy RERERREUA (56) (60)
Dividend income from financial assets REEAFETABZEAN
at fair value through profit or loss TRLE E AR EWA (603) (215)
Finance costs Y@ 653 396
Operating cash flows before movements LBECHFHRLERERE
in working capital 37,538 29,630
Increase in trade receivables B 5 FE Wk TE I N (3,857) (35817)
Increase in other receivables, deposits and HEWRIE « e RIBAFIA
prepayments by (3,975) (1,663)
Decrease (increase) in contract assets BREERD (M) 12,349 (66,141)
(Decrease) increase in trade and bills payables B SR RERENRE
ORkA>) 48 00 (4,539) 18,858
Increase in other payables and accrued charges E b FE T SR8 S FE AT & R 8 N 18,667 13,368
Increase (decrease) in contract liabilities SdBaEEMmOEY) 257 (15,547)
Increase in provisions BB M 200 24
Cash generated from (used in) operations KBS (TR RS 56,640 (57,218)
Income tax paid EFTEH (44) (9,468)
Net cash from (used in) operating activities RETHME (IR REERE 56,596 (66,686)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GEHERER

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE_Z-TF-A=1—HIEE

For the year ended 31 March
BE=-A=t—-HLEE

2020 2019
g —ZE-hNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR FET
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REED
Bank interest income received EHERITA B A 835 719
Interest income received from debt instruments at BRI BRAER A
amortised cost B B MR S A 281 -
Dividend received from financial assets RERATFET ABRD
at fair value through profit or loss TREENDHKRE 601 167
Placement of short term bank deposits 7 R BRER1TIE K = (28,000)
Withdrawal of short term bank deposits REUE BIR1TIE K 28,000 =
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits R ERRITER 31,012
Purchase of debt instruments at amortised cost BEREBENASENEETA (1,951) (2,155)
Purchase of financial assets at fair value through BEZEATETABZD
profit or loss TRMEE (8,653) (9455)
Disposal of financial assets at fair value HEZRAFEFABRZN SR
through profit or loss BE 4,337 -
Purchase of property and equipment BEYENRE (1,235) (1,209)
Rental deposit refund received EWAEZR SR 46 -
Payment for rental deposits HERE MK (117) -
Net cash from (used in) investing activities BRETEME (A BESFHE 22,144 (8,821)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BMEEE
Dividends paid BB S (5,600) (8:800)
Interest paid ERHE (653) (396)
Repayment of bank borrowings BRRITEN (2,348) (2893)
Repayment of lease liabilities BEHEERE (2,101) -
Net cash used in financing activities RMEEETAREFEHR (10,702) (12,089)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 3H &R\ EEEYIE N OHL)
EaE 68,038 (87596)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year FUIRE NIBEEEY 71,315 158911
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year FRESRESZEY
represented by bank balances and cash EIRTTESG LIRS 139,353 71315
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BT RS HRER MR

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE-T-TE=A=T-HIEFE

88

GENERAL INFORMATION

SH Group (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated and
registered as an exempted company with limited liability in the Cayman
Islands under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands on 9 May 2016.
The addresses of the Company’s registered office and the principal place of
business in Hong Kong are Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681,
Grand Cayman KY[-1 111, Cayman Islands and Units 603—606, 6/F.,, Tower
I, Cheung Sha Wan Plaza, 833 Cheung Sha Wan Road, Kowloon, Hong
Kong, respectively. Its immediate and ultimate holding company is
Prosperously Legend Limited (“Prosperously Legend”), which was
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI") and wholly owned by Mr.
Yu Cheung Choy (“Mr. Yu"), who is also the chairman of the Board and
executive director of the Company. The Company’s shares have been
listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange™) on 3 January 2017.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 38.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollar

(“HK$"), which is also the functional currency of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “the Group”).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the
current year

The Group has applied the following new and amendments to HKFRSs
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA") for the first time in the current year:

HKFRS 16 Leases

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation

Amendments to HKAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement

Amendments to HKAS 28 Long-term Interests in Associates and
Joint Ventures

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
20152017 Cycle

Except as described below, the application of the new and amendments to
HKFRSs in the current year has had no material impact on the Group's
financial positions and performance for the current and prior years and/or
on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.

e IS ERRME

For the year ended 31 March 2020
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BT RS HRER MR

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE-T-TE=A=T-HIEFE

2.

90

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Cont'd)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the
current year (Cont'd)

HKFRS |6 Leases

The Group has applied HKFRS 16 Lease (“HKFRS [6") for the first time in
the current year. HKFRS 16 superseded Hong Kong Accounting Standard
("HKAS") 17 Leases (“HKAS 17"), and the related interpretations.

Definition of a lease

The Group has elected the practical expedient to apply HKFRS 16 to
contracts that were previously identified as leases applying HKAS |7 and
HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease and
not apply this standard to contracts that were not previously identified as
containing a lease. Therefore, the Group has not reassessed contracts
which already existed prior to the date of initial application.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after | April 2019, the Group
applies the definition of a lease in accordance with the requirements set
out in HKFRS 16 in assessing whether a contract contains a lease.

As a lessee

The Group has applied HKFRS |6 retrospectively with the cumulative
effect recognised at the date of initial application, | April 2019. As at |
April 2019, the Group recognised additional lease liabilities and right-of-use
assets at amounts equal to the related lease liabilities adjusted by any
accrued lease payments by applying HKFRS 16.C8(b)(ii) transition. Any
difference at the date of initial application is recognised in the opening
retained profits and comparative information has not been restated.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Cont'd)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the
current year (Cont'd)

HKFRS 6 Leases (Cont'd)
As a lessee (Cont'd)

When applying the modified retrospective approach under HKFRS 16 at
transition, the Group applied the following practical expedients to leases
previously classified as operating leases under HKAS 17, on lease-by-lease
basis, to the extent relevant to the respective lease contracts:

(i)  relied on the assessment of whether leases are onerous by applying
HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets as an
alternative of impairment review;

(i) elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for
leases with lease term ends within |2 months of the date of initial
application; and

(i)  used hindsight based on facts and circumstances as at date of initial
application in determining the lease term for the Group's leases with
extension and termination options.

When recognising the lease liabilities for leases previously classified as
operating leases, the Group has applied incremental borrowing rates of the
relevant group entities at the date of initial application. The weighted
average incremental borrowing rate applied is 4.82%.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BT RS HRER MR

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE-T-TE=A=T-HIEFE

2.

92

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG 2.
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Cont'd)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the

current year (Cont'd)
HKFRS 16 Leases (Cont'd)

ERHIERMBREEN(E
BYBREER ) REBITR
(%)
FEECRHEROMITEEBUE
BELRABET A (B)

BB BIREERE |6 HE (5B)

As a lessee (Cont'd) EREMA(E)
At | April 2019
R-Z2—-I#%F
mA—H
HK$'000
FH&T
Operating lease commitments disclosed as RZZE-AF=A=+—HBEEHD
at 3| March 2019 REHERE 4443
Lease liabilities discounted at relevant RIARE E BRI EAE R
incremental borrowing rates HE&RE 4230
Add: Extension option reasonably certain o A EMETE A TITEA TR
to be exercised 3,464
Less: Practical expedient — leases with lease B AIITHRERE —BHBER
term ending within 12 months from the FEF B BB ET A AR
date of initial application A 12EANARNEE (75)
Lease liabilities upon application of HKFRS 16 RZZE-NFMA—-BEAR
asat | April 2019 BAMBRELELZE 16571%
REERE 7619
Analysed as DR
Current ik 1,825
Non-current JERE 5,794
7,619
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BT RS HRER M EE

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE_Z-TF-A=1—HIEE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG 2. BRI E SRS LR (E

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Cont'd) e e R |) B EETA
(%)
New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the REECDREERNNEHITEBHE
current year (Cont'd) WELEARBBTR(E)
HKFRS 16 Leases (Cont'd) BB B HEERIZE |6 5EHE (&)
As a lessee (Cont'd) ERAEMEA (B)
The carrying amount of right-of-use assets for own use as at | April 2019 R-ZE—NFNA—HEREEE
comprises the following: WREEBENAT
At | April 2019
R-B-IF
M™A—H
Notes HK$'000
Bt aE THET
Right-of-use assets relating to operating leases JERE B IS TREERIE 65512
recognised upon application of HKFRS 16 R AL = & A B R F A
BE 7619
Add: Adjustments on rental deposits at m: RZZFE-hEFEMA-—HBHEE
| April 2019 BEEAR @) 89
Less: Accrued lease liabilities relating to rent B RZE-—NEFNA—BEAHE
free period at | April 2019 HEFNEAHERRE (b) (232)
7476
By class: =ER
Leased properties HEME 7476
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE-T-TE=A=T-HIEFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG 2.
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Cont'd)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the

current year (Cont'd)
HKFRS 16 Leases (Cont'd)

As a lessee (Cont'd)

The following adjustments were made to the amounts recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position as at | April 2019. Line items
that were not affected by the changes have not been included.

ERHIERMBREEN(E
BMBHRELER ) REETAR
(%)
REECREERNHTEBYB
BEEAREBIT AR (&)

BB IREERE 16 ST THE (&)
ERAMA (&)
TIAR-_ZE-NFHA—BRE
EUBHRRRERNSREL 2
B RREHPEZRAAYERRE
R o

Carrying Carrying
amounts amounts
previously under
reported at HKFRS 16
31 March at | April
2019 Adjustments 2019
R=ZF—-I%F
BAER A—BR#E
—B-hEF ERMBHRE
=H=t+—-H RIS 1655
2 WRMEE Bk HYRRE B
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
liEsd THETT THETT THETT
Non-current Assets FREEE
Right-of-use assets FRREEE = 7476 7,476
Deposits ®e (a) 2,654 (89) 2,565
Current Liabilities REEE
Other payables and H A & RIE K2
accrued charges FEFT &R (b) 49,764 (232) 49,532
Lease liabilities HERE - 1,825 1,825
Non-current liabilities FREBEAE
Lease liabilities HERR - 5794 5,794
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG 2.

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Cont'd)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the
current year (Cont'd)

HKFRS 6 Leases (Cont'd)
As a lessee (Cont'd)

Notes:

@) Before the application of HKFRS 16, the Group considered refundable rental deposits paid as
rights and obligations under leases to which HKAS |7 applied under deposits. Based on the
definition of lease payments under HKFRS |6, such deposits are not payments relating to the
right to use of the underlying assets and were adjusted to reflect the discounting effect at
transition. Accordingly, HK$89,000 was adjusted to refundable rental deposits paid and right-

of-use assets.

(b) Rent free period
These relate to accrued lease liabilities for a lease of office premises in which the lessor
provided rent-free period. The carrying amount of the lease incentive liabilities under other
payables and accrued charges as at | April 2019 was adjusted to right-of-use assets at

transition.

For the purpose of reporting cash flows from operating activities under
indirect method for the year ended 31 March 2020, movements in working
capital have been computed based on opening consolidated statement of
financial position as at | April 2019 as disclosed above.

e IS ERRME

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE_Z-TF-A=1—HIEE

ERHIERMBREEN(E
BYBREER ) REBITR
(&
REECREERNHTEBYB
BEEREBIAR ()

BB HEERE |6 HE (5B)
ERETEA (B)

et

@ REREEMBHREERSE 65T - &
SEREMNTTROAERSGERES
BTEABBETENE I7RMEER
A REME - REBEBEBMBHREERE
I6RETHENRNES - AHESY
AR B EF AEEENNR - B
EEARRBRBERNBATE - B
It - 89,0008 THABZENAIRBEE
ReERIEPEEE -

(b) %
ZERHBARNAMERERE ST
HETTHESERRE R=_T— L&
MA—A - HiENREBERETERE
THHEEEABENRAEERBER
AEABERNERREEE -

RBE-T-_TF=-A=t+—ALt
FRENREEAZ MO ELEBE
RefEms  @EASEIRE
EXFAEBEN —E-NFNA—HR
K EIRAR & M AR KA o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE-T-TE=A=T-HIEFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Cont'd)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and amendments to
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 17
Amendment to HKFRS 6

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKFRS [0
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS |
and HKAS 8
Amendments to HKAS |6
Amendments to HKAS 37
Amendments to HKFRS 9,

HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRSs

Insurance Contracts'
Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions®

Definition of a Business?
Reference to the Conceptual Framework®

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or
Joint Venture?

Definition of Material

Property, Plant and Equipment — Proceeds
before Intended Use®

Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling
a Contract®

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform?

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020°

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2021

Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions for which the acquisition date is on

or after the beginning of the first annual period beginning on or after | January 2020

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2020

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2022

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | June 2020
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Cont'd)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective (Cont'd)

In addition to the above new and amendments to HKFRSs, a revised
Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting was issued in 2018. Its
consequential amendments, the Amendments to References to the
Conceptual Framework in HKFRS Standards, will be effective for annual
periods beginning on or after | January 2020.

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs mentioned below, the
directors of the Company anticipate that the application of all other new
and amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future.

Amendments to HKAS | and HKAS 8 Definition of Material

The amendments provide refinements to the definition of material by
including additional guidance and explanations in making materiality
judgments. In particular, the amendments:

0 include the concept of “obscuring” material information in which the
effect is similar to omitting or misstating the information;

. replace threshold for materiality influencing users from *could
influence” to “could reasonably be expected to influence”; and

o include the use of the phrase “primary users” rather than simply
referring to “users” which was considered too broad when deciding
what information to disclose in the financial statements.

The amendments also align the definition across all HKFRSs and will be
mandatorily effective for the Group's annual period beginning on | April
2020. The application of the amendments is not expected to have
significant impact on the financial positions and performance of the Group
but may affect the presentation and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements.

e IS ERRME

For the year ended 31 March 2020
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BT RS HRER MR

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE-T-TE=A=T-HIEFE

2.

98

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Cont'd)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective (Cont'd)

Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting 2018 (the “New Framework”)
and the Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework in HKFRS
Standards

The New Framework:

reintroduces the terms stewardship and prudence;

introduces a new asset definition that focuses on rights and a new
liability definition that is likely to be broader than the definition it
replaces, but does not change the distinction between a liability and
an equity instrument;

discusses historical cost and current value measures, and provides
additional guidance on how to select a measurement basis for a
particular asset or liability;

states that the primary measure of financial performance is profit or
loss, and that only in exceptional circumstances other comprehensive
income will be used and only for income or expenses that arise from
a change in the current value of an asset or liability; and

discusses uncertainty, derecognition, unit of account, the reporting
entity and combined financial statements.

Consequential amendments have been made so that references in certain
HKFRSs have been updated to the New Framework, whilst some HKFRSs
are still referred to the previous versions of the framework. These
amendments are effective for the Group'’s annual period beginning on or
after | April 2020. Other than specific standards which still refer to the
previous versions of the framework, the Group will rely on the New
Framework on its effective date in determining the accounting policies
especially for transactions, events or conditions that are not otherwise
dealt with under the accounting standards.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical
cost basis, except for certain financial instruments that are measured at fair
value at the end of each reporting period (as explained in the accounting
policies below) and in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements include the applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration
given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at
the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly
observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take
those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes
in these consolidated financial statements is determined on such a basis,
except for share-based payment transactions that are within the scope of
HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing transactions that are accounted for
in accordance with HKFRS 16 (since | April 2019) or HKAS 17 (before
application of HKFRS16), and measurements that have some similarities to
fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2
Inventories or value in use in HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BT RS HRER MR

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE-T-TE=A=T-HIEFE

3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are
categorised into Level |, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs
to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

. Level | inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date;

0 Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within
Level |, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or
indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The principal accounting policies adopted are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements
of the Company and entities controlled by the Company and its
subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

. has power over the investee;
0 is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the investee; and

. has the ability to use its power to affect its retums.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control listed above.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
Basis of consolidation (Cont'd)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over
the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary.
Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control
until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the Group's
accounting policies.

All'intra-group assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in
full on consolidation.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance obligation is
satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or services underlying the
particular performance obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good and service (or a bundle of
goods or services) that is distinct or a series of distinct goods or services
that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over time by
reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction of the relevant
performance obligation if one of the following criteria is met:

0 the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits
provided by the Group's performance as the Group performs;

o the Group's performance creates or enhances an asset that the
customer controls as the Group performs; or

. the Group's performance does not create an asset with an alternative
use to the Group and the Group has an enforceable right to
payment for performance completed to date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BT RS HRER MR

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE-T-TE=A=T-HIEFE

3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Cont'd)

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the customer
obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A contract asset represents the Group's right to consideration in exchange
for goods or services that the Group has transferred to a customer that is
not yet unconditional. It is assessed for impairment in accordance with
HKFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable represents the Group's unconditional
right to consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is required before
payment of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group's obligation to transfer goods or
services to a customer for which the Group has received consideration (or
an amount of consideration is due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the same contract are
accounted for and presented on a net basis.

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a performance obligation is
measured based on input method, which is to recognise revenue on the
basis of the Group's efforts or inputs to the satisfaction of a performance
obligation relative to the total expected inputs to the satisfaction of that
performance obligation, that best depict the Group’s performance in
transferring control of goods or services.

Leases

Definition of a lease (upon application of HKFRS |6 in accordance with
transitions in note 2)

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified or arising from business
combinations on or after the date of initial application, the Group assesses
whether a contract is or contains a lease based on the definition under
HKFRS 16 at inception, modification date or acquisition date, as
appropriate. Such contract will not be reassessed unless the terms and
conditions of the contract are subsequently changed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)
Leases (Cont'd)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS 16 in accordance with
transitions in note 2)

Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to leases of
office premises that have a lease term of |2 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase option. Lease
payments on short-term leases are recognised as expense on a straight-line
basis or another systematic basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:
. the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability;

. any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, less
any lease incentives received;

. any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

. an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in dismantling and
removing the underlying assets, restoring the site on which it is
located or restoring the underlying asset to the condition required by
the terms and conditions of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease
liabilities.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter
of its estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line item on the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments (“HKFRS 9”) and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to
fair value at initial recognition are considered as additional lease payments
and included in the cost of right-of-use assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BT RS HRER MR

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE-T-TE=A=T-HIEFE

3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)
Leases (Cont'd)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS 16 in accordance with
transitions in note 2) (Cont'd)

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises and
measures the lease liability at the present value of lease payments that are
unpaid at that date. In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.

The lease payments include fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by interest
accretion and lease payments.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on the
consolidated statement of financial position.

The Group as a lessee (prior to | April 2019)

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee.
All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

Lease incentives relating to operating leases are considered as integral part
of lease payments, the aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a
reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Property and equipment

Property and equipment are tangible assets that are held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes.
Property and equipment are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Ownership interests in leasehold land and building

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests of properties
which includes both leasehold land and building elements, the entire
consideration is allocated between the leasehold land and the building
elements in proportion to the relative fair values at initial recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments can be made reliably,
interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an operating lease is
presented as “right-of-use assets” (upon application of HKFRS 16) or
“prepaid lease payments” (before application of HKFRS 16) in the
consolidated statement of financial position. When the consideration
cannot be allocated reliably between non-lease building element and
undivided interest in the underlying leasehold land, the entire properties
are classified as property and equipment.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets over their
estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated useful
lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted
for on a prospective basis.

An item of property and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or
retirement of an item of property and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BT RS HRER MR

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE-T-TE=A=T-HIEFE

3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)
Impairment on property and equipment and right-of-use assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its property and equipment and right-of-use assets to
determine whether there is any indication that these assets have suffered
an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of
the relevant asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss (if any). The recoverable amount of property and
equipment and right-of-use assets are estimated individually. When it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount individually, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs.

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, corporate assets are
allocated to the relevant cash-generating unit when a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be established, or otherwise they are
allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a
reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be established. The
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit or group of
cash-generating units to which the corporate asset belongs, and is
compared with the carrying amount of the relevant cash-generating unit or
group of cash-generating units.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for which the estimates of
future cash flows have not been adjusted.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)
Impairment on property and equipment and right-of-use assets (Cont'd)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. For
corporate assets or portion of corporate assets which cannot be allocated
on a reasonable and consistent basis to a cash-generating unit, the Group
compares the carrying amount of a group of cash-generating units, including
the carrying amounts of the corporate assets or portion of corporate
assets allocated to that group of cash-generating units, with the recoverable
amount of the group of cash-generating units. In allocating the impairment
loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis
based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit or the group of
cash-generating units. The carrying amount of an asset is not reduced
below the highest of its fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its
value in use (if determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment loss
that would otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata
to the other assets of the unit or the group of cash-generating units. An
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of
the asset (or cash-generating unit or a group of cash-generating units) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset (or a cash-generating unit or a group of cash-generating units) in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
immediately.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BT RS HRER MR

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE-T-TE=A=T-HIEFE

3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)
Deposits in life insurance policies

Deposits in life insurance policies are stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost adjusted for interest income and service
charges, less impairment losses, if any.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position when a group entity becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. All regular way purchases or sales
of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value
except for trade receivables arising from contracts with customers which
are initially measured in accordance with HKFRS |5 Revenue from Contracts
with Customers. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
(“FVTPL")) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost
of a financial asset or financial liability and of allocating interest income and
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset or financial
liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)
Financial instruments (Cont'd)

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently
measured at amortised cost:

J the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is
to collect contractual cash flows; and

. the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI"):

. the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is
achieved by both selling and collecting contractual cash flows; and

. the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL, except that
at the date of initial application of HKFRS 9/initial recognition of a financial
asset the Group may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in
fair value of an equity investment in other comprehensive income if that
equity investment is neither held for trading nor contingent consideration
recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which HKFRS 3
Business Combinations applies.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BT RS HRER MR

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE-T-TE=A=T-HIEFE

3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Financial instruments (Cont'd)

Financial assets (Cont'd)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets (Cont'd)

A financial asset is held for trading if:

. it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the near
term; or
. on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified financial

instruments that the Group manages together and has a recent
actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging
instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial asset that are
required to be measured at the amortised cost or FVTOCI as measured at
FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting
mismatch.

(i)  Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method for
financial assets measured subsequently at amortised cost. For financial
instruments other than purchased or originated credit-impaired
financial assets, interest income is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except
for financial assets that have subsequently become credit-impaired
(see below). For financial assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset
from the next reporting period. If the credit risk on the credit-
impaired financial instrument improves so that the financial asset is
no longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by applying
the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset from the beginning of the reporting period following
the determination that the asset is no longer credit-impaired.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Financial instruments (Cont'd)

Financial assets (Cont'd)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets (Cont'd)
(i) Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being measured at
amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as FVTOCI are measured
at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of
each reporting period, with any fair value gains or losses recognised
in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
excludes any dividend or interest earned on the financial asset and is
included in the “other gain and loss” line item.

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected credit loss
("ECL") model on financial assets (including trade receivables, debt
instruments at amortised cost, other receivables and deposits, short term
bank deposits and bank balances) and contract assets which are subject to
impairment under HKFRS 9. The amount of ECL is updated at each
reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible default
events over the expected life of the relevant instrument. In contrast,
|2-month ECL (“12m ECL") represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is
expected to result from default events that are possible within 12 months
after the reporting date. Assessment are done based on the Group's
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment of both the
current conditions at the reporting date as well as the forecast of future
conditions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BT RS HRER MR

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE-T-TE=A=T-HIEFE

3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Financial instruments (Cont'd)

Financial assets (Cont'd)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9 (Cont'd)

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables and

contract assets. The ECL on these assets are assessed individually.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the impairment loss

allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a significant

increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the Group recognises lifetime

ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is
based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring
since initial recognition.

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default occurring
on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition. In making this assessment, the Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into account when
assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly:

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the financial
instrument’s external (if available) or internal credit rating;

. significant deterioration in external market indicators of credit
risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit spread, the credit
default swap prices for the debtor; and
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Financial instruments (Cont'd)

Financial assets (Cont'd)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to impairment

assessment under HKFRS 9 (Cont'd)

(i)  Significant increase in credit risk (Cont'd)

. existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial or
economic conditions that are expected to cause a significant
decrease in the debtor's ability to meet its debt obligations;

0 an actual or expected significant deterioration in the operating
results of the debtor; and

0 an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of the
debtor that results in a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the Group
presumes that the credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition when contractual payments are more than 30 days past
due, unless the Group has reasonable and supportable information
that demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria used
to identify whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk
and revises them as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are
capable of identifying significant increase in credit risk before the

amount becomes past due.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BT RS HRER MR

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE-T-TE=A=T-HIEFE

3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Financial instruments (Cont'd)

Financial assets (Cont'd)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9 (Cont'd)

(i

(iii)

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers an event of
default occurs when information developed internally or obtained
from external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its
creditors, including the Group, in full (without taking into account any
collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that default has
occurred when a financial asset is more than 90 days past due unless
the Group has reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is more
appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that
have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of that
financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-
impaired includes observable data about the following events:

(@) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due event;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Financial instruments (Cont'd)

Financial assets (Cont'd)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9 (Cont'd)

(ii)

(iv)

Credit impaired financial assets (Cont'd)

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual
reasons relating to the borrower'’s financial difficulty, having
granted to the borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s)
would not otherwise consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is information
indicating that the counterparty is in severe financial difficulty and there
is no realistic prospect of recovery, for example, when the
counterparty has been placed under liquidation or has entered into
bankruptcy proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables, when the
amounts are over two years past due, whichever occurs sooner.
Financial assets written off may still be subject to enforcement activities
under the Group’s recovery procedures, taking into account legal
advice where appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition
event. Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BT RS HRER MR

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE-T-TE=A=T-HIEFE

3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Financial instruments (Cont'd)

Financial assets (Cont'd)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9 (Cont'd)

\Y)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of default,
loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there is a default)
and the exposure at default. The assessment of the probability of
default and loss given default is based on historical data adjusted by
forward-looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased
and probability-weighted amount that is determined with the
respective risks of default occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual cash
flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the contract and
the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at the
effective interest rate determined at initial recognition.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset unless the financial asset is credit-impaired, in which case
interest income is calculated based on amortised cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss for
all financial instruments by adjusting their carrying amount, with the
exception of trade receivables and contract assets where the
corresponding adjustment is recognised through a loss allowance
account.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)
Financial instruments (Cont'd)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified as either
financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in
the assets of a group entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments issued by the group entities are recognised at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities

The Group's financial liabilities including trade payables, other payables and
accrued charges and bank borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights
to the cash flows from the asset expire. or when it transfers the financial
asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable
is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the
Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit
or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BT RS HRER MR

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE-T-TE=A=T-HIEFE

3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)
Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF Scheme”) as
defined contribution plan are recognised as an expense when employees
have rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

Short-term and other long-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the undiscounted amount
of the benefits expected to be paid as and when employees rendered the
services. All short-term employee benefits are recognised as an expense
unless another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit in
the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees (such as wages
and salaries and annual leave) after deducting any amount already paid.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee benefits are
measured at the present value of the estimated future cash outflows
expected to be made by the Group in respect of services provided by
employees up to the reporting date. Any changes in the liabilities’ carrying
amounts resulting from service cost, interest and remeasurements are
recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that another HKFRS
requires or permits their inclusion in the cost of an asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)
Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable
profit differs from profit before taxation as reported in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income because of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of each reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial statements and
the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits
will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can
be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in
a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that
affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, except where the Group is able
to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments are only recognised to the extent that it
is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to
utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to
reverse in the foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BT RS HRER MR

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE-T-TE=A=T-HIEFE

3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)
Taxation (Cont'd)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset is
realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of each reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of each reporting period, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing transactions in
which the Group recognises the right-of-use assets and the related lease
liabilities, the Group first determines whether the tax deductions are
attributable to the right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are attributable to the
lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS |2 Income Taxes requirements to
the leasing transaction as a whole. Temporary differences relating to right-
of-use assets and lease liabilities are assessed on a net basis. Excess of
depreciation on right-of-use assets over the lease payments for the
principal portion of lease liabilities resulting in net deductible temporary
differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and when they relate to income taxes levied to the same taxable entity by
the same taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned
on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they are incurred.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal
or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that the Group
will be required to settle the obligations, and a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the
consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of each
reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding
the obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows
estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present
value of those cash flows (where the effect of the time value of money is
material).

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that entity
(foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing on
the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences on the settlement of monetary items, and on the
retranslation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they arise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BT RS HRER MR

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE-T-TE=A=T-HIEFE

4.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which are described
in note 3, the management is required to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and underlying
assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimates is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in
the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

The followings are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of each reporting period
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets within the next financial year.

Engineering service contracts

The Group reviews and revises the estimates of contract revenue, contract
costs, variation orders and contract claims prepared for each engineering
service contract as the contract progresses. Budgeted engineering service
costs are prepared by the management on the basis of quotations from
time to time provided by the major subcontractors, suppliers or vendors
involved and the experience of the management. In order to keep the
budget accurate and up-to-date, the management conducts periodic
reviews of the budgets of contracts by comparing the budgeted amounts
to the actual amounts incurred. Such significant estimate may have impact
on the profit or loss recognised in each period.

Recognised amounts of engineering service contract revenue and related
receivables reflect the management’s best estimate of each contract's
outcome and stage of completion, which are determined on the basis of a
number of estimates. This includes the assessment of the profitability of
on-going engineering service contracts. For more complex contracts in
particular, costs to complete and contract profitability are subject to
significant estimation uncertainty. Notwithstanding that the management
frequently reviews and revises the estimates of both the estimated revenue
and direct costs as the contracts progress, changes in estimates or the
actual outcome will affect the carrying amounts of contract assets/liabilities
with the corresponding adjustments to future revenue and/or direct costs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Cont'd)
Engineering service contracts (Cont'd)

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group recognised contract
revenue and contract costs amounted to HK$568,428,000 and
HK$513,663,000 respectively (2019: HK$396,348,000 and
HK$348,704,000 respectively).

Impairment assessment on trade receivables and contract assets

ECL on trade receivables and contract assets are assessed individually. The
assessment is based on the internal credit ratings, ageing, repayment history
and/or past due status of the respective customers. Estimated loss rates are
based on historical observed default rates over the expected life of the
debtors and are adjusted for forward-looking information. The loss
allowance amount of the credit impaired trade receivables and contract
assets is measured as the difference between the asset's carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows with the consideration
of expected future credit losses.

At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are reassessed
and changes in the forward-looking information are considered.

As at 31 March 2020, the trade receivables and contract assets amounting
to HK$59,812,000 and HK$131,565,000 respectively (2019:
HK$56,155,000 and HK$ 143,980,000 respectively).

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates. The information
about the ECL, the Group’s trade receivables and contract assets are
disclosed in notes 31, |15 and |7, respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE-T-TE=A=T-HIEFE
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5.

Revenue

Revenue represents the fair value of amounts received or receivable arising
from the engineering service contracts of the Group from external
customers. The Group's revenue is solely derived from electrical and
mechanical engineering (“E&M engineering”) services with the focus on the
supply, installation and maintenance of mechanical ventilation and air-
conditioning system (“MVAC system”) and low voltage electrical system in
Hong Kong during the years ended 3| March 2020 and 2019. Such services
are recognised as a performance obligation satisfied over time as the
Group creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as the
asset is created or enhanced. Revenue is recognised for these services
based on the stage of completion of the contract using input method.

(i)  Disaggregation of revenue
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For the year ended 3| March

BE=A=1+—HILEE

2020 2019
it 23 —E-NF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTHER T
Type of services ARI5 A
— Supply, installation and —fhE - RERR
maintenance of MVAC system HEHWBRZ AR 450,499 3157233
— Supply, installation and — HE - ZEREEBEE
maintenance of low voltage BERRL
electrical system 117,929 81,115
568,428 396,348

The revenue recognised for the years ended 3| March 2020 and
2019 are mainly from private sector projects.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5.  REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd)
Revenue (Contd)

(i) Transaction price allocated to the remaining performance obligation
for contracts with customers

The transaction price allocated to the remaining performance
obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) as at 31 March 2020
amounting to approximately HK$1,274,067,000 (2019:
HK$1,157,287,000). Based on the information available to the Group
at the end of the reporting period, management expects that the
remaining performance obligations will be recognised as revenue
during the years ending 31 March 2021 to 2023 (2019: 31 March
2020 to 2022).

Segment information

For the purpose of resources allocation and performance assessment, the
executive directors of the Company, being the chief operating decision
maker, review the overall results and financial position of the Group as a
whole. Accordingly, the Group has only one single operating segment and
only entity-wide disclosures, major customers and geographical information
are presented.

e IS ERRME

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE_Z-TF-A=1—HIEE

Wk o IER (&)

Wk (&)

iy P"ETEFPEHNFHEBEANR
ERR ZER
RZZEZZTF=A=+—0H"
PRETFTREREFELOFBELNE
FCREBEITHBOREIT) B
T ZEEL) 127406700078
TT(ZZE— R : 1,157,287,000
BIT) o AR AEE R A H
KASHER - EEETEH
FHpBEHNEETERREEHSE

TE T FE T - =F=
A=+—B(ZE—h%F : =
E_EFE T -_—F=H4

=t+—HB) EFERES

2 EE R

ARERDERRBRAEMS - AR
AMATEFERIERLLERE
F P ASEBEES MY BR
e Bt AEEER —EE
RENE  ERIREERBHEER

RE TSRS RMELH -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

For the year ended 31 March 2020

HE-_T-_TE-A-1-HIEE

5.

The Group's revenue are all derived from Hong Kong based on the
location of services delivered and the Group's property and equipment and
right-of-use assets amounting to HK$28,002,000 as at 31 March 2020
(2019: HK$21,665,000) are all located in Hong Kong by physical location of

assets.

Information about major customers

Revenue attributed from customers that accounted for 10% or more of

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd)

Geographical information

the Group's total revenue during the years is as follows:

WERkoEHER (&

& B K

BRIEFRERG RIS - KEEMHUK

= REES ﬁﬁ%?%%%ﬁ
B2 AEBR -_ZE-_TFE=FH

=+ —H A&28002000% (=&
— N 216650007 7T ) K9 2 &

REANEREEEDMRES °

FHEETERFHNENR

RERIR B (54N B W A 10%
A FME PRSI ¢

For the year ended 3| March

BE=-A=1+T—HILEE

2020 2019

2-BF T NF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FRERT THETT

Customer A EEA 137,369 N/A 38 A *

Customer B =FB 113,389 60,654

Customer C XFC 57,256 79,091

Customer D ZFD N/A 738 3 * 75,490
* Revenue from the relevant customer was less than 10% of the Group’s total revenue for the b REBFE  REBETFHORSER

respective year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IS ERRME

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE_T-_TF-A=T-HIEFE

6. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS 6. EENEEMES
Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments () EBERBETHRAENHME
During the years ended 31 March 2020 and 2019, the emoluments N2 T - FTEFELE_-F
paid or payable by the entities now comprising the Group to the —NEF=A=F+—HIFE "
directors and chief executive of the Company were as follows: NREFBREBRETNEZRAAN
AEERIBTRABEM
SRS IT -
Retirement
benefit
Directors’ Discretionary scheme
fees Salaries bonus  contributions Total
BARER
BEHe e [l R AN B JEEA @t
HK$°000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$’000
TEr TER TEr TER TER
For the year ended BE-_E-EF
31 March 2020 ZAZ+-BLEE
Executive Directors HITES
Yu Cheung Choy (note i) AR AT (MEED) - 2,496 936 8 3,450
Lau Man Ching (notes i and i) B F (M Rii) - 2,088 783 18 2,889
Yu Ho Chi (note v) AR (M) 122 348 = 5 475
Independent BYFHTES
Non-Executive Directors
Lam Yim Nam (note ii) A E (Pl T i) 156 - - - 156
Law Man Wah (notes ii and v) %8302 (Fif5Ei Jov) 65 - - - 65
Lee Wing Kee (note i) oA () 156 = = = 156
To Yan Ming Edmond HBIS (HaEi Rvi)
(notes i and vi) 64 - - - 64
563 4932 1719 41 7,255
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e BT RS HRER MR

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE-T-TE=A=T-HIEFE

6. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (Cont'd) 6. EENEEME (&)
(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (Cont'd) @ EEREETHRAESNMEE)
Retirement
benefit
Directors’ Discretionary scheme
fees Salaries bonus contributions Total
BRIRER
EEikn i B TEAT IR Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TR THET TR TET TAET

For the year ended BE-E-—nF
31 March 2019 ZA=t-HLEHFE
Executive Directors BiTES
Yu Cheung Choy (note i) AR AT (D) - 2376 495 18 2889
Lau Man Ching (notes i and i) 21X & (Fi5Ei Kiii) = 1,992 415 18 2425

Non-Executive Director FHTES
&0
B

Yu Ho Chi (note iv) A (fzEiv) 156 - - - 156
Independent BIYFHITES

Non-Executive Directors
Lam Yim Nam (note i) ARl (MaE i) 156 - - - 156
Lee Wing Kee (note i) 25k E (BT 156 = - - 156
To Yan Ming Edmond (note ii) 4t B8 (KizE i) 156 - - i 156

624 4,368 910 36 5938
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BT RS HRER M EE

6. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (Cont'd)

@)

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (Cont'd)

Notes:

0]

(i)

(ii)

(iv)

)

(V)

The emoluments of Mr. Yu and Mr. Lau Man Ching (“Mr. Lau”), who is the chief
executive officer and executive director of the Company, shown above were for
their services in connection with the management of the affairs of the Company or its
subsidiaries undertaking.

The emoluments of independent non-executive directors shown above were for
their services as directors of the Company.

Mr. Lau is also the chief executive officer of the Company and his remuneration
disclosed above included these services rendered by him as chief executive officer.

Mr. Yu Ho Chi was re-designated from a non-executive director to an executive
director with effect from |3 January 2020. The emolument when Mr. Yu Ho Chi was
a non-executive director was for his services as a director of the Company. The
emolument when Mr. Yu Ho Chi was an executive director was for his services in
connection with the management of the affairs of the Company or its subsidiaries
undertaking.

Dr. Law Man Wah was appointed as an independent non-executive director with
effect from | November 2019.

Mr. To Yan Ming Edmond passed away on 28 August 2019.

During the years ended 3| March 2020 and 2019, no remuneration
was paid by the Group to the directors of the Company as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation
for loss of office. No directors have waived any remuneration during
both years.

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE"Z-THE-A-T-HLAFE

6. EBRESME(H)
EERBETRASHNME(E)

@

MaE

0

(i)

(if)

(v)

)

(vi)

REBEE_-Z

EXHTRmMAEERBIXELE
(T2%%E] ARBTHERR
HTEFR)NHERRERER
RABHEKE A B EHmAE
REH M -

EXFRRBIIERITE EHH B
REEEERATDNEENHE

BIEETRARBTHRAES - B
R EXRENHEEEETR
RERHRZER -

EJU/I:lEleiE T-TF—AR
+,EIEEE3F$MT§$BHE$MT
EE - aEE REERIENTE
EENHE REETARAES
REUBRBHOME - aUES EEIE
ROTESEENESHEREMR
ERANRIRENE AR EHM
AERBHME o

BXEBTE_T—NF+—AH
— BREREREIFITES -

HEEEER - —
ZHNHBEH o

—ETFR-E

hENR

Sl = ﬁ T—HLEFE -
REBIEARNRBEFT
1 57 B 4F 5 T 5| 1 5 1A 8K
PAAN AN 62 (B s 6 22 /B - 3K

Ve RER R 8

c RAEFE -

BEE S WETAHH -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BT RS HRER MR

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE-T-TE=A=T-HIEFE

6. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (Cont'd) 6.

(b)

Employees’ emoluments

The five highest paid individuals included two directors whose
emoluments are included in the disclosures in (a) above for each of
the years ended 31 March 2020 and 2019. The emoluments of the
remaining three individuals for each of the years ended 31 March
2020 and 2019 were as follows:

EEkEEME (E)

(b)

ESME
hEREHATBEEEC
T_TFER-T—NEF=A
ST -HUEFESEFMEF
AEXQ@QBEEFHREES -
BE_T_ZEFER-_T—A
F=ZA=+—HIEFERF -
Hp =2 ATHMEMT

For the year ended 3| March
BE=A=t+—-HLEFE

2020 2019

—ECEF —E-NF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET TATT

Salaries and other benefits e R HE A 3,333 3,162
Retirement benefit scheme contributions  iERfE A 5T 2|30 54 54
3,387 3216

Their emoluments were within the following bands:

RENMENFLATEE :

For the year ended 3| March
BE=-A=t—-HLEFE

2020 2019
—ECEF —T-hF
Number of individuals
EBE A"
Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 Z % |,000,000 77T = I
HK$ 1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001 T2 1,500,000 % 7T 3 2

During the years ended 31 March 2020 and 2019, no emoluments
were paid by the Group to the five highest paid individuals as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation
for loss of office.
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7.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

OTHER INCOME AND OTHER GAIN AND LOSS 7e

e IS ERRME

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE_Z-TF-A=1—HIEE

HA WA R E A K35 & &5 18

For the year ended 3| March
BE=A=t+—-HLHFE

2020 2019
t et 23 — N
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET FHET
Other income: Hip A -
Bank interest income |ITFEHA 758 921
Interest income from debt instruments at REREHEK A BRAERTIA
amortised cost GORIISN PN 354 72
Dividend income from insurance policy RERERRSBA 56 60
Dividend income from financial assets REEBERAFEFTABRZN
at FVTPL TREEMNREEA 603 215
Sundry income FETEUA 224 56
1,995 1,324
Other gain and loss: Hitu i & g5
Fair value (loss) gain on financial assets at BATEGFABSNEREE
FVTPL NFE (B8 Was (3,057) 979

FINANCE COSTS

8.

BE A

For the year ended 3| March
HE=-A=t—-HLEE

2020 2019

HK$ 000 HK$'000

FH&xT THET

Interests on bank borrowings SRITIE A B 311 396
Interests on lease liabilities HEBEFE 342 -
653 396
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE-T-TE=A=T-HIEFE

9. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

9. BRBLATEAR

For the year ended 3| March

BE=A=1+T—HILEE

2020 2019
—ECEH —E-NF
HK$°000 HK$'000
TET FHET
Profit before taxation has been arrived at B B AT v A4S HABR LA T B TR B ¢
after charging:
Auditor's remuneration A G 1,450 1,380
Depreciation of property and equipment MENRIETE 1,360 1,393
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEENE 2,221 N/A 38
Directors’ emoluments (note 6) EEME (Miske) 7,255 5938
Other staff costs: HAth 8 TR -
Salaries and other benefits Fre MEAEF 56,075 46,013
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RIRB R B30 2,027 [,680
Total staff costs BIKA4E 65,357 53,631
Minimum lease payments under operating MAYELEREET
leases in respect of office premises =EEERR N/A T A 1,827
10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 10. FREBIMAX
For the year ended 31 March
BE=A=1+—BHLFE
2020 2019
et i —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTET FET
Hong Kong Profits Tax: EENEH -
Current tax BERTIE
Provision for the year F N HE 5,671 4,765
(Over) under-provision in prior years BEFE (BEERE) BETE (16) 34
5,655 4,799
Deferred taxation (note 25) EAEFRIA (B FE25) 94 219)
5,749 4,580
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Contd)

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council passed The Inland
Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017 (the “Bill"") which introduced the
two-tiered profits tax rates regime. The Bill was signed into law on 28
March 2018 and was gazetted on the following day. Under the two-tiered
profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2 million of profits of the qualifying
group entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and profits above HK$2 million will be
taxed at 16.5%. The profits of group entities not qualifying for the two-
tiered profits tax rates regime will continue to be taxed at a flat rate of
16.5%.

Accordingly, the Hong Kong Profits Tax for the qualifying group entity is
calculated at 8.25% on the first HK$2 million of the estimated assessable
profits and at 16.5% on the estimated assessable profits above HK$2
million.

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the profit
before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as follows:

10.

e IS ERRME

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE_Z-TF-A=1—HIEE

B (&)

RZZE—N\E=ZRA=-_+—H &%
VEERB T —EMEUER)
(B7) KB ER(TEHIESR]) -
HE| AFIBH MBS - EHERR
—E-NE=ZRA=-F+N\BREEK
BEAETHRBATIEERR - BIEZ
FIEHMAEH  cEREBEER
B 200 &8 7uim M 15 1% 8.25% Ky i 3K
B - R 3B 200 8 7 TT B i Al 18
12 165% M EBH - THFAZF
SHMRFEENER TR 25
1B 16.5% 2 Bl — T RHF -

Hit - RAEREEEEBNEEF
SHIZE 2008 BT 2 Mt EER
S A A 8.25% KR 8 200 B T 2 1
FTERBUAFIAY 165%FHH o

FR - IENAXEEE B RE
tb 2 T U5 A 2 O R 250 BT 4 36 BR 20
T

For the year ended 3| March
HE=-A=t—-HLEE

2020 2019
— —T-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT FET
Profit before taxation R 750 BT 4 A 31,776 27277
Tax at the Hong Kong Profits Tax rate BEEBFEHEE 165% 5T H K
of 16.5% | 5,243 4,501
Tax effect of income not taxable for BARRMARNT K 2
tax purpose (292) (373)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for AN S TR S &
tax purpose 652 576
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AERTRIBEENHIETE 327 7
(Over) under-provision in prior years BEFEN GRERE) BETE (16) 34
Income tax at concessionary rate REEVEAENMREN (165) (165)
Income tax expense for the year FARAEHAS 5,749 4,580
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BT RS HRER MR

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE-T-TE=A=T-HIEFE

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic earings per share is based on the following data:

BRER
EREARBFEFTETIERIA T
1

For the year ended 3| March

HE=A=1+—-HLEE
2020 2019
2_BF —ET-hNF
Eamings: BF
Eamnings for the purpose of calculating STESRERZN AL
basic earmnings per share AR (RNRBHEA A
(profit for the year attributable to ERFERRA)(FHT)
owners of the Company) (HK$'000) 26,027 22,697
Number of shares: RINEEE -
Weighted average number of ordinary shares  FLetE G REAREF| 2 T
for the purpose of calculating basic RARINE T2
earings per share 400,000,000 400,000,000
No diluted earnings per share for the years ended 3| March 2020 and HREZ_Z_TFR_FT-hLF

2019 was presented as there was no dilutive potential ordinary share in
issue for both years.

DIVIDENDS

During the year ended 31 March 2020, a final dividend in respect of the
year ended 31 March 2019 of HKI.4 cents per ordinary share (HK$5.6
million in aggregate) was declared and paid to the shareholders of the
Company. Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final dividend
in respect of the year ended 3| March 2020 of HKI.7 cents per ordinary
share (HK$6.8 million in aggregate based on the number of the issued
ordinary shares of the Company as at 3| March 2020) has been proposed
by the directors of the Company and is subject to approval by the
shareholders of the Company at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, a final dividend in respect of the
year ended 31 March 2018 of HK2.2 cents per ordinary share (HK$8.8
million in aggregate) was declared and paid to the shareholders of the
Company.
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13.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IS ERRME

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE_Z-TF-A=1—HIEE

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 13. MERRE
Leasehold Computer
land and Leasehold Furniture and office
buildings improvements  and fixtures equipment Total
HELH# KRAR ERE
kEgx HEHEE BEEHE WARE st
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000
THET FEx TET FET FTET
COST 5%
At | April 2018 R-Z—N\FNA—H 24,088 2114 ,186 3241 30,629
Additions NE = 384 230 323 937
At 31 March 2019 RZZE-hE=A=1+—H 24,088 2,498 | 416 3,564 31,566
Additions NE - = 74 1,283 357
At 31 March 2020 RZZE-_TE=RA=1+—H 24,088 2,498 1490 4847 32923
ACCUMULATED BT E
DEPRECIATION
At | April 2018 RZE-\F0A—-A 3466 1,728 1,002 2312 8,508
Provided for the year FNEHE 705 242 107 339 1,393
At 31 March 2019 R-ZE—NE=A=+—H 4171 1,970 1,109 265 9901
Provided for the year FNREHE 705 163 90 402 1,360
At 31 March 2020 R-E-T#=A=+—H 4876 2,133 1,199 3053 11261
CARRYING AMOUNTS EREE
At 31 March 2020 R-ZE-_Z&=HA=+—H 19,212 365 291 1,794 21,662
At 31 March 2019 R-E-—NE=A=+—H 19917 528 307 913 21,665

The above items of property and equipment are depreciated on a straight-

line basis at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold land and buildings

Leasehold improvements

Furniture and fixtures
Computer and office equipment

Over the term of the lease of 34 years

Over the shorter of the term of the
lease or 5 years

20%

20%

YRR R B IR E SRR
THIERRIFE

HELTREF RHEHMFR
HEHE ATHEIE S & (SAR

RERBE)N
FEARBETEE 20%
AN 20%
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e BT RS HRER MR

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE-T-TE=A=T-HIEFE

14. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 4. ERBEE
Leased properties
HEME
HK$'000
TET
As at | April 2019 R=B-HAFHNA—H
Carrying amount FREE 7476
As at 31 March 2020 R=-Z-_FFNA—H
Carrying amount BREE 6,340
For the year ended 31 March 2020 BE-E-_EFE=-A=1+—HILEE
Depreciation charge HEEH 2,221
Expense relating to leases with lease terms end EIAE HAPA B K FE B B B g i 5 22 Al
within 12 months of the date of initial 5 165% B HARE 12 8 A A AS R
application of HKFRS 16 HEAMENFAX 75
Total cash outflow for leases HERES ML AR 2518
Additions to right-of-use assets RNEFEREEE 1,085
As at 31 March 2020, the Group has no outstanding short-term lease N_E_ZEF=A=+—0H A&
commitments. I 7 fe R AR R R HATH B R o
For both years, the Group leases various office premises and workshop for AEERMEFERERQEM R
its operations. Lease contracts are entered into for fixed term of | to 3 ITHUREER - HESONETE
years, but may have extension and termination options as described below. IR BRI Z3F - BR] AB TXFT
Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range AE ER R A% R R o M EIRFIR
of different terms and conditions. In determining the lease term and BERIBEREREE  ETEEHE
assessing the length of the non-cancellable period, the Group applies the Eiﬂ’a?ﬂﬂ%?ﬁ&ﬂ%# - EEEEHA
definition of a contract and determines the period for which the contract is EﬂﬁTTTﬁﬂ(fﬁﬁﬁﬁE - AEEE
enforceable. B K TE E I HEE B 497 98
TTE’JE@BE
The Group has extension and/or termination options in a number of leases REEEBE THREMRITHHE
for office premises and workshop. These are used to maximise operational EMTEE R SR IEEERE - 25
flexibility in terms of managing the assets used in the Group’s operations. BEERARNIEEASBEZMA
The majority of extension and termination options held are exercisable ZEEFKEBETMEZEA( - P
only by the Group and not by the respective lessors. BREE R R IR R AR S ER]

BAKETEMIFARLAEA °
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RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Contd)

The Group assesses at lease commencement date whether it is reasonably
certain to exercise the extension options or not to exercise the
termination options. After assessment, the Group considered that it is
reasonably certain it will exercise extension option and not exercise
termination options.

In addition, the Group reassesses whether it is reasonably certain to
exercise an extension option, or not to exercise a termination option,
upon the occurrence of either a significant event or a significant change in
circumstances that is within the control of the lessee. During the year
ended 31 March 2020, there is no such triggering event.

Restrictions or covenants on leases

In addition, lease liabilities of HK$6,592,000 are recognised with related
right-of-use assets of HK$6,340,000 as at 31 March 2020. The lease
agreements do not impose any covenants other than the security interests
in the leased assets that are held by the lessor. Leased assets may not be
used as security for borrowing purposes.

TRADE RECEIVABLES

e IS ERRME

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE_Z-TF-A=1—HIEE

EREEE#)
AKENHERE A BFHEE G 6L
MR IR EITE TR R AT
EAS DR IBRE - CRVA1R - AKE
RSE IR BT REHEE
BERAITER LEFRE -

AN B3 AT RE R AL
C e E N Ok E R e = sy [ i
AEESEFNTHERTAERETE
TR R ISR NI THE RN IRE
- HE—_T-_ZTF=-FA=+—H
I\ W IEEE =T -

TSR H 2%

pfoh RZE_FF=ZRA=+—
B - mtAEEEE A E E 6,340,000/8
TTHERHEE B & 6,592,000/ 7T © B
HEHRABENHEESENERER
AN - FHE 15 % I M B AN R T 3255 o
HEEETSRIEERER -

B 5 EWRKE

As at 3| March

R=A=+—H
2020 2019
—g-¥fF -T-hF
HK$°000 HK$'000
TExT FHBTT
Trade receivables E 5 W FRIE 60,379 56,522
Less: Impairment loss allowance B EEEERE (567) (367)
59,812 56,155

As at | April 2018, trade receivables from contracts with customers
amounted to HK$20,705,000.

R-ZE—N\FMWMA—H kXBEF
A B 5 FE Y IE 420,705,000
BT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BT RS HRER MR

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE-T-TE=A=T-HIEFE

15.

TRADE RECEIVABLES (Contd)

The Group grants credit terms of 30 days to its customers from the date
of invoices on progress billings of contract works. An aged analysis of the
trade receivables net of impairment loss allowance presented based on the

H 5 MR IE ()

AEEEAANTIEERARED
HR M E RS B 30 RIS -
RERERRENEEAB25

invoice date at the end of each reporting period is as follows: B 5 rEWFIE (KR EEERE)
BRATIT

As at 3| March

R=RA=+-—H
2020 2019
T-BF —FNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHERT FET
0-30 days 0&E 30K 47,209 41,833
31-60 days 31 260K 11,194 10,498
61-90 days 61 290K 697 1,708
Over 90 days HBHR 90K 712 2,116
59,812 56,155

As at 31 March 2020, included in the Group's trade receivables balance are
debtors with aggregate carrying amount of HK$12,603,000 (2019:
HK$14,322,000) which are past due as at the reporting date. Out of the
past due balances, HK$712,000 (2019: HK$2,116,000) has been past due
90 days or more and is not considered as in default as these balances are
either from debtors with long term business relationship or with expected
subsequent settlement. The Group does not hold any collateral over these
balances.

Details of impairment assessment of trade receivables are set out in note
31.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BT RS HRER M EE

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE_Z-TF-A=1—HIEE

l6. OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS 6. BEfbEWEIE R REMN

5

As at 3| March

R=BA=+—H
2020 2019
—E-EF —T-hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET THET
Rental and other deposits HEREMZS 829 829
Deposits in life insurance policies (note) SRRERS (M) 1,705 1,649
Deposits paid for acquisition of property and W2 KR EN D H1Z S
equipment 150 272
Other receivables H fth pE Uk Fh18 1,564 1216
Prepayments and others ENZEREM 5,993 2,373
Total HEt 10,241 6339
Presented as non-current assets 2 AEIEREEE 2,585 2,654
Presented as current assets I ETEEE 7,656 3,685
Total 5 10,241 6,339
Note: The amount represented the deposits placed with an insurance company for the life insurance Mz : ZeBESRRARAMBEZHSRR

EmMFRRRBRARMFR - AREEE
MR RRIRIZER B BN FRER S
EE(RSEE]DEBURR - ESER
HEREMRARORIIRSEELMN
VAR AEAR] RAE RS R AR IR BB BUB (RIR
MRS EEREAER - SRAEERE
ERRERSEERS -

policies of two directors of the Company. The Group can, at any time, receive cash back
based on the cash value of the policies (“Cash Value”) at the date of withdrawal, which is
equal to the sum of tabular cash value shown in the relevant policy schedules with any
dividend accumulations and the cash values of any paid-up additions, less any indebtedness.
The carrying amount of the life insurance policies approximates the Cash Value of the

insurance policies.

Rental deposits paid were adjusted upon the initial application of HKFRS ENHERENBRERERBME
6. Details of the adjustments are set out in note 2. FEERE 165712 T AR - FHE
FHIBEEE2 o

H e W IR Sz 2 R B RH A R 1B
ANHIEE3I -

Details of impairment assessment of other receivables and deposits are set
out in note 31.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE-T-TE=A=T-HIEFE

7. CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT LIABILITIES 17. EREEREGHNEE

As at 3| March

KR=B=+—H

2020 2019

—ECEH —E-NF

HK$’000 HK$'000

TET FHET

Contract assets EHEE 134,075 146,424
Less: Impairment loss allowance B EEEERE (2,510) (2,444)
131,565 143,980

Contract liabilities BMAE 11,328 11,071

As at | April 2018, contract assets and contract liabilities amounted to
HK$80,283,000 and HK$26,6 18,000 respectively.

The Group has rights to considerations from customers for the provision
of E&M engineering services. Contract assets arise when the Group has
right to consideration for completion of E&M engineering services and not
yet billed under the relevant contracts, and their right is conditional on
factors other than passage of time. Any amount previously recognised as a
contract asset is reclassified to trade receivables when such right becomes
unconditional other than the passage of time. Remaining rights and
performance obligations in a particular contract is accounted for and
presented on a net basis, as either a contract asset or a contract liability. If
the progress payment exceeds the revenue recognised to date under the
input method, the Group recognises a contract liability for the difference.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT LIABILITIES (Contd)

The Group’s engineering service contracts include payment schedules
which require stage payments over the contract period once certain
specified milestones based on surveyors' assessment are reached.

Retention money is unsecured and interest-free and represented the
monies withheld by customers of contract works recoverable after the
completion of defect liability period of the relevant contracts or in
accordance with the terms specified in the relevant contracts, usually being
| to 2 years from the date of completion of respective E&M engineering
services projects. Normally the retention money will be accumulated up to
5% or 10% of the contract value.

The Group classifies these contract assets as current because the Group
expects to realise them in its normal operating cycle.

Details of impairment assessment of contract assets are set out in note 31.

For the contract liabilities as at 31 March 2019, HK$5,406,000 were
recognised as revenue to profit or loss during the year ended 31 March
2020.

For the contract liabilities as at | April 2018, HK$23,109,000 were
recognised as revenue to profit or loss during the year ended 31 March
2019.

The decrease in contract assets in current year is resulted from the
decrease in the Group’s right to consideration for completion of E&M
engineering services but not yet billed under the relevant contracts as at 31
March 2020.

17.

e IS ERRME

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE_Z-TF-A=1—HIEE

BHREERGNEEHE)

ALK BN TR QO RENKE
AR R2R—BEINETIRAE
RET L B0 P8 2R - RIFRNE R
HAfR A H PR B AN 3K

REE SEER N - WIEIER
BRMRIERERR - SAREAERE
BRRTANAR  BEREHET
BRBEBZRE—E2E-FTIRER
FIEMO AR ERES - REE—
RS RetEA NEEMNS5%10%

AEBEZEANEEDBBR
B TERNARERRE-—REE

B R E ERER G BN T
30 @

MR —_ZE—NEFE=A=+—HHE
4B 1E 5406000 TREBE-F
—EFEZA=Z+—HIEFEEZD
R AU

MR- \FNA—BHEHE
& 231090008 TR E = = =
—NWEFE=ZA=+—HILFEBFHE
REWE -

REEEHNEERLDITARAEHE
ERAN_ZF_FTF-_A=1+—H
RIZHERE S KB FSh 1B i KRB A %
ZHHE T2 ARA5 WER BB A P
B o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BT RS HRER MR

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE-T-TE=A=T-HIEFE

18. DEBT INSTRUMENTS AT AMORTISED COST 18. REEHKAFIRNEHFR TR

As at 3| March

WR=B=+-—H
2020 2019
—g-®E —Z2-hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET FHET
Investment in a listed bond, with fixed RETH L 950% & EIH B A&
interest of 9.50% and maturity —EEF+—AW
date in November 2020 FHEFHIRE 2,155 2,155
Investment in a listed bond, with fixed REEF2795% R EIEA &
interest of 7.95% and maturity —E-=F+AK
date in October 2023 EHESFNEE 1,951 i
4,106 2,155
Analysed as: DA
Current e 2,155 -
Non-current ERH 1,951 2,155
4,106 2,155
Details of impairment assessment of debt instruments at amortised cost IRE N AT BER & 75 T R ERT
are set out in note 31. (EEEISEFBTEES -
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19.

20.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IS ERRME

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE_Z-TF-A=1—HIEE

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR 19. BRATESABRNEREE
LOSS
Financial assets mandatorily measured at FVTPL: AR N F(ES AIBSHEN SR
BE -
As at 31 March
R=A=+—H
2020 2019
i —FB-hF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTHER THET
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong REB TR AE S 11,693 10,434
SHORT TERM BANK DEPOSITS AND BANK BALANCES AND 20, BMHIRTHERURBITERR

CASH

As at 31 March 2019, short term bank deposits represents bank deposits
carrying fixed interest rate at 2.00% per annum with an original maturity
between three months and twelve months.

Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the Group and bank
deposits carry at variable interest rates with an original maturity of three
months or less. As at 31 March 2020, the variable interest rates ranged
from 0.01% to 1.78% (2019: 0.01% to 1.29%) per annum.

BE

RN-ZEBE-NE=A=+—08 " EH
R1T 17 35 & 7F F F) F2.00% & R
FEHBEA=@AZE+ (@A WMIET

RITEB MRS EREASEMEFER
© RIBITFERGRZEF R B -
REHBEHA=ZEAKAT) K=
TE_TFE-_A=+—H FHEFH
ENFO00I1%E 1 78%(ZF—N4F :
0.01% % 129%) °
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e ISR

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE-T-TE=A=T-HIEFE

21. TRADE PAYABLES

The credit period on purchases and subcontracting of contract work
services ranges from 30 to 60 days generally. The following is an aged
analysis of trade payables presented based on the invoice date at the end
of each reporting period:

2. BESEMNSRE
YIEHRE M D B4 N TRRRENE
FEBEENF0ENKX LA TAE
REREBRENBEZHEHZ5H
B SN FORRER DT

As at 3| March

R=B=+—H
2020 2019
HK$ 000 HK$'000
THER FET

Trade payables: 2 5 BN IR

0-30 days 0E 30K 13,743 15017
31-60 days 31 260K 18,401 21,666
32,144 36,683

22. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUED CHARGES

22. HttENREREFER

As at 3| March

R=A=+—8H
2020 2019
T_ZF —E-NF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Accrued staff costs FEEH B TR 6,615 5,627
Accrued contract costs FEET B AR AR 27,301 17,683
Other accrued charges HuppEst& A 1,794 2,009
Retention payables (note) FEHRE S (FiFE) 32,489 24,445
68,199 49,764

Note: Retention payables to subcontractors of contract works are interest-free and payable by the

Group after the completion of defect liability period of the relevant contracts or in

accordance with the terms specified in the relevant contracts, ranging from | to 2 years from

the completion date of the respective engineering service contracts.

Accrued lease liabilities included in other accrued charges as at 31 March
2019 were adjusted upon the initial application of HKFRS [ 6. Details of the

adjustments are set out in note 2.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BT RS HRER M EE

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE_Z-TF-A=1—HIEE

23.  LEASE LIABILITIES 3. HEEE
As at
31 March 2020
R-Z2_2H
=R=+-H
HK$°000
FET
Lease liabilities payable: ERTHERIE -
Within one year —F R 2,294
Within a period of more than one year but not exceeding ~—%4F LA _F{B N B @R G
two years 2,182
Within a period of more than two years but not exceeding FISELA_HE BB A F
five years 2,116
6,592
Less: Amount due for settlement with 12 months shown ¥ : REN B EE F5IR 1218 A 2 Ef
under current liabilities &% (2,294)
Amount due for settlement after |2 months shown under  JEREIBEIE NFI7R 128 A 12 3| 2
non-current liabilities FEft 258 4,298
24. BANK BORROWINGS 24 BIFEZ
As at 31 March
KR=B=+—H
2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Secured bank borrowings BEBEITER 6,816 9 164
Carrying amounts repayable (note): fEE R REE (ML)
Within one year R—FA 742 2,358
Within a period of more than one year but —F LA BT BBMRE
not exceeding two years 767 733
Within a period of more than two years but ~ BRF LA FE BB RS
not exceeding five years 2,453 2,359
Within a period of more than five years BiEAF 2,854 3714
6,816 9,164
Note: The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan agreements. Misr : mEIRBEHERNER G EETEEE
HEAEN -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BT RS HRER MR

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE-T-TE=A=T-HIEFE

24.

BANK BORROWINGS (Cont'd)

All the bank borrowings as at 31 March 2020 and 2019 contain a repayable
on demand clause and are shown under current liabilities.

The ranges of effective interest rates (which are also equal to contracted
interest rates) on the Group’s bank borrowings are as follows:

24.

MITIER(E)

RZE-ZEFER=_FT—NE=A
=+ —HRMBRITERMERER
EREERE - AFIRREBERET -

REERITEE
RETHIFI R ) &

RNERHM K (I F
N

As at 3| March

KR=B=+—H
2020 2019
T_FF —T-hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Effective interest rate (per annum): BERER|ZR
Floating-rate borrowings FENEERK 3.78% 2.65%-592%

All bank borrowings as at 3| March 2020 and 2019 were guaranteed by
corporate guarantees of the Company.

Certain banking facilities of the Group were secured by leasehold land and
buildings owned by the Group as at 31 March 2020 and 2019.

As at 31 March 2020 and 2019, the Group had a facility agreement
entered into with a bank with certain obligation of Mr. Yu and Mr. Lau
pursuant to such facility agreement including the following: (i) Mr. Yu and
Mr. Lau undertake to maintain as the largest shareholders of the Company
directly or indirectly; and (ii) Mr. Yu and Mr. Lau shall remain as the
chairman or director of the Company.
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25.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BT RS HRER M EE

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE_Z-TF-A=1—HIEE

BANK BORROWINGS (Cont'd) 24. ﬁ&h CENEP)
As at 3| March 2020 and 2019, the Group had another facility agreement T ECEFENRN_E—NE=A
entered into with a bank with the following obligation undertaken by the _—f— H AEBES—HE—XK
Group: (i) In case of Mr. Yu and Mr. Lau are not the major shareholders of RITEIV R EHZE » NEED X
the Company, the Group should notify the bank |4 days in advance; and HFHUATEMT : ()wan L ERBILE
(i) In case of Mr. Yu is not entitled to be chairman of the Company, the WIERATEERRE » AEEER
Group should notify the bank 14 days in advance. IRITEL 14 RFBLBIA X G0) MW
MEETEERRRER  A5E
JAMIRTTEEH 14 REFLBA -
During the year ended 3| March 2020, the Group had another facility HE—_E-_FEF=A=+—HI&E
agreement newly entered into with a bank with the following obligation B AEBES—(HE—FKIBITH
undertaken by the Group: (i) In case of Mr. Yu and Mr. Lau are not the SIVHRE S ANEED A
major shareholders of the Company, the Group should notify the bank 14 T&EFE: () fREn e E R B EIIE
days in advance; and (i) In case of Mr. Yu and Mr. Lau are not entitled to RNAREEBINER » KEFEBREIT
be chairman or director of the Company, the Group should notify the B I4REBRBA: Kd)fHan kL
bank 14 days in advance. KRB EETHEEARAT EFK
B AEEARBITEL 4KF
FRA ©
DEFERRED TAXATION 25. ELEMIE
The following is the deferred tax assets (liabilities) recognised and Tﬁljﬁﬁﬁifﬁbx?‘fiﬁmﬂﬁﬁ
movements thereon during the current and prior years. RIELETRIBELE(BE) RAEES -
Accelerated
accounting
depreciation ECL provision Total
EHEE
EGsHNE EERE Bt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FHExT FET
At | April 2018 RZZE—N\FWOA—H 13 - 13
Credit to profit or loss (note 10) &+ AtEzs (MizE 10) 3 216 219
At 31 March 2019 R-ZZE-—hE=R=+—H l6 216 232
(Charge)credit to profit or (k& Q )t AfE s (FEE 10)
loss (note 10) (138) 44 (94)
At 31 March 2020 R-ZEBE-_EF=H=+—H (122) 260 |38
At 31 March 2020, the Group has unused estimated tax losses of RZZEZZTF=A=+—H K&
HK$7,607,000 (2019: HK$5,627,000). No deferred tax asset has been EEAABAMGAHIEER
recognised in respect of such estimated tax losses due to the 760700078 T( = T — N F
unpredictability of future profit stream. All tax losses may be carried 5,627,000 7T ) o B3 pA £ LA TEORI B
forward indefinitely. BaRMERE - FAr EL A A

AAMEEEERRELERIREE © T
B TIE R 1R A] R B A
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e ISR

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE-T-TE=A=T-HIEFE

26. PROVISIONS 26. BE
Long service
payments
RHRBE R
HK$'000
AT
At | April 2018 RZZE—N\FHA—H 280
Provided for the year FREE 94
At 31 March 2019 R—_E—NF=A=1+—H 374
Provided for the year FNEAE 200
At 31 March 2020 RZZE-_ZEF=A=+—H 574

The Group provides for the probable future long service payments
expected to be made to employees under the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance. The provision represents the management's best estimate of
probable future payments which have been eamed by the employees from

AEBERARRETERE G
BEFHITTEE
AHEEE - BBEEEES
BEEHNEECHRERTREER

R BRI K
HEHR

their services to the group entities up to the end of each reporting period. B2 1 AR 75 P R EX R] BE R 2R S ) B
b5t o
27. SHARE CAPITAL 27. BRA
Details of share capital of the Company are as follows: RATIBRAEEE FBOT ¢
Amount
Number &5
of shares HK$ HK$°000
RHEE BT THET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each FREMB0I BTH T B
Authorised: EE
At | April 2018, 31 March 2019 and 2020 F—?f)\imﬂ a3 EI
—NERZZTTF
_)EJ E—1IE 10,000,000,000 100,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTREBHEXM:
At | April 2018, 31 March 2019 and 2020 )EA:%—)\EEH —A-
—NER_ZT_TF
_)EJ =—E 400,000,000 4,000,000 4,000
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29.

30.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IS ERRME

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE_Z-TF-A=1—HIEE

PLEDGE OF ASSETS 28. EBEIEM
At the end of the reporting periods, the Group pledged the following NBEHEHAR - KEBRIEBUTE
assets to secure the bank borrowings and banking facilities including ENABSRTEZEBTRE (B
performance guarantees issued by the banks. RITRERBLIRE) VEHER o
The carrying amounts of the assets pledged are as follows: SIEFEEEmEWNT -
As at 3| March
R=A=+—H
2020 2019
—g-®F —2-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET THETT
Leasehold land and buildings HE+THRIEF 19,212 19917
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 29. BBMAEXRS
Other than as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, BRINGRE B Tk Efthith 75 PR B8
the Group does not have any material related party transactions for both FHN - RNREBRRIEFE I B
years. BABBARS -
Compensation to key management personnel FEEBEASNEM
Compensation to key management personnel of the Group which AEBFEEBAB(BIARRE
represent the directors of the Company is set out in note 6(a). =) B FBE R MIEE 6(a) ©
CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 30. EXERER

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will be
able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to owners
through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which includes bank
borrowings as disclosed in note 24, and equity of the Group, comprising
share capital and reserves.

The management of the Group reviews the capital structure regularly
taking into account the cost of capital and the risk associated with the
capital. The Group will balance its overall capital structure through issuance
of new shares and raising new borrowings or the repayment of the existing
borrowings.

AEBERHEER  AEFRAEE
ETERRAFELE RSB
BILEBRER FEAZAHES
AH[EIFR o

AEENEARAREHES(BIEM
24T BIRTITIESR) KA KB
o (BB K)o

AEEEEERLT NERKA R E
BEARRBANERE BRI EANR
B ARERBERTHR 8%
MERSEERBERTEHEEE
B -
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE-T-TE=A=T-HIEFE

31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 3. EMTH
Categories of financial instruments LRI ANER

As at 3| March

R=ZA=+—H
2020 2019
—R_F —F—NF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET THTT
Financial assets TREE
Financial assets at FVTPL BATEGABSNEMEE 11,693 10,434
Financial assets at amortised cost RS RN SRt B E 207,519 161,591
Financial liabilities A= Y-Ni
Amortised cost et S DN 105,564 94,029
Financial risk management objectives and policies MERBEEEERBE
The Group’s financial instruments include financial assets at FVTPL, debt AEBN ST ABRFBRATER
instruments at amortised cost, trade receivables, other receivables and ABRHEMEE « REHKAT
deposits, short term bank deposits, bank balances, trade payables, other RHOEBEBRIE BHREMHNIE - H
payables and accrued charges, bank borrowings and lease liabilities. Details KRB RIS  RERITE
of these financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks Mo RITHER BEHEMNNIA A
associated with these financial instruments and the policies on how to R IE&J_EJE% RITREK
mitigate these risks are set out below. The management manages and KEEAE - FAZEERIAN
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are HEREMTHRE - FHRZESR
implemented on a timely and effective manner. T A=k KRR E % & Rk H)

HRENTX - BEEEE EE&WTI
% 5 B LA RE AR I B 7B UM 1T

RTE B o
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31

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd) 3.

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Cont'd)

Market risk

(i) Currency risk
The group entities have financial assets denominated in currencies
other than their respective functional currencies. Consequently, the
Group is exposed to risks that the exchange rate of functional
currencies relative to other currencies may change in a manner that
has an adverse effect on the value of the position of the Group’s
assets denominated in foreign currencies.

The exposure primarily arises from the investments in listed bond
and bank balances denominated in United States dollars ("US$").

The carrying amounts of the Group's foreign currency denominated
monetary assets at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

e IS ERRME

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE_Z-TF-A=1—HIEE

SRMIE @)
HEAREEEEREE (&)
15 AR

O ERES

SEERABEUSEIRE
BN EB T ENERE
B o Bt - AEBEEREE
BEREMEB ZEXFLE
g BAKERINEFED
EEBEELETNEZENR

LA
a0
A

o

ZERBERKRBRET(IE
TTDFHEMR EHESF &R
TTREBRNE -

AEBEINSHEEREER
WEPRNEEELT

As at 3| March

R=A=+—H
2020 2019
—ECEF —ZT-hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FA&T
US$ =TT 4,387 2,155

Under the pegged exchange rate system, the financial impact in
exchange fluctuation between HK$ and US$ is considered to be
immaterial and therefore no sensitivity analysis has been prepared.

RIBEHREXGE - BLHE
TR ELRBNH B
EBWRRBIA  Ft I R4
SRE DM
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BT RS HRER MR

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE-T-TE=A=T-HIEFE

3.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd)
Financial risk management objectives and policies (Cont'd)
Market risk (Cont'd)

(i)

Interest rate risk

The Group's cash flow interest rate risk primarily relates to the bank
balances as disclosed in note 20 as well as floating-rate bank
borrowings as disclosed in note 24 as at 31 March 2020 and 2019.
The Group’s fair value interest rate risk primarily relates to fixed-rate
bond investments and lease liabilities as at 31 March 2020 as
disclosed in notes 18 and 23 and fixed-rate bond investment and
short term bank deposits as at 31 March 2019 as disclosed in notes
I8 and 20.

The Group has not used any interest rate swaps to mitigate its
exposure associated with interest rate risk. However, the
management of the Group monitors interest rate exposure and will
consider hedging significant interest rate exposure should the need
arise.

The Group's cash flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated on
the fluctuation of Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate (“HIBOR™)
arising from the Group'’s bank borrowings.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the
exposure to interest rate risk on floating-rate bank borrowings. The
sensitivity analysis is prepared assuming the floating-rate bank
borrowings outstanding at the end of the reporting period were
outstanding for the whole year. No sensitivity analysis is provided on
bank balances as the management of the Group considers that the
interest rate fluctuation on bank balances is minimal.

A 50 basis point increase or decrease is used in the sensitivity
analysis, which represents management'’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in interest rates. If the interest rate had
been 50 basis point higher/lower and all other variables were held
constant, the Group's post-tax profit for the year ended 31 March
2020 would decrease/increase by HK$28,000 (2019: HK$38,000).
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3.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd) 3.

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Cont'd)

Market risk (Cont'd)

(i) Other price risk
The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its investments in
equity securities measured at FVTPL. For equity securities measured
at FVTPL quoted in the Stock Exchange, the management manages

this exposure by maintaining a portfolio of investments with different
risks.

Sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity analyses have been determined based on the
exposure to equity price risk at the reporting date.

If the prices of the respective equity instruments had been 0%
higher/lower, the post-tax profit for the year ended 31 March 2020
would increase/decrease by HK$976,000 as a result of the changes in
fair value of equity securities measured at FVTPL (2019:
HK$871,000).

Credit risk and impairment assessment

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial
loss to the Group due to failure to discharge the obligations by
counterparties is arising from the carrying amount of the respective
recognised financial assets as stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position at the end of each reporting period.

The management adopts a policy on providing credit facilities to new
customers. A credit investigation, including assessment based on financial
information of the new customers, advice from business partners in relation
to potential customers and credit search, is required. The level of credit
granted must not exceed a predetermined level set by the management.
Credit evaluation is performed on a regular basis.

e IS ERRME

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE_Z-TF-A=1—HIEE

EMITRE)

MBERREEERRBE(E)

M ER ()

(i) BEMIEEE R
AREEBEAFEFAR
5 B P N §E 25 4% A T T R AR
B AR E R o 3L B XX AT R
EMEAFEFARSE
MBEAES EEEERA
SARTRRRNKEHS
B o

BURE DT
BRESMLRIERE BB
P TED i & A 7S (B 48 2 B 0 788
i(}

WMHEBRATAEMEBER L
FTBE10% 0 ARNRAFE
SFABZHRAEFESALE
BE BHE_ZET_TFE=H
—t+—BUEFEEBRREE
#4074 976,000 T (=&
— L5 1 871,000787T) °

FE R RBE
AEBERHF I REBTEEMS
AEERZMBBRINESEER
% TERERERREE BN
NEFFBRECRRTBEENK
g

BEERAMTFIRHEEERER
M—IABR - EEHABATHIT
BREMEPNMEER LT
i BRREERHEREETPH
EANGEREH RENEERE
TEHEEAEEERENBERE
EEFHAEH#ET -

3R 2019-20 / B EIEE @ ($=R%) AR A 7] 153



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BT RS HRER MR

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE-T-TE=A=T-HIEFE

3.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd)
Financial risk management objectives and policies (Cont'd)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Cont'd)

Trade receivables and contract assets arising from contracts with customers

In order to minimise the credit risk on trade receivables and contract
assets, management of the Group has delegated a team responsible for
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts. In addition, management of the Group reviews the
recoverable amount of each individual debt at the end of each reporting
period to ensure that adequate impairment loss allowance are made for
irrecoverable amounts on trade receivable and contract assets. The Group
applies simplified approach on trade receivables and contract assets to
provide for ECL. ECL on trade receivables and contract assets are assessed
individually. The assessment is based on the internal credit ratings, ageing,
repayment history and/or past due status of the respective customers. As
part of the Group's credit risk management, the Group applied internal
credit rating for its customers and applying the estimated loss rate ranging
from 0.46% to 9.42% (2019: 0.31% to 6.28%) over the gross carrying
amounts. In this regard, management of the Group considers that the
credit risk on trade receivables and contract assets is significantly reduced.

The Group has concentration of credit risks with exposure limited to
certain customers. The Group's largest debtor contributed approximately
47% (2019: 34%) of the Group's trade receivables and 9% (2019: 29%) of
the Group's contract assets, respectively. The Group's five largest debtors
contributed approximately 88% (2019: 88%) of the Group's trade
receivables and 63% (2019: 56%) of the Group’s contract assets,
respectively.
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3.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Cont'd)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Cont'd)

Other receivables and deposits

For other receivables and deposits, the management of the Group makes
periodic collective assessment as well as individual assessment on the
recoverability of other receivables based on historical settlement records,
past experience, and also available reasonable and supportive forward-
looking information. The management of the Group believes that there is
no material credit risk inherent in the Group’s other receivables and
deposits.

Debt instruments at amortised cost

The Group's debt instruments at amortised cost mainly comprise listed
bonds issued by companies listed in the Stock Exchange. In view of the
listed bond prices as at 31 March 2020 and the latest published financial
information of the issuer, the management of the Group believes that
there is no material credit risk inherent in the Group's debt instruments at
amortised cost.

Short term bank deposits and bank balances

As at 3| March 2020, the credit risk on bank balances (2019: short term
bank deposits and bank balances) of the Group is limited because the
counterparties are banks with good reputation and credit ratings and no
history of default in the past and no impairment loss allowance for bank
balances (2019: short term bank deposits and bank balances) was
recognised. The Group has limited exposure to any single financial
institution.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE-T-TE=A=T-HIEFE

31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd)
Financial risk management objectives and policies (Cont'd)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Cont'd)

The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of the Group's financial
assets at amortised cost and contract assets, which are subject to ECL

31

SRMIA®E)
MBEREEEEREE(E)
FERBRBERG(E)

TRAMRETRAGEEEENG
MR BIZESER AT R S B E

assessment: ERGHEEFENEERR
2020 2019
External credit  Internal credit [2mor  Gross carrying ~ Gross carrying
Note rating rating lifetime ECL amount amount
S RE NEARZE
Mz EETR  GEIR EHEEFE REAH RHAH
HK$'000 HK$'000
THL TET
Financial assets at amortised costs REBHRATIRNSREE
Trade receivables B S EWZIE 5 NIA Note | Lifetime ECL 60379 56,522
TER Mzt ek
FEBE
Other receivables and deposits HitEWEIE RiRE 13 N/A Note 2 [2m ECL 4748 3966
TR MiE2, nEABH
FEER
Debt instruments at amortised cost RS ATIRMEBIE 18 Ba3-BI N/A 12m ECL 4106 2,155
Wil 128 A
BHEERSE
Short term bank deposits BHRTER 20 Al N/A 12m ECL = 28,000
TEH EAES
FEBE
Bank balances RITER 20 Aad-A3 N/A 12m ECL 139,353 71315
TNam VR
BHEESSE
Other items Hitg g
Contract assets BHEE 17 N/A Note | Lifetime ECL 132,576 144925
Wil il 2HES
FEBE
|7 N/A Note | Lifetime ECL 499 1,499
(credit impaired)
il il 2 HES
FEBE
(EERME)
Notes: FfEE -

I For trade receivables and contract assets, the Group has applied the simplified approach in
HKFRS 9 to measure the impairment loss allowance at lifetime ECL. ECL on trade receivables
and contract assets are assessed individually. The assessment is based on the interal credit
ratings, ageing, repayment history and/or past due status of the respective customers.

2. For the purposes of internal credit risk management, the Group mainly uses past due
information to assess whether credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition. All
of these balances are not past due at 3| March 2020 and 2019.
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3.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd) 31.
Financial risk management objectives and policies (Cont'd)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Cont'd)

The following table shows the movement in lifetime ECL that has been
recognised for trade receivables and contract assets under the simplified

e IS ERRME

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE_Z-TF-A=1—HIEE

EMITRE)
MBEREEEREREE(E)
FERBRBENE(F)
TMREBRERBIOEIE 5 BUK
BRAENEERRNEHAENESR

approach. EsiEgE -
Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
(not credit impaired) (credit impaired)
2HBEBEEESR 2HEHEEESR
(RBEEERE) (BEEEHE)
Trade Contract Trade Contract
receivables assets receivables assets Total
EZEUFE ANEE EEUTE  ANEE @5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT THT THT THT FHT
Asat | April 2018 R-E-\EMAE-H = = = = -
New financial assets onginated EfHemiE 367 945 - | 499 2811
Asat 31 March 2019 R-E-NFE=A=1-H 367 945 - 1499 2811
Changes due to financial instruments REA-BARRERMIA
recognised as at | April: BYHE
— Impairment losses reversed —BRmAEER (367) (531) - - (898)
— Impaiment losses recognised — BERRESE - 479 - - 479
New financial assets originated or purchased EESBE HemEE 567 118 = = 685
As at 31 March 2020 R-BE-ZF=f=1-H 567 10l - 1,499 3077
& The lifetime ECL recognised for credit impaired contract assets is resulting from a debtor who * MELBEEERENAYNBEERANE

went into liquidation process during the year ended 31 March 2019. The gross amount of

credit impaired contract assets is approximately HK$1,499,000.

The Group writes off a trade receivable when there is information
indicating that the debtor is in severe financial difficulty and there is no
realistic prospect of recovery, e.g. when the debtor has been placed under
liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or when the trade
receivables are over two years past due, whichever occurs earlier.

HEREEBEEAEREE_ZE—NF
ZA=T—HIEFEEBAEANFRRR
RS - BEHBREERENENEER
HEEEXY A 1,499,000 A5 TT ©

WA ERBRESABABREMH
N2 E S ERRWE R - PIER
AEBBRIDEABERF - HE
FENGRIAC BB BMF (AR
RFERE) AIAKEEHMKEES
e FRIR o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BT RS HRER MR

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE-T-TE=A=T-HIEFE

3.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Cont'd)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and maintains
a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by management to

finance the Group's operations and mitigate the effects of unexpected
fluctuations in cash flows.

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual maturity for
its non-derivative financial liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on
the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date
on which the Group can be required to pay. Specifically, bank loans with a
repayment on demand clause are included in the earliest time band
regardless of the probability of the banks choosing to exercise their rights.
The maturity dates for other non-derivative financial liabilities are based on
the agreed repayment dates. To the extent that interest flows are floating
rate, the undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate at the end of
each reporting period.

The table includes both interest and principal cash flows.
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3.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IS ERRME

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE_Z-TF-A=1—HIEE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd) 3. €T AR(E)
Financial risk management objectives and policies (Cont'd) HRREMEEEERRE (&)
Liquidity risk (Cont'd) REBESRM(Z)
Weighted
average Total Total
effective Repayable Within undiscounted carrying
interest rate  on demand | year [-2 years 2-5 years cash flows amount
AT *BERS
BERAZ REREE - -EWF CZEREf RELE REAE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
% TR TR TR TR TR TR
As at 31 March 2020 A
=R=1-H
Non-derivative financial liabilities FE{T4 £ RE &
Trade payables BHEMHE N/A &R - 32,144 - - 32,144 32,144
Other payables and AMENFER  NATRER - 66,604 = - 66,604 66,604
accrued charges [EXtER
Bank borrowings RITER
— floating rate - ZEFE 378 6,816 = = - 6,816 6,816
63816 98,748 - - 105,564 105,564
Lease liabilities BEAR 478 - 2552 2335 2175 7,062 6,592
Weighted
average Total Total
effective Repayable Within - undiscounted carrying
interest rate on demand | year cash flows amount
T3 AERRE
ERME  RERER —FR mE R RE2E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
% TR TR T T
Asat 31 March 2019 RZZE—hF
=R=t+-AR
Non-derivative financial liabilities ETESRERE
Trade payables BHRNTIE NIAT B - 36,683 36,683 36,683
Other payables and HiENFIER NATEH = 48,182 48,182 48,182
accrued charges e &R
Bank borrowings RITIER
— floating rate - 2E7X 382 9,164 - 9,164 9,164
9,164 84,865 94,029 94,029
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BT RS HRER MR

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE-T-TE=A=T-HIEFE

3.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Cont'd)

Liquidity risk (Cont'd)

The amounts included above for variable interest instruments for non-
derivative financial liabilities are subject to change if changes in variable

interest rates differ to those estimates of interest rates determined at the
end of each reporting period.

Bank borrowings with a repayment on demand clause are included in the
“Repayable on demand” time band in the above maturity analysis. As at 31
March 2020 the aggregate carrying amount of these bank loans amounted
to HK$6,816,000 (2019: HK$9,164,000). Such bank borrowings of the
Group are expected to be repaid in accordance with the scheduled
repayment dates set out in the bank borrowings agreements.

For the purpose of managing liquidity risk, the management reviews the
expected cash flow information of the Group'’s bank borrowings based on
the scheduled repayment dates set out in the bank borrowings agreements

31
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ERERHITEERABENTEN
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as set out in the table below: FBEIR & nE B K
Weighted
average Total Total
effective Within 210 Over undiscounted carrying
interest rate | year 2 years 5 years Syears  cash flows amount
Y3 AERRE
BRA= —fR -EmF WMELF HBBIF RELE KEALE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FERT FERL FERL FERL FET
Bank borrowings: ﬁﬁﬁ'{’**
As at 31 March 2020 “EZTF=A=1—H 378 951 2,847 3,003 7,750 6816
Asat3IMarch 2019  R-ZF-AF=A=1—H 382 2646 2876 399 10477 9,164
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3.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd)
Fair value measurement of financial instruments

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that are measured at fair value
on a recurring basis

Some of the Group's financial assets are measured at fair value at the end
of each reporting period. The following table gives information about how
the fair values of these financial assets are determined (in particular, the
valuation technique(s) and inputs used), as well as the level of the fair value
hierarchy into which the fair value measurements are categorised (Levels |
to 3) based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements is observable.

Fair value as at

RTHBHNALE
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Financial instruments k- Sk 313 “E-NEF
EMIA =ZA=t+-H =ZA=t+-H

3.

Fair value
hierarchy

DVERRE BEERIEGARE

e IS ERRME

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE_Z-TF-A=1—HIEE

EEMIT A ()
SBMIAATENE

AR AL B LA T E T B
R AT E
AREHA B AETRERED
AEAFHEE - PRGNS
EREREEAFENER L
B ARFERRBABE) -
B BIR A B 8BS TR
REESATENERBAATE
REHERB(E-ZE=AR) -

Valuation technique(s)
and key input(s)

Financial assets at fair value Equity securities

through profit or loss listed in Hong Kong:

HK$1 1,693,000 HK$10,434,000
BATEFABENEREE REBLMNRAES : REBLTARAES
11,693,000 7T 10,434,000/ 7T

There is no transfers among Level | and Level 2 during both periods.

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities that are not measured
at fair value on a recurring basis

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying amounts of
financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the
consolidated financial statements approximate their fair values.

Equity securities
listed in Hong Kong:

Level |

Quoted bid prices in an active market

—% RN SR HE

NEx B » — AR A 2 R
EEEE

WHREEMHEED A FETEN
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ARAEERR  REEMBRE
RBERARAAGRNEHEER S/
BENRAEEEAFERS
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BT RS HRER MR

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE-T-TE=A=T-HIEFE

32.

33.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The MPF Scheme is registered with the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Authority under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those
of the Group in funds under the control of an independent trustee. Under
the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees are each required to
make contributions to the MPF Scheme at rates specified in the rules. The
only obligation of the Group with respect to the MPF Scheme is to make
the required contributions. Except for voluntary contribution, no forfeited
contribution under the MPF Scheme s available to reduce the contribution
payable in future years. The cap of contribution amount is HK$ 1,500 per
employee per month.

The retirement benefit scheme contributions arising from the MPF Scheme
recognised in profit or loss represent contributions paid or payable to the
fund by the Group at rates specified in the rules of the MPF Scheme.

The contributions paid and payable to the schemes by the Group are
disclosed in notes 6(a) and 9.

PERFORMANCE GUARANTEES

As at 31 March 2020, performance guarantees of HK$121,807,000 (2019:
HK$61,679,000) were given by banks in favour of the Group’s customers
as security for the due performance and observance of the Group's
obligations under the contracts entered into between the Group and its
customers. If the Group fails to provide satisfactory performance to its
customers to whom performance guarantees have been given, such
customers may demand the banks to pay to them the sum or sum
stipulated in such demand. The Group will become liable to compensate
such banks accordingly. The performance guarantees will be released upon
completion of the contract works. The performance guarantees were
granted under the banking facilities with details as set out in note 24.

At the end of each reporting period, as represented by the directors of the
Company, they do not consider it is probable that a claim will be made
against the Group.
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34.

35.

36.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IS ERRME

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE_Z-TF-A=1—HIEE

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 34 KEHERAR
The Group as lessee AEBEREEA
The Group had commitments for future minimum lease payments in REBEB@ARBETNBESEHE
respect of office premises rented under non-cancellable operating lease R A S35 B 5K SR S R AR B
which fall due as follows: FORPEWT ¢
As at 3| March
R=RA=+—H
2019
—F-NF
HK$'000
THETT
Within one year —F RN 2,222
In the second to fifth year inclusive —EZFLF(BREEEMSE) 2,221
4,443
The above operating lease payments represent rental payable by the MEEHENTIEASE T @M
Group for office premises. Leases for office premises were negotiated and “*%FEE’JF@H e - WAEHA
fixed for a term of two to three years and one of these lease agreements WHEAOMERPRME=F  Hph—
included a renewal option at the discretion of the Group for further two MEABEAREEAWNEBLIME
years. HORER] o
CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 35. BAEE
As at 31 march
R=ZA=+—H
2020 2019
HK$ 000 HK$'000
FER THETT
Capital expenditure in respect of the RERE M IBHMREFTLH
acquisition of property and equipment 15 REEEBEWE
contracted for but not provided in the YR RBOE AR
consolidated financial statements 150 688
SHARE OPTION SCHEME 36. BB

On 6 December 2016, the Company conditionally adopted a share option
scheme (the “Scheme”) pursuant to a resolution passed by its shareholders
on the same date, for the primary purpose of providing incentives or
rewards to eligible employees (whether full time or part time, including any
executive director), the non-executive directors (including independent
non-executive directors) of the Company, any subsidiary or any entity in
which any member of the Group holds any equity interest and other
eligible participants as specified under the Scheme. The adoption of the
Scheme became unconditional upon the listing of the Company on 3
January 2017.

No share option has been granted by the Company since the adoption of
the Scheme.

RZE—A"F+ANH ' &R
*Eﬁﬁﬂx%EAHEILiEE’JJ%E%;
BRGERMBERES S ZET
gl FZBMRAART - FA
BB~ ml sk A EBERIK B A RIR
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EREE(THRE2BRE 25
ERETESE)  FRTES(BRE
B IEITESE) RZat 8K
HEMmeER2mEERMEZRHNE
e AARNARN=_E—EFE—H=
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R A) BB LT 8 AR I\ IR
FEASHE

F3R 201920/ IEEIEE @ (=A%) AR A 7] 163



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BT RS HRER MR

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE-T-TE=A=T-HIEFE

37. INFORMATION ABOUT THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 37. BBAQATMBRRENEL
POSITION OF THE COMPANY

As at 3| march

R=A=+—H
2020 2019
—EEF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
F&T FAT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries R B AT HIEE 23 23
Loan to a subsidiary —RIf B AR ER 18,000 18,000
Debt instruments at amortised cost R SR NS BE (&R T A 1,951 2,155
Financial assets at fair value through BAFEFAERN
profit at loss SREE 11,632 10,360
31,606 30,538
Current assets REBEE
Other receivables, deposits HEMEKIE - Ze
and prepayments SSEANE e 418 337
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE YT b BB N B FR I8 10,486 8,309
Debt instruments at amortised cost R AT B ER T A 2,155 -
Short term bank deposits REERRITER - 20,000
Bank balances and cash RITESREIR S 50,908 37,092
63,967 65,738
Current liability REBEE
Other payables and accrued charges Hib e SsIE R ETE R 587 623
Net current assets REEEEE 63,380 65,115
Net assets EEZFE 94,986 95,653
Capital and reserves EXR#E
Share capital fi% 7R 4,000 4,000
Reserves (note) FE (M) 90,986 91,653
Equity attributable to owners of the Company ~ ZNQ G #EH A E(LEZE 94,986 95,653
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37.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IS ERRME

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE_Z-TF-A=1—HIEE

INFORMATION ABOUT THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 37. EEAATBBRIENEE
POSITION OF THE COMPANY (Cont'd) (&)
Note: BtsE :
Movement in the Company’s reserves RATPEEEE T
Accumulated
Share Other losses/retained
premium reserve profits Total
ESy itV
B 13 55 8 Hitof# & REEF HEt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TR FET TR
At | April 2018 RZE—NFHEA—H 83,223 23 (20,446) 62,800
Profit and total comprehensive income FRENEEEBALE
for the year — — 37,653 37,653
Dividends recognised as distribution R/ KA - - (8,800) (8,800)
At 31 March 2019 R-ZE-—NF=R=+—H 83223 23 8407 91,653
Profit and total comprehensive income FRm R EER SR
for the year - - 4933 4,933
Dividends recognised as distribution R RIS - - (5,600) (5,600)
At 31 March 2020 RZEZTF=RA=+—H 83,223 23 7,740 90,986
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE-T-TE=A=T-HIEFE
38. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company's subsidiaries at the end of each reporting
period are as follows:

38. BRI

ARABIMBRRRSREHROF

BT :

Equity interest attributable

to the Group as at

AEBR T RBEERE
Issued and fully 31 March

Place paid share capital 2020 2019
Name of subsidiary of incorporation Place of operation B #{TK =A=1-H Principal activities
WEARERE atfi i B geny BHAERE “BORE ZE-NE EIRED
Triumph Legend" The BVI Hong Kong US$1,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
Triumph Legend' EBRLHE 5 1 0003 100% 100% &EZER
Blissful Choice” The BVI Hong Kong US$2,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
Blissful Choice” RERLEE BE 2,000 7T 100% 100% REZERK
Shun Hing HK* Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$4,800,000 100% 100%  Provision of E&M

engineering services
JBEEE &R A 480000078 7T 100% oo REMETRRS
Golden Light Engineening Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$250,000 100% [00%  Inactive
Limited”

BRIEBRAR" i A 2500007 100% 00% EEEH

Subsidiaries directly held by the Company
# Subsidiaries indirectly held by the Company

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end of the
reporting period or at any time during both years.
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39.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities arising from
financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities
arising from financing activities are those for which cash flows were, or
future cash flows will be, classified in the Group's consolidated statement
of cash flows as cash flows from financing activities.

e IS ERRME

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE_Z-TF-A=1—HIEE

39. MERBMELRBENHIR

TRAJAREREZDMELR
BENEE BRACNIHESE
B-MERHELNEBEHRERS
MEBXARARAEZRENAEBEE
ReEREXRTOESBERDRE

MEMARIE -

Dividends Bank

payable Lease liabilities borrowings Total

RS HESE RITER #at

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHT T FHETT

At | April 2018 RZZE—-\FWMA—H - - 12,057 12,057

Financing cash flows mEESR=E (8,800) - (3,289) (12,089)

Dividends declared EEIRRE 8,800 - - 8,800

Finance costs BhE AR = = 396 396

At 31 March 2019 R_ZE-NF=A=1+—H - - 9,164 9,164
Adjustment upon application & FR &% B 75 #2452 )

of HKFRS 16 (note 2) E 165 BARE (M) - 7619 - 7,619
At | April 2019 (restated) RZZ—HEMA—H

(&) - 7619 9,164 16,783

Financing cash flows BEEL RS (5,600) (2,443) (2,659) (10,702)

Dividends declared EEIRKRE 5,600 - = 5,600

New lease entered BEEIHEE = 1,074 = 1,074

Finance costs B E R A - 342 311 653

At 31 March 2020 R-_E-_FTF=H=+—H — 6,592 6816 13,408
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Summary of Financial Information

MBERMEE

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the Group for the five TXEH kB SRz M ERER &
financial years, as extracted from the audited consolidated financial statements  IBAR = IZHI AN EE R A I EE XS
and the Prospectus is set out below. REENBEOHRE -

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS
mARE

For the year ended 31 March
BE=A=1t—-HLEFE
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
ZERF ZFtF ZF)\F ZENF ZB-EF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
TAET TAET FTAT TAET FET

Revenue W 190,242 290,383 367,919 396,348 568,428
Gross profit EF 36,749 45991 62,331 47 644 54,765
Profit for the year F N A 23,648 10,052 35,586 22,697 26,027
Earnings per share BREAF
Basic (HK cents) EARGEAL) 7.4 30 89 57 6.5
Diluted (HK cents) 8 (Bl) N/A* 30 8.9 5.7 6.5

5 Not applicable/ T~ 3& F

CONSOLIDATED ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
RAEE  AERER

As at 3| March

R=A=+—H
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
ZE-RE ZE—+tF ZT-N\F ZE-NF ZB-EF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FHTT FHT FHTT FHET FET

ASSETS BE
Non-current assets IEmENEE 24,969 55,983 55,282 37,140 44,369
Current assets MENEE 135,944 209,760 260,254 306,858 340,541
Total assets BEE 160913 265,743 315,536 343,998 384,910
LIABILITIES a&E
Current liabilities VEI=RI= 70,155 72,930 87214 106,682 122,669
Non-current liabilities IEnEaE 385 357 280 374 4,872
Total liabilities b= 70,540 73,287 87,494 107,056 127,541
EQUITY =
Total equity attributable to ~ ZNARIHEA A FE(G
owners of the Company “ARELS 90,373 192,456 228,042 236,942 257,369

168 SH GROUP (HOLDINGS) LIMITED / Annual Report 2019-20



SH GROUP (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
JE B A (3% ) AR F]



	Cover
	Contents
	Corporate Information
	Chairman's Statement
	Management Discussion and Analysis
	Environmental, Social and Governance Report
	Corporate Governance Report
	Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management
	Directors' Report
	Independent Auditor's Report
	Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
	Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
	Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
	Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
	Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
	Summary of Financial Information
	Back Cover



